
Table of Contents

Agenda 4
Health for Humanity Yogathon

Proclamation 8
Blank Page 9

Consider approval of the minutes from the January 7, 2019
regular city council meeting, and take any action necessary.

Mins 10
Blank Report 20

Z2018-049 - Consider a request by Mike Peoples for the
approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an
animal shelter on a 42.66-acre tract of land identified as Tract 7
of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District,
situated within the East SH-66 Overlay (E. SH-66 OV) District,
addressed as 1700 E. SH-66, and take any action necessary
(2nd Reading).

Ord 21
Blank Page 28

A2018-004 - Consider a request by Pat Atkins on behalf of the
owner C.D.T. Rockwall/2017 LLC for the approval of an
ordinance for the voluntary annexation of a 14.995-acre tract of
land identified as Tract 1-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey,
Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, Texas, and take any action
necessary (2nd reading).

Ord 29
Blank Page 37

P2018-047 - Consider a request by Chase Finch of Corwin
Engineering, Inc. on behalf of John Arnold of BH West Pods,
LTD for the approval of a preliminary plat for Breezy Hill, Phase
XII containing 35 single-family residential lots on 44.525-acres
of land identified as a portion of Tract 7-1 of the J. Strickland
Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) for
Single Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses, located west of the
intersection of John King Boulevard and Cozy View Drive, and
take any action necessary.

P2018-047 38
Blank Page 47

Consider approval of the Contract Amendment #1 with Brinkley
& Barfield, Inc., in the amount of $87,030 to be funded from the
2018 Street Bond funds and water/wastewater funds, and take
any action necessary.

Memo 48
Contract Amendment 49
Contract 59

Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute
a contract with Baseball Nation LLC regarding the city's
baseball umpire services for an amount not to exceed $120,000
to be funded from baseball registration proceeds in the
Recreation Development Fund, and take any action necessary.

1
1



memo 82
RFP 83
Blank Page 97

Consider authorizing the City Manager and the Chief of Police
to execute an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with NCT911 to
provide 911 services in the City, and take any action necessary.

Memo 98
Blank Page 99

A2018-005 (6:00 PM) – Hold a public hearing to discuss and
consider a request by Suresh Shridharani on behalf of the
owner Harlan Properties Inc. for the approval of the annexation
of a 79.564-acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the J.
Merriman Survey, Abstract No. 155, Rockwall County, Texas,
and take any action necessary.

A2018-005 100
Blank Page 106

Z2018-050 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by David Rains for the approval of an ordinance for a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowing a covered patio that
exceeds the maximum requirements for property located within
the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline leased area that is adjacent to
a parcel of land identified as Lot 12, Block A, Chandlers
Landing, Phase 18, Section 2, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development 8 (PD-8) District
for single family land uses, addressed as 5808 Constellation
Circle, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Z2018-050 107
Blank Page 109

Z2018-055 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by Kyle Jenkins of the Jenkins Organization on behalf of
Michael Swiercinsky of 7.1 Ridge, LLC for the approval of an
ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Mini-
Warehouse facility on a 2.595-acre tract of land being a portion
of Lot 1, Block A, Sky Ridge Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District,
situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, located
southwest of the intersection of W. Yellow Jacket Lane and
Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any action necessary [1st
Reading].

Z2018-055 110
Blank Page 142

Z2018-057 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by Bill Bricker of Columbia Development Company, LLC
for the approval of an ordinance amending Planned
Development District 59 (PD-59) for the purpose of
incorporating a 0.786-acre tract of land for Residential-Office
(RO) District land uses being a 56.586-acre tract of land
identified as a portion of R. Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29, City
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned
Development District 52 (PD-52) and Planned Development
District 59 (PD-59), located between W. Washington Street and
T. L. Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary [1st
Reading].

Z2018-057 143

2
2



Blank Page 186
A2018-005 (6:30 PM) – Hold a public hearing to discuss and
consider a request by Suresh Shridharani on behalf of the
owner Harlan Properties Inc. for the approval of the annexation
of a 79.564-acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the J.
Merriman Survey, Abstract No. 155, Rockwall County, Texas,
and take any action necessary.

A2018-005 187
Blank Page 193

Z2018-058 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by Tim McCallum of He Wines She Dines, LLC on
behalf of Buffalo Creek Business Park, LTD for the approval of
an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Craft Winery
and Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) on a 7.2-
acre tract of land identified as Tracts 20-01 & 20-7 of the W. W.
Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, addressed as
203 County Line Road, and take any action necessary [1st
Reading].

Z2018-058 194
Blank Page 217

Z2018-059 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a
request by Heather Cullins for the approval of an ordinance for a
zoning change from a Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0)
District to Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District on a 3.03-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-01 of the T. Dean Survey,
Abstract No. 69, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, addressed as
1085 Dalton Road, and take any action necessary [1st
Reading].

Z2018-059 218
Blank Page 236

SP2018-043 - Discuss and consider a request by Kevin
Hickman of PegasusAblon on behalf of Rockwall Rental
Properties, LP for the approval of a waiver in conjunction with
an approved site plan for a 375-unit condominium building on a
6.2-acre tract of land identified as Lot 9, Block A, Harbor-
Rockwall Addition and Tract 16 of the M. J. Barksdale Survey,
Abstract No. 11, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-32), situated within
the IH-30 (IH-30) Overlay District, located at the southwest
corner of the intersection of the IH-30 frontage road and
Lakefront Trail, and take any action necessary.

SP2018-043 237
Blank Page 247

3
3



ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, January 22, 2019 - 5:00 PM

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION.
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE
FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:

1. Discussion regarding legal issues pertaining to potential annexation pursuant to Section
§551.071 (Attorney/Client Consultation).

2. Discussion regarding appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and committees
- specifically the Board of Adjustments (BOA) - pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel
Matters)

3. Discussion regarding the appeal to the Public Utility Commission filed by the cities of
Garland, Mesquite, Plano and Richardson against the North Texas Municipal Water District
(NTMWD) regarding water rates pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

III. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION

IV. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)

V. TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

VI. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – COUNCILMEMBER DANIELS

VII. PROCLAMATIONS

1. Health for Humanity Yogathon

VIII. OPEN FORUM

IX. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the January 7, 2019 regular city council meeting, and

take any action necessary.

2. Z2018-049 - Consider a request by Mike Peoples for the approval of an ordinance for a

Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an animal shelter on a 42.66-acre tract of land identified as

Tract 7 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,

zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the East SH-66 Overlay (E. SH-66 OV)

District, addressed as 1700 E. SH-66, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

4
4



3. A2018-004 - Consider a request by Pat Atkins on behalf of the owner C.D.T. Rockwall/2017

LLC for the approval of an ordinance for the voluntary annexation of a 14.995-acre tract of

land identified as Tract 1-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County,

Texas, and take any action necessary (2nd reading).

4. P2018-047 - Consider a request by Chase Finch of Corwin Engineering, Inc. on behalf of John

Arnold of BH West Pods, LTD for the approval of a preliminary plat for Breezy Hill, Phase XII

containing 35 single-family residential lots on 44.525-acres of land identified as a portion of

Tract 7-1 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,

Texas, zoned Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) for Single Family 10 (SF-10) District

land uses, located west of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Cozy View Drive, and

take any action necessary.

5. Consider approval of the Contract Amendment #1 with Brinkley & Barfield, Inc., in the

amount of $87,030 to be funded from the 2018 Street Bond funds and water/wastewater

funds, and take any action necessary.

6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Baseball

Nation LLC regarding the city's baseball umpire services for an amount not to exceed

$120,000 to be funded from baseball registration proceeds in the Recreation Development

Fund, and take any action necessary.

7. Consider authorizing the City Manager and the Chief of Police to execute an Interlocal

Agreement (ILA) with NCT911 to provide 911 services in the City, and take any action

necessary.

X. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

1. A2018-005 (6:00 PM) – Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Suresh

Shridharani on behalf of the owner Harlan Properties Inc. for the approval of the annexation

of a 79.564-acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the J. Merriman Survey, Abstract No.

155, Rockwall County, Texas, and take any action necessary.

2. Z2018-050 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by David Rains for the

approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowing a covered patio that

exceeds the maximum requirements for property located within the Lake Ray Hubbard

Takeline leased area that is adjacent to a parcel of land identified as Lot 12, Block A,

Chandlers Landing, Phase 18, Section 2, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned

5
5



Planned Development 8 (PD-8) District for single family land uses, addressed as 5808

Constellation Circle, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

3. Z2018-055 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kyle Jenkins of the

Jenkins Organization on behalf of Michael Swiercinsky of 7.1 Ridge, LLC for the approval of

an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Mini-Warehouse facility on a 2.595-acre

tract of land being a portion of Lot 1, Block A, Sky Ridge Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall

County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV)

District, located southwest of the intersection of W. Yellow Jacket Lane and Ridge Road [FM-

740], and take any action necessary [1st Reading].

4. Z2018-057 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Bill Bricker of

Columbia Development Company, LLC for the approval of an ordinance amending Planned

Development District 59 (PD-59) for the purpose of incorporating a 0.786-acre tract of land

for Residential-Office (RO) District land uses being a 56.586-acre tract of land identified as a

portion of R. Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,

zoned Planned Development District 52 (PD-52) and Planned Development District 59 (PD-

59), located between W. Washington Street and T. L. Townsend Drive, and take any action

necessary [1st Reading].

5. A2018-005 (6:30 PM) – Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Suresh

Shridharani on behalf of the owner Harlan Properties Inc. for the approval of the annexation

of a 79.564-acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the J. Merriman Survey, Abstract No.

155, Rockwall County, Texas, and take any action necessary.

6. Z2018-058 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Tim McCallum of He

Wines She Dines, LLC on behalf of Buffalo Creek Business Park, LTD for the approval of an

ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Craft Winery and Commercial

Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) on a 7.2-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 20-01 &

20-7 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,

zoned Commercial (C) District, addressed as 203 County Line Road, and take any action

necessary [1st Reading].

7. Z2018-059 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Heather Cullins for

the approval of an ordinance for a zoning change from a Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0)

District to Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District on a 3.03-acre tract of land identified as

Tract 1-01 of the T. Dean Survey, Abstract No. 69, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,

6
6



zoned Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, addressed as 1085 Dalton Road, and take

any action necessary [1st Reading].

XI. ACTION ITEMS

1. SP2018-043 - Discuss and consider a request by Kevin Hickman of PegasusAblon on behalf of

Rockwall Rental Properties, LP for the approval of a waiver in conjunction with an approved

site plan for a 375-unit condominium building on a 6.2-acre tract of land identified as Lot 9,

Block A, Harbor-Rockwall Addition and Tract 16 of the M. J. Barksdale Survey, Abstract No.

11, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 32 (PD-

32), situated within the IH-30 (IH-30) Overlay District, located at the southwest corner of the

intersection of the IH-30 frontage road and Lakefront Trail, and take any action necessary.

XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE

FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:

1. Discussion regarding legal issues pertaining to potential annexation pursuant to Section
§551.071 (Attorney/Client Consultation).

2. Discussion regarding appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and committees
- specifically the Board of Adjustments (BOA) - pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel
Matters)

3. Discussion regarding the appeal to the Public Utility Commission filed by the cities of
Garland, Mesquite, Plano and Richardson against the North Texas Municipal Water District
(NTMWD) regarding water rates pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

XIII. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

XIV. ADJOURNMENT

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommodations or interpretive
services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972)
771-7727 for further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time to discuss any of the matters
listed on the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code § 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) § 551.072
(Deliberations about Real Property) § 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and § 551.087 (Economic Development)

I, Kristy Cole, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby certify that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place
readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 18th day of January, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. and remained so posted for at
least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

_____________________________________ _________________________
Kristy Cole, City Secretary Date Removed
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

7
7



Proclamation
Whereas, YOGA is an ancient process of keeping the human mind and body

in good health, and Spiritual training is considered a part of physical training from
ancient times in India; and

Whereas, the Surya Namaskar (also known as “Sun Salutation”) is a special
sequence of YOGA postures that provides the key health benefits of YOGA in a very
succinct package; and

Whereas, Hindu Swayamsevak Sangh (HSS) is a voluntary, non-profit,
social and cultural organization which aims to preserve and pass on an ancient
Hindu heritage and cultural values to the next generation and raise awareness
around the world; and

Whereas, HSS is organizing a Health for Humanity Yogathon with the goal
of bringing awareness and health benefits of yoga to the community at large by
adopting a healthy lifestyle with regular practice of Surya Namaskar; and

Whereas, during this period HSS is organizing various free yoga sessions
for interested individuals; and

Whereas, YOGA enthusiasts, YOGA Studios, local schools, and other
organizations are participating in this event as a part of physical activity and/or
spiritual training.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jim Pruitt, Mayor of the City of Rockwall TX, do hereby
proclaim Jan. 12-27, 2019 as “Health for Humanity Yogathon Period” in the City of
Rockwall and encourage all citizens to become more aware of the enjoyment and
many benefits of yoga.

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal this 22nd day of
January, 2019.

_______________________________
Jim Pruitt, Mayor

8
8



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

9
9



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 1 

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, January 07, 2019 - 5:00 PM

City Hall - 385 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER

Mayor Pruitt called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Jim Pruitt, Mayor
Pro Tem Kevin Fowler, and Councilmembers Patrick Trowbridge, Dana Macalik, John
Hohenshelt, Bennie Daniels and Trace Johannesen. Also present were City Manager Rick
Crowley, Assistant City Managers Mary Smith and Joey Boyd, and City Attorney Frank
Garza. Mayor Pruitt read the below listed discussion items into the record before recessing
the public meeting to go into Executive Session at 5:01 p.m.

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION.
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE
FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:

1. Discussion regarding "Petition for Consent to include Land in a Municipal Utility District (MUD)"
within the city's northern extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ), pursuant to Section §551.071
(Consultation with Attorney)

2. Discussion regarding the appeal to the Public Utility Commission filed by the cities of Garland,
Mesquite, Plano and Richardson against the North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD)
regarding water rates pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

III. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION

Council adjourned from Executive Session at 5:57 p.m.

IV. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)

Mayor Pruitt reconvened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m.

V. TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

Mayor Pro Tem Fowler indicated that no action was necessary as a result of Executive
Session.

VI. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – MAYOR PRO TEM FOWLER

Mayor Pro Tem Fowler delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

VII. OPEN FORUM

10
10



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 2 

Mayor Pruitt explained how Open Forum is conducted and asked if anyone would like to
come forth and speak at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed
Open Forum.

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the December 17, 2018 regular city council meeting,
and take any action necessary.

2. Z2018-043 - Consider a request by Michael Worrell of Rockwall Honda for the approval of an
ordinance amending SUP No. S-76 (Ordinance No. 10-26) to allow changes to be made to an
existing Motorcycle Dealership with Accessory Boat and Trailer Sales being a 1.152-acre parcel
of land identified as Lot 6, Block A, Newman Center #1 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV)
District, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

3. Z2018-046 - Consider a request by Brad Helmer on behalf of Heritage Christian Academy (HCA)
for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowing existing temporary
educational buildings in conjunction with a private school to remain on a 6.64-acre parcel of
land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Heritage Christian Academy Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Multi-Family 14 (MF-14) District, situated within the SH-205
Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, addressed as 1408 S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action
necessary (2nd Reading).

4. P2018-044 - Consider a request by Dub Douphrate of Douphrate and Associates on behalf of
Russell Frank for the approval of a final plat for Lot 1, Block A, Hacienda Car Wash Addition
being a 2.008-acre tract of land identified as portions of Lots 1 & 2, Block A, the Woods at
Rockwall Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District,
situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 2215 Ridge Road [FM-740], and
take any action necessary.

5. P2018-045 - Consider a request by Jennifer Haynes of Urban Structure on behalf of Andrew
Malzer of RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc. the approval of a replat for Lots 4 & 5, Block A, the Woods
at Rockwall Addition being a 4.47-acre tract of land identified as Lots 1 & 2, Block A, the Woods
at Rockwall Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District,
situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 2215 & 2205 Ridge Road [FM-
740], and take any action necessary.

6. P2018-046 - Consider a request by David Ellis for the approval of a replat for Lots 5, 6 & 7, Block
A, Ellis Centre, Phase 2 Addition being a 2.62-acre tract of land identified as Lots 1 & 3, Block A,
Ellis Centre, Phase 2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial
(LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, addressed as 1930 & 1950
Alpha Road, and take any action necessary.

7. Consider approval of a resolution terminating Ascensus Trust Company as Passive Trustee of
the City of Rockwall 457(b) Plan; appointing Reliance Trust Company as Passive Trustee (in
Place of Ascensus Trust) with respect to the city’s 457(b) plan, and take any action necessary.

Mayor Pro Tem Fowler moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda. Councilmember
Macalik seconded the motion. The ordinances were read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL

11
11



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 19-01
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-199

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO AMEND
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-76 [ORDINANCE NO. 10-26], WHICH ALLOWS FOR A
MOTORCYCLE DEALERSHIP WITH ACCESSORY BOAT AND TRAILER SALES ON
A 1.152-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 6, BLOCK A, NEWMAN
CENTER #1 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS;
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 19-02

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-200

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW THREE (3) TEMPORARY EDUCATIONAL
BUILDINGS ON A 6.64-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND ZONED MULTI-FAMILY 14 (MF-14)
DISTRICT AND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 1, BLOCK A, HERITAGE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE;
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

IX. APPOINTMENT ITEMS

1. Appointment with Dewayne Cain to discuss amending the Unified Development Code (UDC) to
allow accessory buildings in an Agricultural (AG) District, and take any action necessary.

Dewayne Cain
305 Stonebridge
Rockwall, TX

Mr. Cain came forth and addressed the Council regarding this agenda item. He explained
that he is the owner of Resthaven Memorial Park and that he owns about 200 acres of
agriculturally zoned land. He hired an architect to design an elaborate barn / storage type
facility that would be placed close to one of the homes he owns on Cornelius Road. He
explained that his property was annexed into the city several years ago. In addition to Mr.
Cain having hired an architect and having plans drawn up, a deposit was put down, a
general contractor was hired, dirt work was done, and lime injection was performed. When
the contractor came to the city to take out a building permit, he was told by staff that an
SUP would be required before a permit could be issued. In the meantime, the city council
made changes that disallowed an SUP to be requested. He went on to explain that a barn /
accessory building is not currently allowed within an agriculturally zoned district, so there
is no longer a means by which he is able to apply for a “specific use permit” (SUP). He is
coming before the Council this evening to see if there is a way to work something out such

12
12



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 4 

that he would be allowed to build this large accessory building on his agriculturally zoned
property.

Planning Director Ryan Miller provided clarifying comments to the Council concerning this
matter. He generally explained that currently, there is no SUP process by which a property
owner may request to approve a ‘barn’ type accessory structure on “agriculturally zoned”
land, and there is also not a means by which an owner may build ‘private guest quarters.’ It
was generally explained that the “agriculture” zoning designation is assigned to newly
annexed land “by default” (essentially), and it is the most restrictive zoning designation
within the city’s regulations. It exists this way as a means by which annexed land will be
eventually pushed into a different zoning land designation; however, it unfortunately has an
(unintended) adverse effect on (larger parcels of) land that truly are more ‘agricultural’ in
nature. One change that would need to occur is for SUPs to be able to be requested, on a
case-by-case basis, for “guest quarters” which are proposed to be built on ‘agriculturally
zoned’ land. Right now, no SUP process exists to potentially allow those types of
structures.

Mr. Cain clarified that “guest quarters” is a little more elaborate than what he is wanting to
build. He essentially wants to build a (large) “man cave” to have folks over and watch
sports games and store some of his car collection.

Following extensive discussion, the Council generally expressed a desire for staff to bring
back some options for the council to consider relative to making some changes to the UDC
to allow requests (by SUP) for accessory buildings (both ones to be utilized as ‘barns’ and
ones to be utilized for ‘private guest quarters’), on a case-by-case basis, on agriculturally
zoned land.

Council took no formal action related to this agenda item at this time.

X. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

1. Z2018-049 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Mike Peoples for the
approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an animal shelter on a 42.66-acre
tract of land identified as Tract 7 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the East SH-66 Overlay
(E. SH-66 OV) District, addressed as 1700 E. SH-66, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information pertaining to this agenda
item, indicating that back on December 17, 2018, the City Council continued the public
hearing for Case No. Z2018-049 by a vote of 7 to 0. This case involved a request for a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) that would allow for an animal shelter on the property. The
purpose of the City Council’s motion was to allow the applicant, Mike Peoples,
additional time to prepare a schedule that outlined [1] the completion time for the animal
shelter (which is currently partially constructed), and [2] the time needed to demolish
the structure situated within the floodplain (which was constructed without a building
permit). In response to the City Council’s action, Mr. Peoples provided staff with a letter
indicating that, weather permitting, he intends to complete the construction of the
animal shelter by April 2019; however, Mr. Peoples has not indicated a timeframe for
the demolition of the structure within the floodplain (see Exhibit ‘B’). It should also be
noted that staff requested that Mr. Peoples provide a timeframe for the demolition of the
detached garage that was denied by the City Council on December 17, 2018; however, the
letter submitted by Mr. Peoples indicates that he does not have a timeframe for the
removal of this building either. Due to the applicant’s in ability to provide staff with a
reasonable timeframe for the demolition of the two (2) unpermitted structures, staff has

13
13



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 5 

amended the draft ordinance for the animal shelter to require that both structures be
removed from the property within six (6) months of the adoption date of the proposed
Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance.

Councilmember Hohenshelt and Mayor Pruitt both indicated that their preference is to
require that Mr. People demolish the existing structure (in the floodplain) prior to finishing
the newest structure he wanting to complete.

Mr. Miller shared that Mr. Peoples has continued to work on the existing (unpermitted,
unauthorized “animal shelter”) structure during the time he has been going through the
process associated with seeking formal approval of it being built. It was pointed out that
when Mr. Peoples spoke to staff about the (currently under construction) structure needing
an SUP and building permit, Mr. Peoples gave indication that he still planned to continue
working on the structure. Staff explained to Mr. Peoples that if he continued working on the
structure before it (potentially) received Council’s approval, he would be doing so at his
own risk. Mr. Peoples subsequently submitted a letter to staff, generally expressing that he
understood that. General discussion took place pertaining to the existing structure (that
Mr. Peoples has continued to work on) and how stopping its construction and having it torn
down will be an enforcement-related issue, should it come to that in the future. Indication
was given that, related to ‘enforcement,’ any daily or other fines would be up to the judge.

Following extensive discussion and clarifications, Councilmember Hohenshelt moved to
call for all of the improper structures to be removed before this particular SUP may be
granted and that Mr. Peoples must do so within six (6) months. The motion was clarified –
that Mr. Peoples should not perform further work on this current structure and that the
other, existing (improper) structures must be removed within six (6) months.
Councilmember Trowbridge seconded the motion.

Pruitt reopened the public hearing (that was continued from the last council meeting) and
asked if anyone would like to come forth and speak at this time. There being no one
indicating such, he then called for the vote.

The above noted motion then passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. The ordinance (caption)
was read into the record as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 19-___

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-___

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-
38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO
GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ANIMAL
SHELTER ON A 4 2 .66-ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED AGRICULTURAL (AG)
DISTRICT, IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 7 OF THE D. HARR SURVEY, ABSRACT
NO. 102, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE;
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

XI. ACTION ITEMS

1. Z2018-052 - Discuss and consider a request by Russell Phillips on behalf of Rockwall Retail
Investors, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a mini-
warehouse facility on a 7.489-acre tract of land identified as Lot 23, Rainbow Acres Addition,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, generally situated

14
14



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 6 

north of Horizon Road and east of Ranch Trail Road, and take any action necessary (2nd
Reading).

Mayor Pro Tem Fowler recused himself from this agenda item. Following brief, introductory
comments by Mr. Miller, Councilmember Hohenshelt moved to approve Z2018-052.
Councilmember Trowbridge seconded the motion. The ordinance was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 19-__

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-____

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT
(SUP) TO ALLOW A MINI-WAREHOUSE FACILITY WITHIN A COMMERCIAL (C)
DISTRICT, ON A 7.489-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND BEING IDENTIFIED AS LOT 23,
RAINBO ACRES ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS;
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

The motion passed by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 abstention (Fowler).

2. Z2018-048 - Discuss and consider a request by Amanda Henry for the approval of an ordinance
for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an accessory building that does not meet the requirements
stipulated by the Unified Development Code (UDC) on a 0.253-acre tract of land identified as
part of Lot 47B of the B. F. Boydston Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 205 S. Clark Street, and take any action necessary
(2nd Reading).

Mr. Miller explained that Councilmen Hohenshelt and Daniels dissented on the vote to
approve this item at the last city council meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Fowler then moved to
approve Z2018-048. Councilmember Johannesen seconded the motion. The ordinance
was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 19-___

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-___

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ACCESSORY BUILDING THAT
DOES NOT MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE
(UDC) ON A 0.253-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND ZONED SINGLE-FAMILY 7 (SF-7)
DISTRICT AND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 47B, B. F. BOYDSTUN ADDITION, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 5 ayes and 2 nays (Hohenshelt and Daniels).

15
15



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 7 

3. Z2018-054 - Discuss and consider a request by Andrew Bennett of BOKA Powell, LLC on behalf
of the owner Vinod Miranda for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP)
for an office building that will exceed 36-feet in height within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District
on a 9.7-acre tract of land identified at Tract 15 of the E. P. G. Chisum Survey, Abstract No. 64,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the
Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, located at the southwest corner of Ridge Road [FM-740] and
Turtle Cove Boulevard, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

Planning Director Ryan Miller and Councilman Trowbridge provided brief comments
pertaining to this agenda item. Councilmember Trowbridge then moved to approve Z2018-
054. Councilmember Hohenshelt seconded the motion. The ordinance was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 19-XX

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-1XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO FURTHER AMEND
THE ZONING MAP TO ADOPT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR A
STRUCTURE THAT EXCEEDS 36-FT IN HEIGHT WITHIN THE SCENIC OVERLAY
(SOV) DISTRICT IN A COMMERCIAL (C) DISTRICT, ON A 9.70-ACRE TRACT OF
LAND BEING IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 15 OF THE E.P.G. CHISUM SURVEY,
ABSTRACT NO. 64, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND
MORE FULLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE;
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 5 in favor with 2 against (Macalik and Daniels).

4. A2018-004 - Discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins on behalf of the owner C.D.T.
Rockwall/2017 LLC for the approval of an ordinance for the voluntary annexation of a 14.995-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall
County, Texas, and take any action necessary (1st reading).

Planning Director Ryan Miller provided brief background information pertaining to this
agenda item. The applicant, Mr. Atkins, came forth and explained that this annexation will
bring additional land into the city that will be utilized for an extension of the Saddlestar
subdivision (it will be “Saddlestar South”). He indicated that some builders have already
been retained for the future building of homes in this neighborhood.
Councilmember Hohenshelt moved to approve A2018-004. Councilmember Macalik
seconded the motion. The ordinance was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 19-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR THE EXTENSION OF CERTAIN BOUNDARY LIMITS
OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS AND THE ANNEXATION OF A 14.995-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 1-03 OF THE P. B.
HARRISON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 97, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS,

16
16



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 8 

WHICH SAID TERRITORY LIES ADJACENT TO AND ADJOINS THE PRESENT
BOUNDARY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

5. Discuss and consider approval of a concept plan for Harbor Urban Beach Park, and take any
action necessary.

Director of Parks & Recreation, Andy Hesser, came forth and addressed the Council
concerning this agenda item. He shared a visual concept plan that showed renderings of
the proposed lakeside (Urban Beach) park area. Extensive discussion ensued regarding a
proposed Phase I and Phase II of this park project, including whether or not a restroom
facility should be included in Phase I and the options for where that facility might possibly
be located. Discussion also took place pertaining to what funds have already been
budgeted versus what funds would possibly need to be taken out of the General Fund to
ensure adequate funding for a restroom facility. Mayor Pruitt indicated that he prefers to
include a restroom facility as part of this plan because he anticipates that the city will
receive complaints if it is not included. Regarding the topic of parking, Mr. Hesser
explained that a the public parking garage on the nearest side of the Cinemark movie
theater is slated to be constructed by Pegasus-Abalon prior to this park area being
developed. So, that would be the nearest available parking area for those visiting this park.
Mr. Hesser shared brief comments about some of the proposed amenities, including a sand
beach area, volleyball amenities, vegetation separation between the park and the facilities
up the hill from it, walking trail areas, etc.

Following extensive discussion, Mr. Crowley, City Manager, suggested that staff bring back
a financing plan for Phase I (with a restroom facility included in the numbers). Further
discussion then ensued pertaining to where the restroom facility might ultimately be
located. Mr. Hesser showed the Council the two different options that have been identified
for possible placement of the restroom facility. One option will include obtaining an
easement from the City of Dallas, and it may not be ideally located for whatever ultimately
gets constructed up the hill from the restroom facility. The other possible placement for the
restroom facility may ultimately have fewer complications as far as easements are
concerned, but it would be located on the far end, just around the corner. Concern was
expressed by some Council members regarding possibly placing the restroom on the far
end, around the corner, as it may be too far for visitors to walk. However, concern was also
expressed by some members of Council who wonder if those who occupy the buildings up
the hill from the park may not appreciate looking at the back of a restroom facility if one
were placed at the other potential location that’s been identified.

Following extensive discussion regarding the placement of the restroom facility, Council
generally indicated agreement with it being placed over near IH-30 (around the corner on
the far end of the park); however, staff will need to return to the Council with more specific
details related to how much Phase I will cost if the restroom facility is added and if the trail
that leads to the restrooms is constructed. No formal action was taken as a result of this
discussion item at this time.

6. Discuss and consider a recommendation of the City Council Naming Subcommittee regarding
approval of a resolution naming a parks and recreation venue in the City, and take any action
necessary.

17
17



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 9 

On behalf of the subcommittee, Councilmember Daniels shared that a recommendation is
being put forth to name the amphitheater at The Harbor the “Brad Griggs Amphitheater
Stage at The Harbor.” He then moved to approve the resolution to do so. Mayor Pruitt
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously (7 ayes to 0 nays).

7. Discuss and consider legislative topics for the 86th Session of the Texas Legislature, and take
any action necessary.

Assistant City Manager Joey Boyd provided background information pertaining to this
agenda item, generally indicating that staff has compiled and made available to Council in
tonight’s informational meeting packet a bullet pointed list of topics that may be of interest
to the City during the upcoming state legislative session. Mayor Pruitt commented that the
list looks like a pretty good list. Council took no formal action concerning this agenda item.

8. Discuss and consider (re)appointments to the city's Main Street Advisory Board, and take any
action necessary.

Councilmember Trowbridge moved to reappoint Pricylla Bento and Jeremy Standifer to
continue serving on the Main Street Advisory Board for an additional two-year term.
Councilmember Macalik seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

Councilman Trowbridge moved to appoint Eva Cannon to replace Sarah Freed on the Main
Street Advisory Board (for a two-year term). Councilmember Macalik seconded the motion,
which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

XII. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT, DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND RELATED DISCUSSIONS PERTAINING TO CURRENT
CITY ACTIVITIES, UPCOMING MEETINGS, FUTURE LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

1. Departmental Reports
Building Inspections Monthly Report - November 2018
Fire Department Monthly Report - November 2018
GIS Division Monthly Report - November 2018
Harbor PD Monthly Report - November 2018
Internal Operations Monthly Report - November 2018
Police Department Monthly Report - November 2018
Recreation Monthly Report - November 2018
Rockwall Animal Adoption Center Monthly Report - November 2018
Rockwall Meals on Wheels Senior Services Quarterly Report
STAR Transit Monthly Report - November 2018
STAR Transit Quarterly Report

2. City Manager’s Report

Mayor Pruitt informed the Council that he will be appointing Joe Lynch to serve on the
Rockwall Housing Authority Board, explaining that board members are (solely) appointed to
the board by the city’s mayor. He explained that Joe is a war hero, and grew up in the south
side of Boston in the housing projects. So, he will bring a unique perspective to this board.
Following the mayor’s comments, no discussion took place pertaining to departmental or
“city manager’s” reports.

XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

18
18



City Council Minutes - Monday, January 07, 2019 
Page 10 

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE

FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:

1. Discussion regarding "Petition for Consent to include Land in a Municipal Utility District (MUD)"
within the city's northern extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ), pursuant to Section §551.071
(Consultation with Attorney)

2. Discussion regarding the appeal to the Public Utility Commission filed by the cities of Garland,
Mesquite, Plano and Richardson against the North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD)
regarding water rates pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

XIV. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

XV. ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 7:10 p.m.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS 21st DAY OF JANUARY, 2019.

__________________________
ATTEST: Jim Pruitt, Mayor

_______________________________
Kristy Cole, City Secretary

19
19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

20
20



Z2018-049: SUP for an Animal Shelter
Ordinance No. 19-08; SUP # S- 204

Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas

CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 19-08

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-204

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ANIMAL
SHELTER ON A 4 2 .66-ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED
AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT, IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 7 OF
THE D. HARR SURVEY, ABSRACT NO. 102, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, a request has been made by Mike Peoples for the approval of a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for the purpose of allowing a previously constructed animal shelter, situated on a
42.66-acre tract of land, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, and being identified as Tract 7 of the D.
Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, addressed 1700 E.
SH-66, and being more specifically depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after
shall be referred to as the Subject Property incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing
body of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the
ordinances of the City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and
otherwise, and have held public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property
owners generally, and to all persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the
vicinity thereof, the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that
the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall should be
amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowing for the construction of an animal shelter structure within
an Agricultural (AG) District as stipulated by Article IV, Permissible Uses, and Article V,
District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-
38] on the Subject Property; and

SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes
described in this Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance and as specifically set forth in Section
2.1, Agricultural (AG) District, of Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore
amended, as amended herein by the granting of this zoning change, and as my be amended in
the future, and shall be subject to the following operational conditions and compliance standards:

21
21



Z2018-049: SUP for an Animal Shelter
Ordinance No. 19-08; SUP # S- 204

Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas

2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions pertain to the operation of an animal shelter, structure on the Subject
Property and conformance to these requirements is necessary for continued operations:

1) The animal shelter structure shall generally conform to the elevations and site plan
depicted in Exhibits ‘B’ & ‘C’ of this ordinance;

2) The animal shelter structure shall not exceed its current size of approximately 2,720 SF
or an approximate height of 15-feet;

3) The existing accessory building located within the flood plain of this property, as depicted
as #4 in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, shall be removed/demolished within six (6) months
of the date of passage of this ordinance;

4) The existing detached garage located on the subject property, as depicted as #1, 2, & 3
in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, shall be removed/demolished within six (6) months of the
date of passage of this ordinance;

5) The animal shelter structure shall not be operated as a commercial land use;

6) A detention system is required for the addition of structures on the subject property per
the Engineering Standards of Design; and,

7) The animal shelter structure is subject to administrative review in the event that the
Subject Property is sold, conveyed or altered in any manner.

2.2 COMPLIANCE

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Section 8.3, Council Approval or Denial, of Article
II, Authority and Administrative Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance
No. 04-38] will require compliance to the following:

1) Upon obtaining a building permit, should the homeowner fail to meet the minimum
operational requirements set forth herein and outline in the Unified Development Code
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-38], the City Council may (after proper notice) initiate
proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Section 4.4.(3) of
Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-38].

SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in
zoning described herein.

SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict.

SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of
fine not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate
offense.

SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged

22
22



Z2018-049: SUP for an Animal Shelter
Ordinance No. 19-08; SUP # S- 204

Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas

invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 22ND DAY OF JANUARY, 2019.

ATTEST:

Kristy Cole, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1st Reading: January 7, 2019

2nd Reading: January 22, 2019

Jim Pruitt, Mayor

23
23



Z2018-049: SUP for an Animal Shelter
Ordinance No. 19-08; SUP # S- 204

Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas

Exhibit ‘A’:
Legal Description and Property Location

Legal Description: Tract 7 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102

24
24



Z2018-049: SUP for an Animal Shelter
Ordinance No. 19-08; SUP # S- 204

Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas

Exhibit ‘B’:
Animal Shelter – Elevations

25
25



Z2018-049: SUP for an Animal Shelter
Ordinance No. 19-08; SUP # S- 204

Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas

Exhibit ‘C’:
Site Plan

26
26



Z2018-049: SUP for an Animal Shelter
Ordinance No. 19-08; SUP # S- 204

Page | 7 City of Rockwall, Texas

Exhibit ‘D’;
Building Locations to be Removed

1. Exiting Structure attached to Detached Garage
2. Existing Structure attached to Detached Garage
3. Detached Garage
4. Existing Structure Located within Designated 100-year Flood Plain

27
27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

28
28



A2018-004: Branch Property Annexation Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 19-07

CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 19-07

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR THE EXTENSION OF
CERTAIN BOUNDARY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS AND THE ANNEXATION OF A 14.995-ACRE TRACT OF
LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 1-03 OF THE P. B. HARRISON
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 97, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS,
WHICH SAID TERRITORY LIES ADJACENT TO AND ADJOINS THE
PRESENT BOUNDARY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Public Hearings were held before the governing body of the City of Rockwall,
Texas, where all interested persons were provided with an opportunity to be heard, on
December 3, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. and on December 3, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. at City Hall, 385 S.
Goliad, Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas with said dates being not more than forty (40) days
nor less than twenty (20) days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings, on the
proposed annexation of the following described territories;

BEING, a 14.995-acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey,
Abstract No. 97 in the County of Rockwall, Texas and generally located contiguous to the
existing city limits line east of the intersection of Featherstone Drive and John King Boulevard,
depicted and described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance:

WHEREAS, notice of such public hearings were published in a newspaper having general
circulation in the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and in the territory described herein
on November 16, 2018 and posted on the City of Rockwall’s website on November 16, 2018
said dates being not more than twenty (20) days nor less than ten (10) days prior to the dates of
such public hearings; and

WHEREAS, the territory lies adjacent to and adjoins the present boundaries of the City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas; and

WHEREAS, the territory above contains 14.995-acres;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the above recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and incorporated
herein for all purposes.

SECTION 2. The land and territory more specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ and incorporated by
reference as the Subject Property, and containing 14.995-acres which is adjacent to and
adjoining the present boundaries of the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, is hereby
added and annexed to the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and said territory as
described herein shall hereafter be included within the boundary limits of the City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas and the present boundary limits of the City at the various points
contiguous to the areas as described above, are altered and amended so as to include said
area within the corporate limits of the City.

29
29



A2018-004: Branch Property Annexation Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 19-07

SECTION 3. That the official map of the City is hereby amended to reflect the addition of the
property described herein.

SECTION 4. The above described territory and the acres so annexed shall be a part of the City
of Rockwall, Texas, and the inhabitants thereof, if any, shall be entitled to all of the rights and
privileges of all citizens and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions and regulations
of the City of Rockwall, Texas.

SECTION 5. That the Service Plan for the annexation area, which was made available for public
inspection at the Public Hearings referenced above, is hereby approved with a copy of said plan
being attached hereto and incorporated by reference for all purposes and labeled Exhibit ‘B’.

SECTION 6. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and
approval, in accordance with applicable law and the charter of the City of Rockwall, Texas.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 22NDDAY OF JANUARY, 2019.

Jim Pruitt, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristy Cole, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1st Reading: January 7, 2019

2nd Reading: January 22, 2019

30
30



Exhibit ‘A’
Legal Description/Location Map

A2018-004: Branch Property Annexation Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 19-07

BEING 14.955 acres of land situated in the P.B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall
County, Texas, and all of a called 15.00 acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to
Steve L. Branch and wife Judy C. Branch, recorded in Volume 234, Page 527 of the Deed
Records of Rockwall County, Texas (DRRCT), and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1/2” iron rod found for corner in the original Hays Road at the common west
corner of said 15.00 acre tract and a tract of land described in a deed to Randy and Gwen
Reed, recorded in Volume 260, Page 1 (DRRCT);

THENCE North 01°10'15” West, continuing along and within Hays Road and with the west line
of said 15.00 acre Branch tract, a distance of 596.15 feet, to a 1/2” iron rod found for corner at
the northwest corner thereof, common to the southwest corner of a called 15.00 acre tract of
land described in a deed to Gerald Glen Cox and wife Rosalba Cox, recorded in Volume 3295
Page 9, (DRRCT);

THENCE North 89°26'26” East, along the common line of last mentioned tracts, a distance of
1,099.11 feet, to a point for corner at the common east corner thereof, and also being in the
west line of Park Ridge Estates, an addition to the City of Rockwall, according to the Plat thereof
recorded in Cabinet A, Page 390 of the Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas (PRRCT), from
which a 1/2” iron rod with a yellow cap stamped “5034” bears South 68°26'26” West, a distance
of 0.18 feet;

THENCE South 00°32'13” East, along the common line of said Branch tract and said Park
Ridge Estates, a distance of 596.04 feet, to a 1/2” iron rod found for corner at the southeast
corner thereof, common to the northeast corner of said Reed tract;

THENCE South 89°26'12” West, along the common line of last mentioned tracts, a distance of
1,092.52 feet to PLACE OF BEGINNING and Containing 653,191 square feet, or 14.995 acres
of land.

31
31



Exhibit ‘A’
Legal Description/Location Map

A2018-004: Branch Property Annexation Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 19-07

32
32



Exhibit ‘B’
Service Plan

A2018-004: Branch Property Annexation Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 19-07

SERVICE PLAN FOR ANNEXED AREA
Annexation Case No. A2018-004
City and County of Rockwall, Texas

Acreage Annexed: 14.995-acres

Survey Abstract and County: Tract 1-03 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall
County, Texas

Date of Adoption of Annexation Ordinance: January 21, 2019

Municipal services to the acreage described above shall be furnished by or on behalf of the City
of Rockwall, Texas, at the following levels and in accordance with the following schedule:

(A) Police Services

(1) Patrolling, responses to calls, and other routine police services, within the limits of
existing personnel and equipment, will be provided within 60 days of the effective date
of annexation.

(2) As development and construction commence within this area, sufficient police
personnel and equipment will be provided to continue to furnish this area the level of
police services consistent with police services available in other parts of the City with
land uses and population densities similar to those projected in the annexed area.

(B) Fire Services

(1) Fire protection by the present personnel and the present equipment of the fire
Department, within the limitations of available water and distances from existing fire
stations, will be provided to this area within 60 days of the effective date of annexation.

(2) As development and construction commences within this area, sufficient fire personnel
and equipment will be provided to continue to furnish this area the level of fire services
consistent with fire service available in other parts of the City with land uses and
population densities similar to those projected in the annexed area.

(C) Health and Code Compliance Services

(1) Enforcement of the City’s health ordinances and regulations including, but not limited
to, weed and brush ordinances, junked and abandoned vehicle ordinances, food
handlers ordinances and animal control ordinances, shall be provided within this area
on the effective date of the annexation ordinance. These ordinances and regulations
will be enforced through the use of existing personnel. Complaints of ordinance or
regulation violations within this area will be responded and investigated by existing
personnel beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance.

(2) The City’s building, plumbing, electrical, gas heating, air conditioning and all other
construction codes will be enforced within this area beginning with the effective date of
the annexation ordinance. Existing personnel will be used to provide these services.

33
33



Exhibit ‘B’
Service Plan

A2018-004: Branch Property Annexation Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 19-07

(3) The City’s zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances shall be enforced in this area
beginning on the effective date of the annexation ordinance.

(4) All inspection services furnished by the City of Rockwall, but not mentioned above, will
be provided to this area beginning on the effective date of the annexation ordinance.
Any property owner or his/her assigns who in good faith has a new building or
structure, as defined in the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, under construction on
the effective date of annexation shall be exempted from these inspections for that
building or structure under construction for a period of one year from the effective date
of annexation. For the purpose of this ordinance “under construction” shall mean any
work that requires a building permit from the City of Rockwall.

(5) As development and construction commence within this area, sufficient personnel will
be provided to continue to furnish this area the same level of Health and Code
compliance services as are furnished throughout the City.

(D) Planning and Zoning Services

(1) The planning and zoning jurisdiction of the City will extend to this area on the effective
date of the annexation ordinance. City planning will thereafter encompass this
property, and it shall be entitled to consideration for zoning in accordance with the
City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, Landscape Ordinance and Code of
Ordinances.

(E) Recreation and Leisure Services

(1) Residents of this property may utilize all existing recreational and leisure services
facilities and sites throughout the City beginning with the effective date of the
annexation ordinance.

(2) Existing parks, playgrounds, swimming pools and other recreation and leisure facilities
within this property shall, upon dedication to and acceptance by the City, be
maintained and operated by the City of Rockwall.

(F) Solid Waste Collection

(1) Solid waste collection shall be provided to the property owner in accordance with
existing City policies as to frequency and charges, beginning on the effective date of
annexation except for properties that are served by a privately owned solid waste
management service provider. Such properties will be allowed to continue private
service for a period of two years from the effective date of annexation at which time the
property will be required to begin service with a franchised solid waste contractor
within the City of Rockwall.

(G) Streets

(1) The City of Rockwall’s existing policies with regard to street maintenance, applicable
throughout the entire City, shall apply to this property beginning immediately as of the
effective date of the annexation ordinance.

34
34



Exhibit ‘B’
Service Plan

A2018-004: Branch Property Annexation Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 19-07

(2) As development, improvements or construction of streets to the City standards
commence within this property, the policies of the City of Rockwall with regard to
impact fees and participation in the cost thereof, acceptance upon completion, and
maintenance after completion, shall apply.

(3) The same level of maintenance shall be provided to streets within this property that
have been accepted by the City of Rockwall as is provided to like City streets
throughout the City.

(H) Water Services

(1) Connection to existing City water mains for water services for domestic, commercial
and industrial use within this property will be provided in accordance with existing City
policies. Upon connection to existing mains, water will be provided at rates established
by City ordinance for such services throughout the City.

(2) Water mains of the City will be extended in accordance with provisions of the Code of
Ordinances and other applicable ordinances and regulations. City participation in the
costs of these extensions shall be in accordance with applicable City ordinances and
regulations and will be provided as otherwise available in other parts of the City with
topography, land uses, population densities similar to those reasonably contemplated
or projected in the annexed area.

(3) Water mains which are within the annexed area and are owned and operated by the
City shall be maintained beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance
or upon acquisition by the City.

(4) Private water lines within this property shall be maintained by their owners, in
accordance with existing policies applicable throughout the City.

(I) Sanitary Sewer Services

(1) Connections to existing City sanitary sewer mains for sanitary sewage service in this
area will be provided in accordance with the existing City policies. Upon connection,
sanitary sewage service will be provided at rates established by City ordinances for
such services throughout the City.

(2) Sanitary sewer mains and/or lift stations which are within the annexed area and are
connected to City mains shall be maintained by the City of Rockwall beginning with the
effective date of the annexation ordinance or upon acquisition by the City.

(3) Sanitary sewer mains of the City will be extended in accordance with the provisions of
the Code of Ordinances and engineering standards and other applicable ordinances
and regulations. City participation in the costs of these extensions shall be in
accordance with applicable City ordinances and regulations and will be provided as
otherwise availably in other parts of the City with topography, land uses, and
population densities similar to those reasonably contemplated or projected in the area.

(4) Previously granted exceptions to the requirements of connections to the city’s sanitary
sewer treatment system shall be continued until such alternate systems are

35
35



Exhibit ‘B’
Service Plan

A2018-004: Branch Property Annexation Page | 7 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 19-07

determined to no longer function to meet the sanitary sewer needs of the subdivision
granted the exception.

(J) Public Utilities

(1) Other public utilities will be provided by the City’s franchisee or a provider holding a
certificate of convenience issued by the state to serve that area.

(K) Miscellaneous

(1) General municipal administration services of the City shall be available to the annexed
area beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance.

36
36



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

37
37



CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 01/22/2019 

APPLICANT:  Chase Finch; Corwin Engineering

AGENDA ITEM: P2018-047; Preliminary Plat for Breezy Hill, Phase XII 

SUMMARY:

Discuss and consider a request by Chase Finch of Corwin Engineering, Inc. on behalf of John 
Arnold of BH West Pods, LTD for the approval of a preliminary plat for Breezy Hill, Phase XII 
containing 35 single-family residential lots on 44.525-acres of land identified as a portion of 
Tract 7-1 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) for Single Family 10 (SF-10) District 
land uses, located west of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Cozy View Drive, and 
take any action necessary.

PLAT INFORMATION:

The Breezy Hill Subdivision is a master planned community that will provide approximately 
405-acres of residential and commercial development.  The residential subdivision will be 
composed of 750 single-family lots on 371.45-acres of land, and be broken down per the lot 
mix indicated in Planned Development District 74 (PD-74).  The lot mix in this Planned 
Development District is as follows. 

Lot Types A B C D E F G
Minimum Lot Frontage (Feet) 60’ 70’ 80’ 100’ 60’ 100’ 70’

Minimum Lot Depth (Feet) 120’ 120’ 125’ 200’ 110’ 180’ 120’

Minimum Lot Size (SF) 7,200 SF 8,400 SF 10,000 SF 20,000 SF 7,200 SF 18,000 SF 8,400 SF

Number of Units 164 131 137 140 40 44 94

Dwelling Unit % 21.86% 17.46% 18.27% 18.67% 5.34% 5.87% 12.53%

The applicant is requesting to preliminary plat Phase XII of the Breezy Hill Subdivision for 
the purpose of laying out 35 of the 750 lots on ~44.525-acres. The 35 proposed lots will be 
constructed to the Type ‘D’ standards (all standards are displayed in the above table).  In 
addition to the preliminary plat, the applicant has also submitted a preliminary water and 
sanitary sewer plan and a drainage plans establishing that the developer can provide 
adequate utilities to service the proposed phase. 

On January 4, 2019 the Parks and Recreation Board reviewed the preliminary plat and
made a recommendation to approve the plat with the following conditions:

The developer is to pay the pro-rata equipment fees required in the amount of $8,925
[i.e. 35 Lots @ $255.00 Per Lot].  

The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and 
this plat, conforming to the requirements for preliminary plats as stated in the Subdivision 
Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances, is recommended for conditional approval 
pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements.

38
38



Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 
conditions stipulated in the Recommendation section below.

With the exception of the items listed in the Recommendation section of this case memo, 
this plat is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in 
the Municipal Code of Ordinances.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Should the City Council chose to approve the preliminary plat for Breezy Hill, Phase XII, staff 
would recommend the following conditions:

1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be 
addressed prior to the filing of this plat;

2) The developer shall construct a ten (10) foot sidewalk along John King Blvd; and

3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this preliminary plat shall conform to the 
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code, the International Building Code, 
the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and 
with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

On January 15, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to recommend approval of 
the replat with staff recommendations passed by a vote of 6-0 with Commissioner Moeller 
absent.  

39
39



JO
HN

 K
IN

G

LIFE SPRING

CALM CREST

LO
RI

O
N

W
O

O
DE

D

LIMMERHILL

KETTEN

LAZY BROOKE

SE
N

EY

COUNTRY RIDGE

RIDGECROSS

PLEASANT VIEW

NO
AH CREST

CO
ZY

 V
IEW

SO
LA

RO

SHENANDOAH

COLBY BLUFF

W
HISPERING OAKS

AMBER KNOLL

W
ILDBRIAR

PLEASANT BLUFF

HUNTERS CREEK

JO
HN

 K
IN

G

PD-74

AG

PD-80

P2018-047 - BREEZY HILL PHASE XII
PRELIMINARY PLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 280 560 840 1,120140
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I40

40



41
41



42
42



43
43



44
44



45
45



46
46



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

47
47



Memo

MEMORANDUM

TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager

FROM: Amy Williams, P.E., Public Work Director/City Engineer

DATE: January 17, 2019

SUBJECT: Professional Engineering Services Contract
Russwood Drive (S. Lakeshore Drive to Spring Creek Drive)
Reconstruction Project

Funds for the first year of the 2018 Street Bond Program were planned to be allocated
for the engineering design for the reconstruction of ten existing streets sections. Designing
these projects in the first bond year will allow the City to have “construction ready projects” for
the upcoming years of the 2018 Street Bond Program. The City Council, to date, has approved
the engineering contracts for ten roadway sections to be designed. The total engineering
design contract costs for these projects was below the estimated first year’s budgeted amount,
and the additional funds can be used to design additional streets.

Russwood Drive from South Lakeshore Drive to Spring Creek Drive (approximately 700
feet) is a street to be reconstructed in the 2018 Street Bond Program, but the design was not
included in the first year’s bond funds. Due to additional funds being available, Russwood can
be considered for engineering design in the first year of the Street Bond Program.

On October 1, 2018, City Council awarded Binkley & Barfield, Inc. the engineering
design contract for South Lakeshore in the amount of $508,770. Russwood Drive is adjacent to
this section of South Lakeshore Drive which is currently being designed under the above
mentioned contract. Since Russwood is adjacent to this design area, staff requested that the
consultant provide an amendment to their engineering contract (Contract Amendment #1) to
include the design and construction document preparation for Russwood Drive. The amendment
is in the amount of $87,030 for the additional services, which would revise the total contract
amount to be $595,800.

Staff is requesting City Council’s consideration for approval of the Contract Amendment
#1 in the amount of $87,030 to be paid out of the 2018 Street Bond funds and water/wastewater
funds, and take any action necessary.

AW:jmw

Attachments

Cc: Jeremy White, P.E., CFM, Civil Engineer
File

48
48



49
49



50
50



Attachment “A” – Scope of Services – Amendment #1
S. Lakeshore Drive Reconstruction Project (Summit Ridge Drive to Tanya Drive)

For
City of Rockwall

Project Understanding

The City of Rockwall (City) wishes to reconstruct Russwood Street, an existing two (2) lane undivided 
concrete roadway, from S. Lakeshore Drive to Spring Creek Drive, approximately 7,200 feet in length. 
The roadway lies within a residential area of the City of Rockwall. Reconstruction will be two lanes
undivided: one vehicle lane (12.5’) in each direction with concrete curb and gutter and 5 ft sidewalks on 
each side. (Final width to be confirmed in 30% Schematic Alignment). These improvements will be with 
the existing 50’ Right of Way (ROW); however, the contract will include a provision for 2 parcel takes or 
easements in the event that they are required. No Traffic Signals modifications are necessary for the new 
roadway improvements.       

Additional design will include storm sewer, sanitary sewer and water improvements. The existing storm 
sewer will be analyzed using current City drainage criteria and improvements will be designed where the 
existing system is inadequate. Sanitary sewer will be evaluated for capacity and for physical condition, 
and will be replaced or augmented based upon the capacity and condition analysis. Water lines will be 
evaluated to be place within the back of curb and the right-of-way line where possible.

Other design components include coordinating with ONCOR for street lighting, utility coordination, 
TDLR compliance with ADA and traffic control plans.

Binkley & Barfield, Inc. will provide plans, specifications, estimates, and permits for the project and will 
support the City of Rockwall’s advertising/bidding and construction phase services.

This project will be included as part of the S. Lakeshore Drive Reconstruction Project from Summit 
Ridge Drive to Tanya Drive.

Scope of Services

Basic Services

1. Schematic Conceptual Design (30%) 

1.1. Public Meetings and Public Input Surveys 
1.1.1. Meetings

1.1.1.1. Attend two (2) public involvement meeting as directed by City staff. Provide exhibits 
suitable for public meeting use depicting street section, alignments etc. Support City 
staff during meetings by providing technical information, responding to citizen 
questions, and recording citizen input.  

1.1.1.1.1. First Public Meeting will be with adjacent property owners and residents.
Mail out all first public meeting notification for the City.
Revise 30% Schematics Roll Plots based on public input from first public 
meeting and City direction to be used in second public meeting. 

1.1.1.1.2. Second Public Meeting will be with adjacent property owners and residents as 
well as the neighborhood. 

51
51



Mail out all second meeting public meeting notification for the City 
(Neighborhood to be at a typical 500ft buffer off the street) 
Revise 30% Schematics Roll Plots based on public input from second public 
meeting and City direction to be used in City Council presentation for 
schematic and typical section approval.

1.1.2. Public Input Surveys 
1.1.2.1 Work with City to develop Public Input Survey to be sent to adjacent property 
owners and residents.
1.1.2.2   Mail out surveys to adjacent property owner and residents. 
1.1.2.3   Tally survey results and other received public input into presentable format to City 
Staff and City Council. 

1.2. Schematic Roll Plot and Graphics (30%) 
The following services will be provided as part of the Conceptual Design Phase (30%):

1.2.1 Review and research previously prepared construction plans record documents, and 
other pertinent information related to proposed project. 

1.2.2 Review City master plans, design standards, specifications, construction details, and 
other pertinent information that may impact the design. Review of documents will 
include but not limited to:

City of Rockwall Master Thoroughfare Plan 
City of Rockwall Water/Wastewater Master Plan 
City of Rockwall Standards of Design and Construction  
City of Rockwall Trail Master Plan

1.2.3 Develop complete and accurate base map showing all existing Right-of-Way 
(ROW), easements, and utilities.

1.2.4 Develop and evaluate typical sections (up to two (2)) to use for Russwood Street and 
other intersecting streets with in the project limits. 

1.2.5 Develop drainage area maps and analyze street and inlet capacities. 
1.2.6     Develop horizontal alignments for roadway 
1.2.7     Develop horizontal alignments for sidewalk & barrier free ramps 
1.2.8 Develop and evaluate up to two (2) alignments for proposed water lines and 

wastewater lines. 
1.2.9 Develop vertical alignment for roadway and cut cross sections at critical points, at 

center of driveways, alley approaches, cross streets, lead walks, at alignment 
geometric points and at 25’ intervals to evaluate the grading. Determine and show 
approximate location of sidewalk retaining walls.

1.2.10 Review City Master Trail Plan and incorporate hike and bike trails if necessary.  
1.2.11 Prepare 30% schematic paving plan and profile roll plots, produced at 1” =40’ 

horizontal scale and 1” =5’ vertical scale. The horizontal alignment of proposed 
water lines and sewer lines will be included in the roll plots.

1.2.12 Prepare cross sections sheets.  
1.2.13 Meet with City staff and present concept paving plan and profile roll plots. 
1.2.14  Incorporate comments and feedback from City staff and other stakeholders prior to

public meetings. 

1.3. Existing Traffic Analysis and Recommendation (30%) 
The following services will be provided as part of the Conceptual Design Phase (30%): 

1.3.1 City will conduct Traffic Counts, Speed Studies, and Accident Reports from Police 
Department along Russwood Street. 

52
52



1.3.2 Consultant shall take the data provide by the City and analysis in order to provide a 
recommendation in memo format signed and sealed of proposed improvements 
along the corridor.

2. Construction Documents

2.1. Construction Plans, Specifications and Estimates (60%, 90%, 100%) 
2.1.1. Submittals 

Binkley & Barfield, Inc. will submit 60%, 90% and 100% submittals for the City for review 
and comment.  The following will be required for each submittal:

Construction Plans 
o Two (2) Full Size copies – 22”x34” 
o Two (2) Half Size copies – 11”x17” 
o One (1) PDF copy 
o One (1) PDF copy– Scanned City comments previous submittal

Engineers Opinion of Construction Cost 
Construction Contract Template/Specification Book

2.1.2. Construction Plans 
Each plan sheet in the construction plans set will conform to the Engineering Drawing 
Requirements set forth in the City of Rockwall’s Standards of Design and Construction.  Plan 
sheets will also include any other additional documentation, notation, and clarification required 
by the City’s Project Manager to prove design and constructability of the project.  Each stage 
of the construction plan review process will incorporate any changes associated with City 
comments on previous submittals. 

This design will be submitted with the S. Lakeshore Drive Reconstruction Project. Below is a 
table of the additional construction plan sheets required and which submittals they are required. 

Plan Sheets 60% 90% 100%
Existing Condition Plan (1”=20’ scale) X X X
Horizontal/Vertical Control Sheet (1”=40’ scale) X X X
Typical Sections (Existing and Proposed) X X X
Demolition/Removals Plan (1”=20’ scale) X X X
Roadway Plan/Profiles (1”=20’H, 1’=5’V scale) X X X
Alley and Driveway Plan/Profile (1”=20’H, 1’=5’V scale) X X
Intersection Grading Plan (major and critical intersections) X X
Pavement Signage and Striping Plan (1”=20’ scale) X X
Water Plan/Profile (1”=20’H, 1’=5’V scale) X X X
Sanitary Sewer Plan/Profile (1”=20’H, 1’=5’V scale) X X X
Retaining Wall Plan/Profile (1”=20’H, 1’=5’V scale) X X X
Lighting/Illumination Plan X X
Traffic Signal Plans (Existing and Proposed) X X
Construction Sequencing Phasing Narrative X X X
Detour Plan (for each Phase) X X
Traffic Control Plan (for each phase & typ. sections) (1”=40’ scale) X X
Roadway Cross-Sections (25’ int. & crit. pts.) (1”=20’H, 1’=5’V scale) X X X
Structural Layout Sheets X X
Details (for each section of plans) X X

53
53



Each subsection below details out the services to be perform for each section of the 
construction plan set. 

2.1.2.1. Roadway Design
Incorporate the preliminary design submittal review comments
Prepare plan / profile sheets (24”x36” plan sheets at a scale of 1”=20’ horizontal, and 
1”=5’ vertical).  
Analyze all driveways within the project and develop driveway adjustment and 
crosswalk profiles as needed. Typically driveways will be defined vertically by 
profiles. 
Develop design cross-sections

o Develop on 25’ station intervals and other critical points.
o Show pavement and subgrade, right-of-way limits, sides slopes, pavement 

cross slopes, curbs, and retaining walls (if applicable)
o Cross-sections will be provided in the plan set.

Prepare roadway details to clarify intent of design 
Modify standard details as needed and include

2.1.2.2. Utilities
2.1.2.2.1. Public (Water, Wastewater, Storm Drainage, etc.)

Establish the location of existing public utilities based upon information provided by 
the City, SUE and field survey information 

2.1.2.2.2. Franchise Utility Coordination
Identify franchise utility contacts
Notify the City if any relocations are required
Binkley & Barfield, Inc. shall perform the coordination with the franchise utilities if 
any relocations are required.

2.1.2.2.3. Water
Prepare all water plan and profiles.
Check coverage of Fire Hydrants to meet City Standard.
Prepare water details to clarify intent of design. Compile applicable City Standard 
details, modify standard details as needed.

2.1.2.2.4. Wastewater
Prepare all wastewater plans and profiles.
Prepare wastewater details to clarify intent of design. Compile applicable City 
Standard details, modify standard details as needed. 

2.1.2.3. Lighting/Illumination  
Plans will include relocation of light fixtures, conduit locations, and design of 
electrical service.
Engineer will design the street lighting based on the standard ONCOR foundation 
and lighting standards. 
Layout will be provided for ONCOR approval. 
ONCOR will be responsible for installation of standards and conductors. 

2.1.2.4. Traffic Control Plans, Detour Plans, Construction Sequencing/Phasing 
Develop construction sequence plan showing: 

o Construction area for each phase of construction and closure of existing 
travel lanes (if needed).

54
54



o Temporary signing and striping, barricades, and other channelization device
o Narrative of the sequence of work.
o Detour Plan for each construction phase 
o Storm sewer construction phasing. 
o Public utilities relocation phasing. 
o Pedestrian routing during construction. 

Develop typical cross section showing lane widths, edge conditions, channelization 
and proposed construction area. 
Develop typical driveway staging plans for similar driveways. Develop custom 
driveway staging layouts for special conditions.   
Prepare traffic control details to clarify intent of design.

2.1.3. Specifications/Construction Contracts
Prepare general notes, specification data, and final Bid Book in accordance with City of      
Rockwall requirements. Identify and prepare special specifications and/or special 
provisions applicable to the project. Prepare Bid-Tab sheets of applicable items for 
Contractor to fill/present bid prices. 

Contact documents, including the following: 
o City of Rockwall standard construction contract forms 
o Notice to bidders
o Special instructions to bidders 
o Bid form (Bid-Tab) – Electronic for Bidding 
o Standard construction contract
o Performance bond 
o Payment bond 
o Maintenance bond
o Certificate of insurance
o General conditions 
o Special conditions 
o Technical specifications
o Permits (TXDOT, City of Dallas, etc.)
o Geotechnical Report 

2.1.4. Estimates
Compile an overall opinion of probable construction cost based on current market values.  
Cost shall be broken out in to separate schedules for each section of the job.

2.2. Agency Permitting/Coordination (City of Dallas, NTMWD, TDLR, etc.)
2.2.1. City of Dallas

Binkley & Barfield, Inc. to coordinate with the City of Dallas on items related to the 
project for work within the Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline.  This shall include all 
coordination meetings, plan submittals, permit submittals, etc. in order to achieve 
acceptance of proposed improvements.

2.2.2. NTMWD
Binkley & Barfield, Inc. to coordinate with the NTMWD on items related to the 
project where any improvements cross any NTMWD line or facility.  This shall 
include all coordination meetings, plan submittals, permit submittals, etc. in order to 
achieve acceptance of proposed improvements.

55
55



Special Services

3. Data Collection & Property Research / Topographic and Design Survey
3.1. Data Collection and Property Research

3.1.1. Gather existing plat information
3.1.2. Collect property owner and record information  
3.1.3. Gather existing ROW and easement information, identify all easements through typical 

research methodologies (i.e. plats, court house filings, etc.). 
3.1.4. Notify residents within survey limits by mail to inform them of pending field work. 

3.2. Topographic and Design Survey 
3.2.1. The limits of the survey shall be from the intersection of Russwood Street and S. 

Lakeshore Drive to the intersection of Russwood Street and Spring Creek Drive. The 
survey shall be from ROW line to ROW line (50-foot ROW) of Russwood Street. Survey 
will include intersecting roadways extending 200 feet along each leg of the minor 
intersections. (The intersection of Russwood Street and S. Lakeshore Drive plus the first 
200 feet of Russwood Street have already been surveyed as part of the S. Lakeshore Drive 
Reconstruction Project.

3.2.2. Establish horizontal control points at 500’ maximum spacing. 
3.2.3. Establish a vertical control benchmark circuit as needed throughout the project. Use 

existing City established monument information for the City and tie survey into. 
3.2.4. Set control points, which shall be based on NAD-83, on both sides of the roadway, as 

required to maintain horizontal control throughout the project limits.
3.2.5. Perform a field survey to identify and locate existing topographic elements within the 

roadway corridor.  All identified topographic elements shall be tied down horizontally and 
vertically. The field survey shall not limited to the following:

Property corner monumentation 
Existing pavement, curbs, sidewalks, barrier free ramps, etc.
Roadway and lane striping 
Driveways
Existing storm sewer inlets, manholes, junction boxes Headwalls (including culvert 
sizes and invert elevations)
Outfalls, bridges and erosion control 
Existing driveway culverts and swales (flowlines, sizes, types, etc.) 
Guardrail 
Utility manholes, vaults, water valves, water meters, wastewater cleanouts, sprinkler 
heads, telephone poles, power poles, utility markers, other public utilities and 
franchise utilities
Traffic Signal poles, cabinets, pull boxes and other signal equipment 
Signs (excluding temporary signs)
Trees, including species and caliper (all sizes)
Landscape planters, Shrubs, rocks and other features.
Buildings and permanent structures 
Retaining walls
Fencing walls
Fence limits and material types (excluding temporary fences)
Mailboxes (types – wood, brick, stone) 
Other applicable physical features that could impact design 

3.2.6. Perform cross-sections throughout project limits at 25-foot intervals and at grade breaks 
and prepare cross-section field notes.

56
56



3.2.7. Prepare a final topographic drawing in digital format (including contours and breaklines) 
showing the features located in the field, an ASCII coordinate file of the points located in 
the field, and a hard copy of the coordinates and feature descriptions. 

3.2.8. Binkley & Barfield, Inc. will perform site visits for the purposes of reviewing the 
provided survey in the field and making notes for additional survey needs and design 
considerations. 

4. Right-of-Way / Easement Instruments of Conveyance 
4.1. Prepare ROW instruments (narrative and graphic exhibits of ROW takes) and setting new 

property corners (for new ROW only) in the field 
4.1.1. Up to two (2) ROW parcels

4.2. Individual parcel exhibits shall be on 8”x11” paper and pdf copy shall be sealed, dated, and 
signed by a Registered Professional Land Surveyor and shall contain the following: 

4.2.1. Parcel number 
4.2.2. Area required
4.2.3. Area remaining
4.2.4. Legal description
4.2.5. Current owner 
4.2.6. Any existing platted easements or easements filed by separate instrument including 

easements provided by utility companies  
4.2.7. All physical features
4.2.8. Metes and bounds description of parcel to be acquired. The description shall be provided   

on a separate sheet from the exhibit. Each type of easement shall be described separately.    
4.3. Upon written notification by the City of acceptance of the ROW exhibits and instruments, and 

as directed by the City, the surveyor shall set all corners and points of curvature for the 
proposed ROW and submit final sealed plans and exhibits, including location of the control 
points and their NAD-83 reference 

4.4. Binkley & Barfield, Inc. will provide the information listed in Section 2 to the City and/or their 
selected ROW and easement acquisition agent. This task will include the following:

4.4.1. Transmittal of survey and existing property information.  

5. Geotechnical 
5.1. Subsurface Exploration   

5.1.1. Two (5) borings are planned for this project. The borings and report will be thru a 
subconsultant. 
The locations are as follows:

One boring will be located east of the intersection of Russwood Street and S. 
Lakeshore Drive. 
One boring will be located west of the intersection of Russwood Street and Spring 
Creek Drive. 

5.1.2. Boring Services – Pavement borings will be sampled to 15 feet. A total of 75 feet for 
drilling is planned.  

Check samples for consistency with a hand penetrometer
Stake the boring locations using normal taping procedures 
Backfill bore holes and plug at the surface

5.2. Laboratory Services
5.2.1. Considering the planned facilities, anticipated soil conditions, and geology, the following    

laboratory test will be required for classification purpose and to determine strength   
characteristics:  

Visual Classification

57
57



Moisture content and soil identification 
Liquid and plastic limit determinations
Unconfined compression
Calibrated hand penetrometer tests
Lime/ph series tests
Soluble sulfate tests (to determine lime-induced heaving potential) 

5.3. Engineering Services
5.3.1. Prepare an engineering report presenting the following: 

Sample boring location map 
Boring logs and laboratory results
General soil and ground-water conditions
Recommendations will be based on a 30 year design life.
Subgrade design recommendations for lime treated and cement treated
Pavement design recommendation for reinforced concrete, asphalt or combination of 
concrete and asphalt system (including pavement thickness, strength, reinforcement 
size and spacing, and joint spacing)
Recommendations for retaining walls
Earthwork recommendations 

5.3.2. The geotechnical engineer’s design recommendations shall be relied upon by the civil and 
structural engineers for their design.  

5.3.3. Submit one (1) paper copy and one pdf file copy of the report to the City 

End of Amendment #1 Scope of Services 

58
58



59
59



60
60



61
61



62
62



63
63



64
64



65
65



66
66



67
67



68
68



69
69



70
70



71
71



72
72



73
73



74
74



75
75



76
76



77
77



78
78



79
79



80
80



81
81



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

CC: Rick Crowley, City Manager
Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager
Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager

FROM: Andy Hesser, Director of Parks and Recreation

DATE: January 17, 2019

SUBJECT: BASEBALL UMPIRE SERVICES CONTRACT

In December of 2018, staff issued a request for proposals (RFP) to provide professional
baseball umpiring services for our Rockwall Baseball & Softball League (RBSL).  One qualified
response was received. Baseball Nation LLC was the successful respondent. The RFP is
included in the packet.

Costs for the umpiring services are covered by registration fees collected from each participant,
which are deposited into the Recreation Development Fund. Invoices are paid regularly from
the Recreation Development Fund to the umpiring company for actual games played. A not to
exceed amount of $120,000 is estimated based on maximum number of possible games to be
played for leagues and tournaments. Actual amount could be less depending on league
registration numbers, lost games due to rainouts, and tournament participation.

Contingent on City Attorney approval, staff asks that Council consider authorizing the City
Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Baseball Nation LLC in an amount not to
exceed $120,000. Staff is available to answer any questions.

82
82



83
83



84
84



85
85



86
86



87
87



88
88



89
89



90
90



91
91



92
92



93
93



94
94



95
95



96
96



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

97
97



MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor and City Council

FROM: Rick Crowley, City Manager

DATE: January 18, 2019

SUBJECT: 911 Services Contract

The Council may recall the City’s recent action in passing a resolution authorizing the 
establishment of this entity to enhance funding opportunities for regional 911 services. 
The sole source of funding for 911 services are the fees that are charged and collected 
on telephone bills; however, the obligations of the City are noted in the contract.

This item is to secure City Council authorization for the City Manager and Chief of 
Police to execute the contract documents with NCT911 to provide 911 services in the 
City.

  

98
98



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

99
99



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
MEMORANDUM  

TO: Mayor and City Council

CC: Rick Crowley, City Manager
Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 

DATE: January 22, 2019 

SUBJECT: A2018-005; Harlan Properties Inc. Annexation

On January 22, 2019, the City Council will be holding the first (6:00 PM) and second (6:30 PM)
public hearings to consider the voluntary annexation of 79.564-acres of land located within the 
City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).  Suresh Shridharani, on behalf of Harlan Properties Inc.,
is requesting the annexation for the purpose of incorporating the property into the City of 
Rockwall to develop a residential subdivision. 

Staff has followed the procedures for annexations as set forth in Chapter 43, Municipal 
Annexations, of the Texas Local Government Code relative to notifying affected property 
owners and publishing notices in the newspaper and on the City’s website.  Attached to this 
memorandum is a location map and service plan for the proposed annexation.  In addition, this 
document has been made available to the public at City Hall and on the City’s website.

No action on this matter is required by the City Council on January 22, 2019.  The 1st reading of 
the annexation ordinance is scheduled for February 18, 2019 and the 2nd (and final) reading of 
the ordinance is scheduled for March 4, 2019.

100
100



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!( !(!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!( !( !( !(

TA M

M
IE

LN

RO
DR

IG
UE

Z 
LN

STATE HIGHWAY 276

ST
EP

HA
N

I L
N

BL
A

C
KL

A
N

D 
RD

E FM
 550

MARLIN DR

MARRS, J R
SURVEY

JOHNSON, R E
SURVEY

WILSON, A M
SURVEY

MERRYMAN, J
SURVEY

11778

11826

11
78

8 11789

11
82

4

11
77

9

11
82

5

11
82

9
11

83
1

12
86

9

12
87

2 12
87

4

12
87

6

31
56

8

51
37

9

51
38

0

51381

51
37

8

57
18

7

60
89

4

61
34

9

61350

61351

63
13

4

86924

86771

86919

86920

88210

88538

88
53

9

0

0 100 200 300
Feet¯City of

Rockwall
Date: 11/7/2018

CITY OF ROCKWALL GIS

STATE HWY 276 EAST ANNEXATION
79.564 Acres

S 
FM

 5
48

RO
D

RI
G

UE
Z 

LN

E LINDA LN

TA
M

M
IE

 LN

R U
G

ER
D

R

HODGES
 LN

CRAWFORD CIR
SO

UT
HE

RN
 D

R

M
A

RK
 LN

MCDANIEL
 LN

ST
EP

HA
N

I L
N

WINCHESTER DR BL
A

C
KL

A
N

D 
RD

MARLIN DR

EASTRIDGE DR

STATE HIGHWAY 276

N MUNSON RD

REM
IN

G
TO

N
 DR

E 
FM

 5
50

N
O

RT
H

FO
RK

RD

Subject
Property

")276

HARLAN PROPERTIES INC
3,037,320.56 Sq. Ft.

69.727 Acres

N 7,016,938.629
E 2,626,520.649

POB

N 89°31' 08" E
297.01''

N
 0

0°
58

' 2
2"

 W
   

26
74

.1
5'

S 01°02' 36" E   1681.64'

J Merriman Survey
Abstract 155 - Tract 3

City of
Rockwall

N 89°27' 50" E
491.69''

N 88°50' 01" E
343.67''

S 00°55' 22" E    1001.69'
#

S 00°58' 29" E
107.674'

N 89°17' 09" E    2447.887'

S 89°26' 19" W    1845.456'

#

N 2°55' 30" W
120.102'

S 88°47' 29" W    1133.553'"
S 89° 27' 07" W

518.347'

#

S 89° 26' 19" W
80.031'

OVERALL
ANNEXATION AREA
3,465,804.520 Sq. Ft.

79.564 Acres

")276

")548

")550

")550

The data represented on this map was obtained with the best methods
available. Data is supplied from various sources and accuracy may be out
of the City of Rockwall’s control. The verification of accuracy and / or
content lies entirely with the end user. The City of Rockwall does not
guarantee the accuracy of contained information. All Information is provided
‘As Is’ with no warranty being made, either expressed or implied.

Legend
Subject Property

Parcels

City Limits

101
101



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 

BEING an approximate 79.564 acre tract of land situated in the J. Merriman Survey, Abstract 155, A.M. 
Wilson Survey, Abstract 223, and J.R. Marr’s Survey, Abstract 152 as recorded in the County of Rockwall, 
Texas and being more particularly described as follows: 

 
BEGINNING at a point in the Northwestern corner of Abstract J.R. Marr’s Survey, Tract 10-1 (105.925 
acres) and the South Right of Way line of State Highway 276, (NAD83- State Plane Coordinates, North 
Central Texas Zone 4202, N 7,016,938.629, E 2,626,520.649), said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
  
THENCE N.02°55'30"W., crossing State Highway 276, a distance of 120.102 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE N.89°17'09"E., along the North Right of Way line of State Highway 276, a distance of 2447.887 
feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE N.00°58'22"W., along the West property line of Abstract 155, Tract 3 (a 69.727 acre tract) a 
distance of 2674.15 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE N.89°31'08"E., along the North property line of said tract, a distance of 297.01 feet for a point; 
 
THENCE N.89°27'50"E., along the North property line, a distance of 491.69 feet for a point; 
 
THENCE N.88°50'01"E., along the North property line, a distance of 343.67 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.00°55'22"E., along the East property line, a distance of 1001.69 feet for a point; 
 
THENCE S.01°02'36"E., along the East property line, a distance of 1681.64 feet for a point; 
 
THENCE S.00°58'29"E., crossing State Highway 276, a distance of 107.674 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.88°47'29"W., along the South Right of Way line of State Highway 276, a distance of 1133.553 
feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.89°27'07"W., along said Right of Way line, a distance of 518.347 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.89°26'19"W., crossing Farm to Market 550, a distance of 80.031 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.89°26'19"W., continuing along the South Right of Way line of State Highway 276, a distance of 
1845.456 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Containing 3,465,804.520 square feet or 79.564 acres, more 
or less. 
 
This description is intended to follow any adjacent recorded tract lines and existing City Limits or Road 
Right of Way lines. 
 
END OF DESCRIPTION. 

102
102



SERVICE PLAN FOR ANNEXED AREA
Annexation Case No. A2018-005 
City and County of Rockwall, Texas

Acreage Annexed: 79.564-acres

Survey Abstract and County: Tract 3 of the J. Merriman Survey, Abstract No. 155, Rockwall 
County, Texas

Date of Adoption of Annexation Ordinance: March 4, 2019

Municipal services to the acreage described above shall be furnished by or on behalf of the City 
of Rockwall, Texas, at the following levels and in accordance with the following schedule:

(A) Police Services

(1) Patrolling, responses to calls, and other routine police services, within the limits of 
existing personnel and equipment, will be provided within 60 days of the effective date 
of annexation.

(2) As development and construction commence within this area, sufficient police 
personnel and equipment will be provided to continue to furnish this area the level of 
police services consistent with police services available in other parts of the City with 
land uses and population densities similar to those projected in the annexed area.

(B) Fire Services

(1) Fire protection by the present personnel and the present equipment of the fire 
Department, within the limitations of available water and distances from existing fire 
stations, will be provided to this area within 60 days of the effective date of annexation.

(2) As development and construction commences within this area, sufficient fire personnel 
and equipment will be provided to continue to furnish this area the level of fire services 
consistent with fire service available in other parts of the City with land uses and 
population densities similar to those projected in the annexed area.

(C) Health and Code Compliance Services

(1) Enforcement of the City’s health ordinances and regulations including, but not limited 
to, weed and brush ordinances, junked and abandoned vehicle ordinances, food 
handlers ordinances and animal control ordinances, shall be provided within this area 
on the effective date of the annexation ordinance. These ordinances and regulations 
will be enforced through the use of existing personnel. Complaints of ordinance or 
regulation violations within this area will be responded and investigated by existing 
personnel beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance.

(2) The City’s building, plumbing, electrical, gas heating, air conditioning and all other 
construction codes will be enforced within this area beginning with the effective date of 
the annexation ordinance. Existing personnel will be used to provide these services.

(3) The City’s zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances shall be enforced in this area 
beginning on the effective date of the annexation ordinance.

103
103



(4) All inspection services furnished by the City of Rockwall, but not mentioned above, will 
be provided to this area beginning on the effective date of the annexation ordinance.  
Any property owner or his/her assigns who in good faith has a new building or 
structure, as defined in the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, under construction on 
the effective date of annexation shall be exempted from these inspections for that 
building or structure under construction for a period of one year from the effective date 
of annexation. For the purpose of this ordinance “under construction” shall mean any 
work that requires a building permit from the City of Rockwall. 

(5) As development and construction commence within this area, sufficient personnel will 
be provided to continue to furnish this area the same level of Health and Code 
compliance services as are furnished throughout the City.

(D) Planning and Zoning Services

(1) The planning and zoning jurisdiction of the City will extend to this area on the effective 
date of the annexation ordinance. City planning will thereafter encompass this 
property, and it shall be entitled to consideration for zoning in accordance with the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, Landscape Ordinance and Code of 
Ordinances.

(E) Recreation and Leisure Services

(1) Residents of this property may utilize all existing recreational and leisure services 
facilities and sites throughout the City beginning with the effective date of the 
annexation ordinance.

(2) Existing parks, playgrounds, swimming pools and other recreation and leisure facilities 
within this property shall, upon dedication to and acceptance by the City, be 
maintained and operated by the City of Rockwall.

(F) Solid Waste Collection

(1) Solid waste collection shall be provided to the property owner in accordance with 
existing City policies as to frequency and charges, beginning on the effective date of 
annexation except for properties that are served by a privately owned solid waste 
management service provider. Such properties will be allowed to continue private 
service for a period of two years from the effective date of annexation at which time the 
property will be required to begin service with a franchised solid waste contractor 
within the City of Rockwall. 

(G) Streets

(1) The City of Rockwall’s existing policies with regard to street maintenance, applicable 
throughout the entire City, shall apply to this property beginning immediately as of the 
effective date of the annexation ordinance.

(2) As development, improvements or construction of streets to the City standards 
commence within this property, the policies of the City of Rockwall with regard to 
impact fees and participation in the cost thereof, acceptance upon completion, and 
maintenance after completion, shall apply.

(3) The same level of maintenance shall be provided to streets within this property that 
have been accepted by the City of Rockwall as is provided to like City streets 
throughout the City.

104
104



(H) Water Services

(1) Connection to existing City water mains for water services for domestic, commercial 
and industrial use within this property will be provided in accordance with existing City 
policies. Upon connection to existing mains, water will be provided at rates established 
by City ordinance for such services throughout the City.

(2) Water mains of the City will be extended in accordance with provisions of the Code of 
Ordinances and other applicable ordinances and regulations. City participation in the 
costs of these extensions shall be in accordance with applicable City ordinances and 
regulations and will be provided as otherwise available in other parts of the City with 
topography, land uses, population densities similar to those reasonably contemplated 
or projected in the annexed area.

(3) Water mains which are within the annexed area and are owned and operated by the 
City shall be maintained beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance 
or upon acquisition by the City.

(4) Private water lines within this property shall be maintained by their owners, in 
accordance with existing policies applicable throughout the City.

(I) Sanitary Sewer Services

(1) Connections to existing City sanitary sewer mains for sanitary sewage service in this 
area will be provided in accordance with the existing City policies. Upon connection, 
sanitary sewage service will be provided at rates established by City ordinances for 
such services throughout the City.

(2) Sanitary sewer mains and/or lift stations which are within the annexed area and are 
connected to City mains shall be maintained by the City of Rockwall beginning with the 
effective date of the annexation ordinance or upon acquisition by the City.

(3) Sanitary sewer mains of the City will be extended in accordance with the provisions of 
the Code of Ordinances and engineering standards and other applicable ordinances 
and regulations. City participation in the costs of these extensions shall be in 
accordance with applicable City ordinances and regulations and will be provided as 
otherwise availably in other parts of the City with topography, land uses, and 
population densities similar to those reasonably contemplated or projected in the area.

(4) Previously granted exceptions to the requirements of connections to the city’s sanitary 
sewer treatment system shall be continued until such alternate systems are 
determined to no longer function to meet the sanitary sewer needs of the subdivision 
granted the exception.  

(J) Public Utilities  

(1) Other public utilities will be provided by the City’s franchisee or a provider holding a 
certificate of convenience issued by the state to serve that area.

(K) Miscellaneous

(1) General municipal administration services of the City shall be available to the annexed 
area beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance. 

105
105



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

106
106



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
MEMORANDUM  

TO: Mayor and City Council

CC: Rick Crowley, City Manager
Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 

DATE: January 22, 2019 

SUBJECT: Z2018-050; SUP for Covered Patio at 5808 Constellation Circle

On January 10, 2019, the Board of Adjustments (BOA) approved a variance [Order No. BOA 
2019-1-V] to reduce the required rear setback from ten (10) feet to three (3) feet in order to 
allow the applicant to construct a covered patio on the subject property.  Based on this, the 
applicant has requested to withdraw the Specific Use Permit (SUP) request. According to 
Section 5, Application Withdrawal, of the Article II, Authority and Administrative Procedures, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), any case that has been published in the newspaper and 
notifications of a public hearing sent out must be placed on the public hearing agenda and acted 
upon by the applicable body.  Staff should note, should the City Council choose to accept the 
applicant’s request, a motion would be required.

107
107



108
108



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

109
109



CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 01/22/2019

APPLICANT:  Kyle Jenkins; Jenkins Organization

AGENDA ITEM: Z2018-055; SUP for Mini-Warehouse

SUMMARY:

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kyle Jenkins of the Jenkins
Organization on behalf of Michael Swiercinsky of 7.1 Ridge, LLC for the approval of a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for a Mini-Warehouse facility on a 2.595-acre tract of land being a portion of 
Lot 1, Block A, Sky Ridge Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 
Commercial (C) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, located southwest of 
the intersection of W. Yellow Jacket Lane and Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any action 
necessary.

PURPOSE AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST: 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a mini-warehouse
(i.e. Lakeview Storage) in a Commercial (C) District.  The proposed mini-warehouse will be 
three (3) stories, ~126,600 SF, and contain 800 climate-controlled units.  According to the 
applicant, the mini-warehouse will be constructed to resemble an office building, and is intended 
to blend in with the surrounding buildings.  The facility will be accessible from 6 AM to 10 PM. 
The majority of the units will be accessed from internal corridors and any exterior doors will be 
limited to the rear building elevation.  The applicant has also stated that the existing tree line will 
be preserved to provide a natural buffer from the residential properties to the northwest.

According to Section 1.01, Use of Land and Buildings, of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) a mini-warehouse facility is permitted in a Commercial (C) 
District by Specific Use Permit (SUP).  Furthermore, section 2.1.10, Wholesale, Distribution, and 
Storage, of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) details the 
specific land use requirements for a mini-warehouse facility. The following is a summary of the 
applicant’s proposal and its compliance to these land use requirements:

Code Requirement Proposed Plan Compliance
The maximum site area shall not exceed five 
(5) acres. 2.6-Acres In Conformance

The maximum number of storage units shall 
not exceed 125 units per acre. 800 total units.  Not In Conformance1

The maximum height shall not exceed one (1) 
story, except for the residential unit which 
shall be less that 36-feet.

The proposed buildings is three (3) stories and 
~34-feet in height Not In Conformance

The minimum number of parking spaces
required is two (2).  Parking requirement is 
three (3) spaces plus one (1) per 100 units.

11 parking spaces are required and 11
parking spaces are provided. In Conformance

No direct access from FM740, SH205, SH66, 
SH276, FM3097, FM552, FM549 or John King
Boulevard.

The concept plan shows one (1) driveway 
on FM-740. Not In Conformance

Overhead doors shall not face adjacent 
streets.

The buildings are not visible from any 
adjacent streets or roadways. In Conformance

110
110



All exterior walls facing the front, side and rear 
property lines shall be 100% brick 
construction. 

All exterior walls facing the street will 
incorporate brick. In Conformance

The front, side and rear building setback 
areas shall incorporate clustered landscaping. 

The concept rendering shows clustered 
landscaping along the perimeter of the 

facility.
In Conformance

Gates shall be incorporated limiting access to 
the facility. Wrought iron gates are being proposed. In Conformance

Screening fences shall be wrought iron or 
masonry.

Landscape screening and wrought Iron 
fencing are shown on the site plan. In Conformance

Concrete shall be used for all paving. All paving will be concrete. In Conformance
Roof shall have a minimum roof pitch of 1:3 
and be constructed with metal standing seam.

The applicant is proposing to utilize a flat 
roof design. Not In Conformance

Lighting standards shall be limited to a 
maximum of 20-feet in height.

Will be handled at the time of site plan 
submittal on the Photometric Plan. The SUP 

Ordinance include this requirement under 
the Operational Conditions.

Photometric Plan 
(Site Plan)

A single residential unit not exceeding 1,600 
SF in size is permitted. There will be no residential unit. In Conformance

Outside Storage shall be prohibited. The site will not have outside storage.  In Conformance

Notes:  
1: At 2.6-acres a maximum of 325 units are permitted.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The land uses adjacent to the subject property are all follows:

North: Directly north of the subject property is a vacant tract of land zoned Commercial (C) 
District followed by a railroad (i.e. Union Pacific/Dallas Garland N. E.).  Beyond this is 
a single-family residential subdivision (i.e. Lakeridge Park).  This area is zoned 
Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District. 

    
South: Directly south of the subject property is Ridge Road [FM 740], which is identified as a 

M4D (Major Collector, four [4] lane, divided roadway) on the City’s Master 
Thoroughfare Plan. Beyond this is an office building and several commercial 
businesses (e.g. Big D Auto Care, Wal-Mart, etc.) This area is zoned Commercial (C) 
District. 

East: Directly east of the subject property a vacant tract of land followed by Ridge Road 
[FM-740], which is identified as a M4D (Major Collector, four [4] lane, divided 
roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan. Beyond this are several 
commercial businesses (e.g. Little Caesar’s, Everybody Massage, etc.)  These areas 
are zoned Commercial (C) District.

West: Directly west of the subject property is a house of worship (i.e. Great Faith Church)
and several commercial businesses (e.g. State Farm, Family Dental, etc.) followed 
by a railroad (i.e. Union Pacific/Dallas Garland N. E.).  Beyond this is a single-family 
residential subdivision (i.e. Turtle Cove Subdivision).  This area is zoned Planned 
Development District 2 (PD-2) for single-family land uses. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:

When looking at the requirements contained in the Unified Development Code (UDC), it is 
important to note that these requirements were drafted with the intent of regulating campus style 
mini-warehouse facilities. Campus style mini-warehouse facilities typically incorporate multiple 
buildings that are generally one (1) story in height, and have non-climate controlled storage 

111
111



units accessible from the exterior of the building.  Due to the mini-warehouse requirements, the 
applicant is seeking variances to the number of units per acre, the maximum number of stories, 
the pitched roof requirement, and to allow direct access from Ridge Road [FM-740]. The facility 
proposed by the applicant is a compact design, which allows more units in a smaller footprint.  
Although the proposed building is three (3) stories, the proposed building is ~34-feet in height, 
which conforms to the maximum height requirement of 36-feet. Additionally, only two (2) stories 
will be visible from Ridge Road [FM-740].  The proposed facility is intended to have the 
appearance of an office building with all units being climate controlled and accessible from the 
interior of the building.  Specifically, the proposed structure is three (3) stories in height--in 
which only two (2) stories are visible from Ridge Road--and utilizes a flat roof design with a 
parapet (more typical of an office or commercial development). Since these do not meet the 
mini-warehouse requirements, variances are required. The proposed driveway shown on the 
concept plan will require permission from TxDOT as well as a traffic impact analysis (TIA) at the 
time of site plan.  In addition, the applicant is proposing to limit the hours of operation from 6:00 
AM to 10 PM, which is consistent to a non-residential land use. The mini-warehouse land use is 
considered to be a lower-intensity land use that does not generate high volumes of traffic (i.e.
~15-20 visitors per day according to the applicant). With that being said, the three (3) 
requirements not in compliance with the Unified Development Code (UDC) do not appear to 
negatively impact the surrounding developments.  Additionally, the proposed design of the 
facility (i.e. appearance of an office building) provides for easier redevelopment opportunities 
than the traditional campus style mini-warehouse facilities should the use transition in the future.
Staff should note, approval of the applicant’s request is a discretionary decision for the City
Council, pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Should this 
request be approved, the applicant will be required to submit a site plan, landscape plan, 
photometric plan, and building elevations to the Architectural Review Board (ARB) and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. Attached is a concept plan and building elevations, and 
conformance to these plans is a requirement of the draft ordinance. 

NOTIFICATION:

On December 28, 2018, staff sent 77 notices to property owners and residents within 500-feet 
of the subject property.  Additionally, staff notified the Lakeside Village and Turtle Cove 
Homeowner’s Associations (HOA’s) which are the only HOA’s/Neighborhood Associations 
within 1,500-feet of the subject property.  Additionally, staff posted a sign on the subject 
property as required by the UDC.  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received one (1) 
email and two (2) notices in opposition and one (1) notice in favor of this request.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Should the City Council choose to approve the Specific Use Permit (SUP) request, the following 
conditions of approval should be adopted with this case: 

1. The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the operational 
conditions contained in the SUP ordinance and summarized as follows:  

a) The development shall generally conform to the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of 
the attached ordinance.

b) The building elevations shall generally conform to the Concept Building Elevations
depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of the attached ordinance. 

c) The maximum number of storage units provided shall not exceed 800 units for the 
facility.

112
112



d) The maximum number of floors is limited to three (3) stories. 

e) The mini-warehouse facility shall not be greater than 36-feet in height.

f) No outside storage of any kind shall be allowed (including the outside storage of boats, 
recreational vehicles, trailers, and motor or self-propelled vehicles).

g) Businesses shall not be allowed to operate within individual storage units.

h) The commercial operation of rental trucks and trailers shall be prohibited.

i) The developer shall maintain the treeline adjacent to the northwest property line. 

2. Any construction or building necessary to complete this request must conform to the 
requirements set forth by the UDC, the International Building Code, the Rockwall Municipal 
Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable 
regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

On January 15, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to deny the request for 
approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a mini-warehouse in a Commercial (C) District 
passed by a vote of 5-2 with Commissioners Moeller and Lyons dissenting.  In accordance with 
Subsection 8.4, Protest of Proposed Zoning Change, of Section 8, City Council Authority, of 
Article II, Authority and Administrative Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), 
should the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend denial of a change in zoning, a 
favorable vote of 3/4 majority of all Council Members present is required in order to be 
approved. 

113
113



RID
GE

HARBOR COVE

TURTLE COVE

GULLW
ING

WHITE HILLS

LO
CH VIEW

YELLOW JACKET

OLD COUNTY

RID
GE

YELLOW JACKET

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

I114
114



RID
GE

RID
GE

OLD COUNTY

TURTLE COVE

WHITE HILLS

VIGOR

LA JOLLA POINTE LA
 J

O
LL

A
PO

IN
TE

LAKESIDE

LAKEDALE

SUNCREST

LA
K

EV
IE

W

CLIFF

VIEW

PRESTON

LOCH

VIEW

HARBOR COVE

BLUFFVIEW

BRIAR OAKS

LEXINGTON

DANIELLE

LAKESHORE

LAKEDALE

INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30

PRESTON

INTERSTATE 30

GULLW
ING

CHANNEL RIDGE

W
OODLAND

LAKEHILL

STAFFORD

INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30

GREENCREST

YELLOW JA
CKET

YELLOW JACKET

INTERSTATE 30
INTERSTATE 30

0 330 660 990 1,320165
Feet

I

RID
GE

MIMS

RALP
H HALL

INTERSTATE 30

SID
S

KYLE

LAKESIDE

YEL
LO

W
 JA

CKET

GOLIAD

VILLAGE

LA
KE

SH
O

RE

BECKY

HAIL

GREENCREST

LA
KE

VI
EW

LA
 JO

LLA
 POINTE

LEXINGTON

GOLIAD

RI
DG

E

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 12/17/2018

115
115



From: Morales, Laura
To:
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Brooks, Korey
Subject: Neighborhood Noification Program: Notice of zoning request
Date: Friday, December 28, 2018 2:40:55 PM
Attachments: Z2018-HOA Map.pdf

PUBLIC NOTICE.pdf

To whom it may concern:
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notification
to inform your organization and residents of a request for a zoning change that lies within 1,500 feet
of the boundaries of your neighborhood or subdivision.  As the primary contact for the organization,
you are encouraged to share this information with the residents of your subdivision.  Please find
attached a map detailing the location of the subject property requesting the zoning change in
relation to your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is a summary of the zoning request that
was published in the Rockwall Herald Banner December 28, 2018.   The Planning and Zoning
Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday 1/15/2019 at 6:00 p.m., and the City Council will
hold a public hearing on Tuesday 1/22/2019 at 6:00 p.m. These hearings will be held in the City
Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. These hearings will be held in the City Council
Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. If you have any questions or comments regarding this
request, the contact information for the Planning Department is listed below.  Additional
information can also be found at
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases
 

Z2018-055-

Mini-Warehouse

FM-740

 
If this email is reaching you in error, please forward it to your HOA or neighborhood group
representative and update the contact information at http://www.rockwall.com/planning/hoa.asp.
 
Sincerely,
 
 
Laura Morales
Planning & Zoning Coordinator
City of Rockwall Planning & Zoning Department
972-771-7745 | 972-772-6438
Lmorales@rockwall.com |http://www.rockwall.com/planning/
 

116
116



RID
GE

WHITE HILLS

YELLOW JA
CKET

GREENCREST

TURTLE COVE

INTERSTATE 30
VIGOR

OLD COUNTY

RID
GE

INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30

YELLOW JACKET

INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30

0 240 480 720 960120
Feet

I

RID
GE R

D

MIMS RD
E RALPH HALL 

PKWY

LAKESIDE DR

E INTERSTATE 30

W
 YEL

LO
W

 JA
CK

ET
 LN

KYLE DR

VILLAGE DR

LEXINGTON DR

RI
DG

E 
RDVicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 12/12/2018

117
117



118
118



119
119



120
120



From: Planning
To: Brooks, Korey
Subject: FW: Case No. 22018-055: SUP for Mini Warehouse-Opposed
Date: Friday, January 11, 2019 10:35:18 AM

 
 
From: cmrotramel@att.net 
Sent: Friday, January 11, 2019 5:24 AM
To: Planning
Subject: Case No. 22018-055: SUP for Mini Warehouse-Opposed

I received a letter for a zoning request for a mini warehouse and I am very much opposed to
this.
This will add to congestion on Ridge Road and devalue property values.
 
Christie Rotramel
621 Harbor Cove Drive
Turtlecove Subdivision
 
Sent from Windows Mail
 

121
121



122
122



123
123



12
4

12
4



 

125
125



SH
EE

T 
NU

M
BE

R

IS
SU

E/
RE

VI
SI

ON
 R

EC
OR

D

DE
SI

GN
 P

RO
FE

SS
IO

NA
L

PR
OJ

EC
T 

NA
M

E

DR
AW

IN
G 

FI
LE

PR
OJ

EC
T 

NU
M

BE
R

TH
IS

 D
OC

UM
EN

T 
IS

RE
LE

AS
ED

 F
OR

 T
H

E 
PU

RP
OS

E 
OF

IN
TE

RI
M

 R
EV

IE
W

 U
ND

ER
 T

H
E

AU
TH

OR
IT

Y 
OF

TR
OY

 L
. M

OO
RE

 II
I #

11
93

26
ON

 T
H

E 
DA

TE
 S

H
OW

N 
ON

 T
H

E 
DA

TE
ST

AM
P.

 IT
 IS

 N
OT

 T
O 

BE
 U

SE
D 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

, B
ID

DI
NG

,
OR

 P
ER

M
IT

 P
UR

PO
SE

S.

©
 C

op
yr

ig
ht

 (
as

 d
at

ed
 b

el
ow

).
 T

hi
s 

dr
aw

in
g 

an
d 

al
l r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
ns

 th
er

eo
f a

re
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
of

  M
3 

EN
GI

NE
ER

IN
G.

 It
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 n

am
ed

 h
er

eo
n.

Re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
 w

ri
tt

en
 c

on
se

nt
 o

f i
s 

un
la

w
fu

l. 
Al

l c
op

ie
s 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
re

tu
rn

ed
 to

up
on

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
om

pl
et

io
n.

CI
VI

L 
EN

GI
NE

ER
IN

G 
| 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 D
ES

IG
N

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

A B C D E F G H I J

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

SC
AL

E

PR
OF

ES
SI

ON
AL

 S
EA

L

PR
OJ

EC
T 

ST
AT

US

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E

GE
NE

RA
L 

LE
GE

ND

30
%

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
PL

AN
S30

%
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N 

PL
AN

S

M
3
 E

N
G

IN
E
E
R

IN
G

2
5
9
3
 S

. 
G

E
S

S
N

E
R

 R
D

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

3
H

O
U

S
T
O

N
, 
T
E
X
A
S

 7
7
0
6
3

P
H

: 
5
1
2
.8

2
0
.3

2
6
5

F
IR

M
 #

1
8
8
6
3

w
w

w
.M

3
e
n
g
in

e
e
r
in

g
.c

o
m

im
a
g
in

e
 |

 d
e
s
ig

n
 |

 b
u
il

d

M
AS

TE
R 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

8 
of

 2
0

TB
DRO

CK
W

AL
L 

ST
OR

AG
E

M
AP

 G
RI

D 
#

 T
BD

M
AP

SC
O 

#
 T

BD

22
00

 R
ID

GE
 R

OA
D

RO
CK

W
AL

L,
 T

EX
AS

 7
50

87

18
00

3
18

00
3-

SI
TE

.D
W

G

GE
NE

RA
L 

LE
GE

ND

1"
 =

 3
0'

E

W

N

S

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

Z
O

N
IN

G
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

30
%

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
DR

AW
IN

GS

IM
P

E
R

V
IO

U
S

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

12
6

12
6



12
7

12
7



12
8

12
8



SI
TE

 L
IN

E 
ST

U
D

Y

50
7'

49
6'

47
8'

48
2'

46
2'

12
9

12
9



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Rockwall

HORIZON RD

N
 G

O
LIA

D
 ST

RID
GE R

D

W RUSK ST

SU MMIT RIDGE DR

S
GOLIAD

ST

N
LAKESHORE

DR

SH 276

IH
 3

0

WILLIAMS ST

S
LA

K
E

SHOR
E

D
R

W
YE

LL

OW
JA

CKET
LN

RALP
H

HALL PKWY

C
O

R
P

O
R

AT
E 

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

S 
FM

 5
49

SUMMER LEE DR

S
JO

H
N

K
IN

G
B

LV
D

FM
 3

54
9

FM 549

N
JO

H
N

K
IN

G
B

L VD

FM 552

E SH 66

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

ICity of
Rockwall

Lake Ray
Hubbard

§̈¦

ID NAME UNITS
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

130
130



1"
 =

 1
00

'

SH
EE

T

PROJECT No.

FILE: 18003-SITE  SUP.DWG

SCALE:

DA
TE

: 2
0/

11
/2

01
8

DRAWN BY:

SHEET SIZE: 11X17

LAKEVIEW STORAGE

1"=100'

TLM

18003THE JENKINS ORGANIZATION

EXHIBIT A SUP
BOUNDARY EXHIBIT

A

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

2593 S. GESSNER RD, SUITE 13
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77063
PH: 512.820.3265
FIRM #18863
www.m3engineering.com

13
1

13
1



13
2

13
2



133
133



134
134



EXHIBIT ‘A
EXHIBIT ‘B’

mini-warehouse 
facility

Exhibit ‘A’ Exhibit ‘B’
Subject Property

Ordinance No. 04-38

Ordinance No. 04-38

mini-warehouse facility 
Permissible Uses Ordinance No. 04-38 Subject 
Property

, Wholesale, Distribution, and Storage, Use Standards
Permissible Uses, and , Commercial (C) District, Commercial District 
and Scenic Overlay (SOV) District Overlay Districts
District Development Standards Ordinance No. 04-38

ffacilityacilityfff

IBIT ‘B’

ce No. 04e No -3838

minimin -i w
Permissible Permissible Usesses
PropertyProperty

Permissible UPermissible U
andand

rict Dev

BIT ‘AA

minim

A’ EE
Subject Propertyperty

Ordinanc

acility acility 

ale, Distribution, and Stale, Distributio
, Co, Commer

enic Overlay (SOV) Dnic Overlay (SOV)
ndardsdards

135
135



mini-warehouse facility

Concept Plan Exhibit ‘B’

Concept Building Elevations
Exhibit ‘C’

including the outside storage of boats, 
recreational vehicles, trailers, and motor or self-propelled vehicles

Council Approval or Denial
Authority and Administrative Procedures

after proper notice
Permissible Uses

TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS

xhibit ‘Chibit ‘C’

recreational vrecreational 

AuthAuth

minimini-i warehousewarehou facifac

Concept PlanConcep

Concept BC

lers, and motor or selfmotor or f

ddminiminiddd strative Procedurstrative Proceduriii

after proper nafter proper n

t ‘Bt ‘B’’

vationsns

he outside storage outside storage of bo
ehicleses

Council ApprovaCouncil Approva

Permissible Permissible

WO THOUSO TH AND DOLND DOS

136
136



Mayor

City Secretary

City Attorney

January 22, 2019

February 4, 2019

City SecretarCity Sec

MaM

ey

2, 20192019

ry 4, 2019ry 4, 20

137
137



138
138



139
139



140
140



141
141



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

142
142



CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 01/22/2019

APPLICANT: Bill Bricker, Columbia Development Company, LLC

AGENDA ITEM: Z2018-057; Amendment to Planned Development 59 (PD-59)

SUMMARY:

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Bill Bricker of Columbia Development 
Company, LLC for the approval of an amendment to Planned Development District 59 (PD-59) for 
the purpose of incorporating a 0.786-acre tract of land for Residential-Office (RO) District land uses
being a 56.586-acre tract of land identified as a portion of R. Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 52 (PD-52) and Planned 
Development District 59 (PD-59), located between W. Washington Street and T. L. Townsend Drive, 
and take any action necessary.

PURPOSE & BACKGROUND: 

The subject property is a 0.786-acre tract of land that is located between Washington Street and T. 
L. Townsend Drive and is currently part of Planned Development District 52 (PD-52) for Heavy 
Commercial (HC) District land uses.  The tract of land is currently vacant and is adjacent to Planned 
Development District 59 (PD-59).  The applicant is requesting the approval of an amendment to 
Planned Development District 59 (PD-59) to incorporate the subject property and designate it for 
Residential-Office (RO) District land uses.  

On October 18, 2004, the City Council passed Ordinance No. 04-59, establishing Planned 
Development District 59 (PD-59) as the Park Place Subdivision.  In its current configuration, Park 
Place consists of the following Phases: [1] Phase 1, which is zoned for Neighborhood Services (NS) 
District land uses; [2] Phase 2, which is zoned for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses; and [3] 
Phase 3, which is zoned for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) and Residential-Office (RO) District (i.e. 
live/work) land uses. The applicant is proposing to establish Phase 4 by incorporating the subject 
property for Residential-Office (RO) District land uses and removing the Residential-Office (RO) 
District land uses from Phase 3 (i.e. Phase 3 will only allow SF-7 land uses). A concept plan has 
been submitted showing that the new Phase will be adjacent to the western boundary of Phase 3
and will consist of five (5) additional lots accessible via Park Place Boulevard.  One (1) of the lots 
currently exists in Phase 3.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows:

North: Directly north of the subject property is a vacant tract of land within the Park Place 
Subdivision followed by several single-family homes.  These areas are zoned Planned 
Development District 52 (PD-52) for Heavy Commercial (HC) District land uses, Single-
Family 7 (SF-7) District, and Planned Development District 59 (PD-59) for Single-Family 7 
(SF-7) District land uses.    

South: Directly south of the subject property is a railroad (i.e. Union Pacific/Dallas Garland N. E.)
followed by several vacant tracts of land and the Rockwall County maintenance facility.

143
143



Beyond this is Whitmore Drive and two (2) commercial businesses (i.e. Ensearch Bail 
Bonds and Back Street Salon).  These areas are zoned Commercial (C) District and Light 
Industrial (LI) District.  

East: Directly east of the subject property are several single-family homes within the Park Place 
Subdivision followed by a horizontal mixed-use development containing residential, 
retail/office, and industrial land uses (i.e. Park Station) that is currently in the development 
phase.  These areas are zoned Planned Development District 59 (PD-59) and Planned 
Development District 87 (PD-87).

West: Directly west of the subject property is Townsend Drive, which is identified as an M4D 
(major collector, four [4] lane, divided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan.
This is followed by the RSID bus barn. Beyond this are metal buildings followed by several 
single-family homes.  These areas are zoned Planned Development District 52 (PD-52) for 
Heavy Commercial (HC) District land uses and Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District.

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST:

The applicant has submitted a concept plan and development standards for the existing and 
proposed Phases of the Park Place Subdivision. The characteristics and development standards for 
each phase are as follows:

Phase 1: Neighborhood Services (1.8-Acres)

Phase 1 is existing and no changes are being proposed.  This phase is subject to the Neighborhood 
Services (NS) District land uses.  A summary of the density and dimensional requirements for Phase
1 is as follows:

Minimum Lot Width (1) 60’
Minimum Lot Depth 100’
Minimum Lot Area 6,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2) 15’
Minimum Side Yard Setback 20’
Minimum Distance Between Buildings 15’
Maximum Height 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 20’
Maximum Lot Coverage 60%
Maximum Building Size 5,000 SF

General Notes:
1:   The minimum lot width shall be measured at the Front Yard Building Setback. 
2:   The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line.

Phases 2 & 3: Single-Family 7 (53.6-Acres)

Phases 2 & 3 are existing and both phases allow single-family land uses; however, Phase 3 also 
allows Residential-Office (RO) District (i.e. live/work) land uses.  The applicant is proposing to 
remove the Residential-Office (RO) District land uses from Phase 3, and transition it to Phase 4.
This means that Phase 3 will be subject to the Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses.  A summary 
of the density and dimensional requirements for Phases 2 & 3 are as follows:

Minimum Lot Width (1) 40’
Minimum Lot Area 4,000 SF
Minimum Average Lot Area 7,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2) & (3) 10’
Minimum Side Yard Setback (4) 5’
Minimum Side Yard Adjacent to a Street 10
Minimum Distance Between Buildings 15’

144
144



Maximum Height (3) 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4, 5) 10’
Maximum Lot Coverage 60%

General Notes:
1: The minimum lot width shall be measured at the Front Yard Building Setback. 
2: The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line.
3: The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-family home.
4: The minimum side yard setback for an internal lot or a lot abutting open space or HOA common area is five (5) feet.  For yards 

abutting a street, the minimum side yard setback shall be 10-feet.
5: Lots with double frontage shall have a minimum rear yard setback of 15 feet.

Phase 4 Residential-Office (1.3-Acres)

The proposed Phase 4 will contain approximately five (5) residential-office units and will be designed 
to a residential scale (i.e. the buildings will be designed to look like the existing homes within Park 
Place).  Since the phase will have residential adjacency, the applicant is proposing to prohibit certain 
uses within Phase 4 (e.g. assisted living facility, landfill, transit passenger facility, etc.) and allow
other uses (e.g. general store larger than 2,000 SF, hair salon, office building more than 5,000 SF)
with a Specific Use Permit (SUP). This phase will be subject to the Residential-Office (RO) District 
land uses with the exception of the uses outlined in the attached ordinance. A summary of the 
density and dimensional requirements is as follows:

Minimum Lot Width (1) 60’
Minimum Lot Depth 100’
Minimum Lot Area 6,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2) 10’
Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’
Minimum Distance Between Buildings 15’
Maximum Height (3) 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 10’
Maximum Lot Coverage 60%

General Notes:
1: The minimum lot width shall be measured at the Front Yard Building Setback. 
2: The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line.
3: The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the residential-office structure.

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The Future Land Use Plan adopted with the OurHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
designates the subject property for Medium-Density Residential land uses, which is characterized as 
developments containing greater than 2½ units-per-acre, but not higher than three (3) units-per-acre 
unless an increased amenity is provided, in which event 3½ units-per-acre can be allowed.  Should 
this request be approved, the designation would need to be changed to Live/Work land uses, which 
is characterized as low-intensity office/retail land uses that are similar in scale and scope to the 
adjacent residential properties. Although this does not conform to the Future Land Use Plan, given 
the subject property’s current zoning of Heavy Commercial (HC) District, this request will bring the 
property closer to conformance with the Future Land Use Plan. The change of designation has been 
made a condition of approval. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:

When looking at the applicant’s request (i.e. to amend PD-59 to incorporate a tract of land for 
residential-office land uses), the live/work units provide a transition from the single-family residential 
land uses east of the subject property to the light industrial and heavy commercial land uses to the
west of the subject property.  The incorporation of the subject property as residential-office units 
seems to be appropriate given its proximity to the adjacent railroad, does not appear to negatively 
affect the adjacent properties, and will not preclude the properties from being single-family units.  

145
145



With that being said, approval of this request is discretionary to the City Council, pending a 
recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission.  

NOTIFICATION:

On December 28, 2018, staff mailed 194 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet 
of the subject property. Additionally, staff posted a sign on the subject property as required by the 
UDC.  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received seven (7) notices in favor and one (1) 
notice in opposition of this case.  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Should the City Council choose to approve the applicant’s request to amend Planned Development 
District 59 (PD-59) to incorporate a 0.786-acre tract of land for Residential-Office (RO) District land
uses, staff would propose the following conditions of approval:

1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the conditions contained 
within the Planned Development District ordinance;  

2) By approving this zoning change, the City Council will effectively be approving changes to the
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan. Specifically, this will change the
designation of the subject property from a Medium-Density Residential designation to a
Live/Work designation; and

3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning change shall conform to the 
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code 
(IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and 
with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and 
federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

On January 15, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to recommend approval of the 
amendment to Planned Development 59 (PD-59) with staff recommendations passed by a vote of 7-
0.   

146
146



CL
AR

K

IVY

RE
N

FR
O

WASHINGTON

PA
RK

 P
LA

CE

JUSTIN

BOW

WHITMORE

RUSK

HARTMAN

NA
SH

T 
L T

O
W

N
SE

N
D

BOYDSTUN

KAUFMAN

MICHAEL GARDENS

ALUMINUM PLANT

HAM
M

ACK

STORRS

ST MARYS

MUNSON

JO
RDAN

 FARM

ST CHARLES

ST THOMAS

AN
GE

LA
 C

RE
SC

EN
T

LI

SF-7

PD-59

PD-52

PD-87

2F

C

ZL-5

Z2018-057 - AMENDMENT TO PD-59
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 260 520 780 1,040130
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I147

147



G
O

LI
A

D

STORRS

ST THOMAS

SUMMIT
RIDGE

G
O

LI
A

D

R
ID

G
E

BOURN

ALAMO

LA
M

A
R

OLIVE

INTERURBAN

MUNSON

N
A

SH

PA
R

K
S

A
U

ST
IN

FA
N

N
IN

WILLIAMS

LILLIAN

PA
R

K 
PL

AC
E

ST CHARLES

LA
M

A
R

R
EN

FR
O

K
ER

N
O

D
LE

ROSS

SA
N

 J
A

C
IN

TO

KENWAY

MARGARET

A
N

G
EL

A
C

R
ES

C
EN

T

SA
N

 A
N

TO
N

IO

C
LA

R
K

INTERURBAN

HOUSTON

SA
N

A
U

G
U

ST
IN

E

GLENN

NA
SH

AIRPORT

JU
BI

LE
E

JORDAN
FARM

GO
LI

AD

D
AV

Y
C

R
O

C
K

ET
T

SA
M

 H
O

U
ST

O
N

EMMA JANE

DICKEY

HARTMAN

WASHINGTON

ALUMINUM
PLANT

ST MARYS

ST
A

R

TY
LE

R

DENISON

RUSK

IVY

PA
R

K
PL

A
C

E

KAUFMAN

SH
ER

M
A

N

ALUMINUM
PLANT

BOYDSTUN

N
A

SH

B
A

R
N

ES

T 
L 

TO
W

N
SE

N
D

TH
R

O
C

K
M

O
R

TO
N

D
AV

Y 
C

R
O

C
K

ET
T

PE
TE

R
S 

C
O

LO
N

Y
PR

O
SP

ER
IT

Y

T L TOWNSEND

ST MARYS

CO
M

M
UN

IT
Y

SH
ER

M
A

N

B
O

ST

SQUABBLE
CREEK

DIAL

BOW

JUSTIN

MICHAELGARDENS

JOHN

KING
JOHN

KING

WHITMORE

IN
D

U
STR

IA
L

Park Place
Bent Creek

Condos

0 550 1,100 1,650 2,200275
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

I30

JO
HN

 KIN
G

RI
DG

E

ST
O

DG
HI

LL

GOLIAD

HOLIDAY

STHY66
JUSTIN

LAKESHORE

STATE HIGHWAY 276

CLEM

CL
AR

K

AIRPORT
RUSK

DA
TA

QUAIL RUN

FM
 5

49

HEATH

CARUTH CORNELIUS

RO
CHELL

FM
 1

14
1

KYLE

LAKESIDE

CAPITAL

RO
CH

EL
LE

IVY

M
ID

LA
KE

CO
ASTAL HILLSIDEDA

VI
S

LEONARD

ELM
I30

I30JO
HN

 KIN
G

Case Number:

Case Address:

Case Type:
Case Name:

Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2018-057

Between W. Washington Street and
T.L. Townsend Drive

Zoning
Amendment to PD-59

PD-59 & PD-57

12/17/2018
148

148



JUSTIN

D
AV

Y
C

R
O

C
K

ET
T

ST
THOMAS

STORRS

BOURN

ST MARYS

LA
M

A
R

INTERURBAN

AIRPORT

NA
SH

MUNSON

PA
R

K
S

A
U

ST
IN

K
ER

N
O

D
LE

PA
R

K 
PL

AC
E

ST

CHARLES

LA
M

A
R

RE
NF

RO

T 
L 

TO
W

N
SE

N
D

WILLIAMS

ROSS

AN
G

EL
A

CR
ES

CE
NT

SA
N

 A
N

TO
N

IO

C
LA

R
K

SA
N

 A
U

G
U

ST
IN

E

EMMA
JANE

JORDAN FARM

HARTMAN

WASHINGTON
ALUMINUM PLANT

ST
A

R

TY
LE

R

DENISON

RUSK

FA
N

N
IN

IVY

PA
R

K 
PL

AC
E

HAM
MACK

KAUFMAN

SH
ER

M
A

N

B
O

ST

ALUMINUM
PLANT

BOYDSTUN

N
A

SH

D
AV

Y 
C

R
O

C
K

ET
T

PE
TE

R
S 

C
O

LO
N

Y

SH
ER

M
A

N
SQUABBLE CREEK

DIAL

BOW

MICHAEL GARDENS

WHITMORE

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L

0 420 840 1,260 1,680210
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

JO
HN

 KIN
G

GOLIAD

JUSTIN

RI
DG

E

CL
AR

K

AIRPORT

FA
N

N
IN

ST
O

DG
HI

LL

STHY66
RUSK

HEATH

WASHINGTON

CARUTH

STATE HIGHWAY 276

INTERSTATE 30

EAST FORK

STATE HIGHWAY 66

BOYDSTUN

DISCOVERY

AL
AM

O

IVY

SUNSET HILL

T L TOWNSEND

JULIAN

WESTWAY

KRISTY

RI
DG

E

Case Number:

Case Address:

Case Type:
Case Name:

Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

500' Buffer

Notified Properties

Z2018-057

Between W. Washington Street and
T.L. Townsend Drive

Zoning
Amendment to PD-59

PD-59 & PD-57

12/17/2018
149

149



150
150



151
151



152
152



153
153



154
154



155
155



156
156



157
157



158
158



159
159



160
160



161
161



162
162



163
163



164
164



16
5

16
5



166
166



167
167



168
168



EX A PARK PLACE
PD 59

ROCKWALL TEXAS

EXISTING ZONING PLAN

169
169



EX B PARK PLACE
PD 59

ROCKWALL TEXAS

CONCEPT PLAN

170
170



EX C PARK PLACE
PD 59

ROCKWALL TEXAS

PEDESTRIAN PLAN

171
171



CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 19-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO AMEND 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 59 (PD-59) [ORDINANCE NO.’s 04-59 AND -
6-51] AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 52 (PD-52) [ORDINANCE NO. 16-
45] FOR THE PURPOSE OF INCORPORATING A 0.789-ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
FOR RESIDENTAL-OFFICE (RO) DISTRICT LAND USES BEING A 56.586-ACRE
TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS A PORTION OF THE R. BALLARD SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 29, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, ZONED 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 52 (PD-52) AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 59 (PD-59) AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’
AND DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by the applicant Bill Bricker of Columbia Development 
Company, LLC, for the approval of an amendment to Planned Development District 59 (PD-59) for the 
purpose of incorporating a 0.786-acre tract of land for Residential-Office (RO) District land uses, being a 
56.586-acre tract of land identified as a portion of the R. Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 52 (PD-52) [Ordinance No. 16-
45] and Planned Development District 59 (PD-59) [Ordinance No.’s 04-59 and 06-51], located between 
W. Washington Street and T. L. Townsend Drive and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in 
Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and 
incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of the 
City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the City of 
Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public hearings 
and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all persons interested in and 
situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the governing body in the exercise of its 
legislative discretion, has concluded that Planned Development District 59 (PD-59) [Ordinance No.’s 04-
59 and 06-51], Planned Development District 52 (PD-52) [Ordinance No. 16-45], and the Unified 
Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in 
Ordinance No.’s 04-59 and 06-51;

SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
authorized by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code (UDC)
[Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting 
this zoning change, and as may be amended in the future;

SECTION 3. That development of the Subject Property shall be in accordance with the Planned 
Development Concept Plan, contained in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as Exhibit ‘D’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the amended 
zoning classification for the Subject Property;

SECTION 4. That development of the Subject Property shall be in accordance with the Development 
Standards, described in Exhibit ‘F’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

OF T
UNIFIED D

OCKWALL, AS H
ELOPMENT DISTRICT ELO

ANNED DEVELOPMENTANNE
PURPOSE OF INCORPPUR

ENTALENTAL--OFFICE (RO) DOFFI
LAND IDENTIFIED ASLAND IDENTIFIED

CT NO. 29,T NO CITY OF ROCITY OF ROC
D DEVELOPMENT DISTD DEVELOPMENT DIST

CT 59 (PDCT 59 -59) AND MO
DEPICTED HEREIN DEPICTED 

DITIONS; PROVIDING FODITIONS; PRO
TWO THOUSAND DOLLTWO THOUSA

R A SEVERABILITY CA SEVERABI
ROVIDING FOR AN EFFEG FOR AN EF

the the City has receivedCity has receiv
LLC, LLC, for tfor the approval he approval o

f incorporating a 0.786ncorporating a 0.786
cre tract of land identact of land 
l, Rockwall County, Teall Count

d Planned Developmenanned Developm
ashington Street and Tashington Street and T

bit ‘B’ it ‘B’ of this ordinanof this ordinan
rporated by reference hrporated by reference 

WHEREASHEREAS, the Planning, the
City of Rockwall in comy of Rockwall in
Rockwall have given thave given 
and afforded a fuand afforded a full anll an
situated in the affecsituated in the 
legislative discretiolegislative discre
59 and 06-5151], P], 
Development CoDevelopment Co

NOW, THEREOW, THERE

Y OF ROCKWALL, TEXAOF ROCKWALL, TEXA
ORDINANCE NO. 04CE NO. 04--444 3838]]888
ENDED, SO AS TO ENDED, SO AS TO AMAM

RDINANCE NO.’s 04RDINANCE NO.’s -59 
2 (PD2 (PD-52) [ORDINANCE DINANC

A 0.7890.78 -ACRE TRACTACT- O
ND USESUSES BEING A A 56.556.

N OF THE R. BALLARD THE R. BALLARD
CKWALL COUNTY, TEXLL COUNTY, TEX

-52) AND PLANNED52) AND PLANNED DEVD
DESCRIBED HEREIN BSCRIBED HE

T ‘B’; PROVIDING FPROVIDING ’
TY OF FINE NOT TO EXOF FINE NOT TO EX

0.00) FOR EACH OFFE0.00) FOR EACH OFF
ROVIDING FOR A REPOVIDING FO
E.

by the applicant Bill Bll
mentment to Planned Deveto Planned Dev
land for Residentialand for Residential--OO

portion of the R. Ballaon of the R. 
Planned Development d Developm
(PD-59) [Ordinance NOrdinanc

nd Drivend Drive and more fullymore ful
hereinafter shall be rereinafter shall be re

g Commission of the Cg Commission of the C
h the laws of the Statethe laws 
notices by publicationces by publica

ng to all property owneng to all property owne
nd in the vicinity thereod in the vicinity thereo
uded thatd that Planned DevPlanned D

velopment District 52 District 52
ce No. 04e No. 04--3838] should be] should be

IT ORDAINED BY THT ORDAINED BY 

e approval of this orapproval of this o
and 06-51;

the the Subject PropertySubject Proper
Planned Development Planned Development 

4--3838] of the City of Roc] of the City of Ro
ge, and as maye, and as may be ame

That development ofelopment o
Concept PlanConcept Plan, containentaine

erence as erence as Exhibit ‘Exhibit D‘ ’, w
sification for the sification for the SubjecSubj

N 44.. That developmeThat developme
ds, described in described ExhibExhib

A’
AL AL 

SUM M 
DING 

AUSE; 

olumbia Development olumbia Developm
trictrict 59 (PD-59)59) for thefor 

strict land usesrict land , being eing
Abstract No. 29,ract No. 29, CitCity y 

PDD-52)52) [[Ordinance No. Ordinance No.
nd 06nd 06--5151],], located betw

n n Exhibit ‘A’ Exhibit ‘A’ and depicdep
s the the Subject Properbject Proper

all and the governing bning b
and the ordinances of of
se, and have held publd p

and to all persons inteand to all persons inte
governing body in the governing b
strict 59 (PDstrict 59 (PD--59) [[OrdinOrd

rdinance No. 16dinance No. 1 -4545], ], 
s follows:llows

OUNCIL OF THE CITYOUNCIL OF THE CIT

all supersede all requsupersede all requ

sed only in the mannman
nance and the Unified

retofore amended, as d, as
uture;uture

t Propertyroperty shall be inshall b
‘D‘ ’ of this ordinance, af this ordinance, 

med hereby to be a conreby to be a con

bject bject Propertyperty shall beshal
is ordinance, attachedordinance, attach

172
172



reference as Exhibit ‘F’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the amended zoning 
classification for the Subject Property;

SECTION 5. That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not to 
exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and every day such 
offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense;

SECTION 6. That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the 
application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, corporation or situation, 
nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of the Unified Development Code, 
and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be 
severable;

SECTION 7. The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between this 
ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City Code, 
ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that is different from 
and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or other standards in the 
Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified Development Code), and references to 
overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits hereto are those in effect on the date this 
ordinance was passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas;

SECTION 8. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage;

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THIS
THE 4TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019.

Jim Pruitt, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kristy Cole, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1st Reading: January 22, 2019

2nd Reading: February 4, 2019

ean
sand Do

e deemed to cons

y section, paragraph, osec
ovision to any person,ovisio

shall not affect any otheshall not affe
section, psection, paragraph or paragraph 

affect any other sectionffect any other sectio
 declares that it wouldeclares that it woul

he invalid parts and to e inv

The standards in this he standards
any provision of the y provision of

olution, rule, regulation,ule, regulation
ent with this ordinanceinance

elopment Code (includielopment Code (inclu
tricts, in this ordinancericts, in this ordinanc

wasas passed and approvpassed and appro

N 8. That this ordinaThat this o

ED AND APPROVED ED AND APPROVED
44THTH DAY OF DAY OF FEBRUARUA

ATTEST:

Kristy Cole,Kristy Cole, City SeCity 

APPROVED ASAPPROVED AS

f approval of the aapproval o

f the provisions of this othe provisions of this 
e punished by a penalpunished by a pena
offense and each andand each and

offense;ffense;

of this ordinance or theof this ordinance or 
ration or situation is foation or situation is f

aragraph, or provision oagraph, or provision o
any other person, firm, other person, firm, 
or provision of the Unor provision of the Un

pted the valid portionspted the valid portio
provisions for this ordrovisions for t

hall control in the evehall control in the ev
elopment Code or anlopment Co

e that provides a speciprovides a spe
s to zoning districistrict regut reg

es to the Unified Devel
the Exhibits hereto arthe Exhibits hereto a

ity Council of the City oy Council of the City o

ke effect immediat immediately frt

TY COUNCIL OF THETY COUNCIL OF TH

Jim

rneyney

ary 22, 2019ary 22, 2019

bruary 4, 2019bruary 4, 2019

yor

 of that
n judged n judged 

nce or the nce or the 
or situation, r situ

pment Code,ent Code,
ations of the s of the 

declared to be 

flict between this between this 
of the City Code, City Code, 

that is different from ff
ther standards in the her standard

dede), and references to ), and reference
effect on the date thisffect on the date t

Texas;xas;

its passage;ts passage;

ROCKWALL, TEXAS, ROCKWALL, TEXAS

173
173



BEING a tract of land situated in the R. Ballard Survey, Abstract Number 29, in the City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, and being a part of Tract 31, as recorded in Volume 444, Page 102, and all of Tract 32 as recorded in 
Volume 444, Page 146 Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1" pipe found on the east right-of-way of Townsend Drive, said point being the most westerly 
southwest corner of said Tract 31 and being approximately 200' north of the north line of the M K & T Railroad (100’ 
right-of-way);

THENCE continuing along said High School Drive North 01°56'15" East a distance of 86.67 feet to a 5/8" iron pipe for 
corner;

THENCE deporting said High School Drive North 85°34'29" East a distance of 182.10 feet to a 5/8" iron pipe for 
corner;

THENCE North 04°30'38" East a distance of 69.54 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner;

THENCE North 05°42'23" West a distance of 29.95 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner;

THENCE North 80°56'29" East a distance of 126.45 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner;

THENCE North 86°39'04" East a distance of 110.36 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner;

THENCE North 11°21'42" East a distance of 740.32 feet to fence post found (controlling monument) for corner;

THENCE North 76°14'03" West a distance of 207.10 feet to a fence post found in the east right-of-way of Renfro 
Street;

THENCE continuing along said Renfro Street North 10°13'03" East a distance of 626.53 feet to a 5/8" iron pipe for 
corner;

THENCE deporting said Renfro Street North 89°50'10" East a distance of 420.29 feet to a 5/8" iron pipe for corner;

THENCE North 01°20'36" West a distance of 200.09 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner;

THENCE North 00°40'16" West a distance of 87.88 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner:

THENCE South 89°00' 45" East a distance of 63.08 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner;

THENCE South 88°34'57" East a distance of 126.36 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner;

THENCE North 00°48'06" West a distance of 110.27 feet to a ½” iron pipe for corner in the south right-of-way line of 
Aluminum Plant Road;

THENCE along said Aluminum Plant Road North 89°08'46" West o distance of 194.10 feet to a point for corner;

THENCE North 21°04'24" West a distance of 414.90 feet to a point for corner;

THENCE South 58°25'54" East a distance of 761.00 feet to a point for corner;

THENCE North 89°56'03" East a distance of 308.37 feet to a point for corner;

THENCE South 07°24' 46" West a distance of 602.23 feet to a point for corner;

THENCE South 04°53'33" East a distance of 317.77 feet to a point for corner;

THENCE South 09°19'54" East a distance of 1038.10 feet to a point in the said north right-of-way of M. K. & T. 
Railroad (100' right-of-way) for corner;

THENCE along said right-of-way South 87°55'08" West a distance of 740.83 feet to a ½” iron pipe found at the 
beginning of a tangent curve to the left;

THENCE in a southwesterly direction with said curve having a central angle of 17°04'03", a radius of 2914.93 feet 
and an arc length of 868.32 feet to a ½” pipe found for corner;

THENCE In a southwesterly direction with sold curve having a central angle of 04°45'26", a radius of 2923.97 feet 
and an arc length of 242.78 feet to XX for corner;

THENCE North 01°20'58" East a distance of 208.56 feet to a 1" iron pipe to the POINT OF BEGINNING and 
containing 56.7 acres of land more or less.

rds

on the east 
31 and being approxi

id High School Drive Nortd Hig

High School Drive North 8igh School Drive 

8" East a dist" Ea ance of 69.569 5

23" West a distance of 2923" West a d

6'29" East a distance of 16'29" East a dis

39'04" East a 39'04" East a distance of d

1°21'42" East a distance o'42" East a dista

76°14'03" West a distanst a distan

ntinuing along said Renfrotinuing along said Renfr

deporting said Renfro Streng said Renf

E North 01°20'36" West a 0'36" We

CE North 00°40'16" West aE North 00°40'16" West 

NCE South 89°00' 45" EasNCE South 89°00' 45" E

ENCE South 88°34'57" EaENCE South 88°34'57" Ea

HENCE North 00°48'06" WENCE North 0
Aluminum Plant Road;minum Plant Ro

THENCE along said Alumong said Alu

THENCE North 21°04'2THENCE North

THENCE South 58°25THENCE South 5

THENCE North th 89°589

THENCE South 07THENCE South 0

HENCE South HENCE South 

er 29, in the City ofr 29, in the C RocRoc
age 102, and all of Tract 3ge 102, and all of Tract 3

g more particularly describmore particularly describ

d Drive, said point beingrive, said point being
of the north line of the M Kf the north line of the M 

ast a distance of 86.67 feeast a distance of 86.67 

st a distance of 182.10 fedistance of 182.10 fe

iron pipe for corner;ron pipe for corner;

½” iron pipe for corner;n pipe for corne

a ½” iron pipe for corner;pipe for corner;

o a ½” iron pipe for cornero a ½” iron pipe for corn

to fence post found (contrfence post fou

feet to a fence post founnce post fou

 10°13'03" East a distanc 10°13'03" East a distan

0'10" East a distance of 4 East a distanc

0.09 feet to a ½” iron pipeo a ½” iro

87.88 feet to a ½” iron pipe87.88 feet to a ½” iron pip

f 63.08 feet to a ½” iron p3.08 feet to a ½” iron p

of 126.36 feet to a ½” iront to a ½” iro

ce of 110.27 feet to a ½” ice of 110.27 feet to a ½” 

Road North 89°08'46" Wesorth 89°08'46" W

tance of 414.90 feet to a ptance of 414.90 feet to a 

istance of 761.00 feet to ace of 761.00 fee

distance of 308.37 feet to ance of 308.37 feet to

t a distance of 602.23 feea distance of 602

st a distance of 317.77 feet a distance of 317.77 

East a distEast a di ance of 1038.1038
 for corner;or corner;

ht-ofof--ff way South 87°55'08way South 87°55'08
curveurve to the left;to the 

esterly direction with saidesterly direction with sai
868.32 feet to a ½” pipe fo868.32 feet to a ½” pipe fo

hwesterly direction with swesterly direc
of 242.78 feet to XX for co242.78 feet to XX

01°20'58" East a distan20'58" East a distan
acres of land more or lesacres of land more or les

n pipe for pipe for 

ron pipe for on p

ent) for corner;cor

rigrightht--ofof--ff way of Renfro way

eet to a 5/8" iron pipe foet to a 5/8" iron pipe

a 5/8" iron pipe fron pipe for corner;or corner

er;

orner in the south rightright--ofof

f 194.10 feet to a point foroint f

r;r;

er;er;

rner;er;

corner;er;

corner;corner;

point in the said north rigoint in the said north r

ance of 740.83 feet to aof 740.83 feet to a

g a central angle of 17°04
r;

ving a cving a entral angle of 04of 04

feet to a 1" iron pipe tto a 1" iron pipe

174
174



175
175



176
176



177
177



178
178



Phases 1-4 (56.586-Acres): Development Standards for all Phases

(1) Streetscape Standards. The following aspects of development shall be reviewed in conjunction 
with a preliminary plat and/or site plan:

(a) Street Lighting.  Street lighting shall be compatible with neo-traditional design methods, 
the Old Town Rockwall Historic District guidelines, and any proposed guidelines for the 
City’s Downtown Plan. 

(b) Street Signage and Traffic Control.  Signage and traffic control methods shall be 
compatible with neo-traditional design and complement the surrounding historic areas of 
the City. 

(c) Street Sections. A PD Development Plan shall include any alternative street and alley 
cross-sections, paving methods, use of street trees, and other proposed engineering 
details.

(2) Private Parks and Open Space. Details for private parks and open space as indicated in 
Exhibit ‘B’ shall be subject to the following requirements and approved as part of the 
preliminary plat and/or site plan:

(a) A site/landscape plan for all open space, pocket parks, the community center, and trail 
systems.  The development plan and/or preliminary plat shall also be reviewed by the City’s 
Parks and Recreation Board.

(b) All city-required trails and public sidewalks shall be constructed with concrete and meet all 
City standards.

(c) Drainage area trails, which shall be maintained by the HOA, may be constructed with 
asphalt. 

(d) The developer shall install a screening fence adjacent to the railroad along the south 
boundary of the subject property.  The exact location, construction material(s), and height 
of the screening fence shall be reviewed and approved as part of the required site plan. 

(3) Hardscape. Hardscape plans--depicted in Exhibit ‘E’--indicating the location of all sidewalks 
and trails shall be reviewed and approved with the preliminary plat and/or final plat.

(4) Fence Standards. All fences shall be required to be wrought iron or tubular steel and vinyl shall 
be a minimum of four (4) feet in height; however, may not exceed a maximum of eight (8) feet 
in height unless situated in the front yard.  Front yard fences shall meet the following 
requirements:

(a) No front yard fences shall be located within a public right-of-way;

(b) The maximum height for a front yard fence is 42-inches (i.e. 3 ½ feet); and

(c) All front yard fences shall be open or picket-style fencing constructed of wrought iron, 
tubular steel, or vinyl. 

Phase 1: Neighborhood Services (1.8-Acres)

(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development ordinance, Phase
1 as depicted in Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of this ordinance shall be subject to the land uses permitted 
for the Neighborhood Services (NS) District as stipulated by the Permissible Use Charts 
contained in Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance

t and

ng.  Street lighting 
wn Rockwall Historic Dwn R
ntown Plan. ntow

Signage and Traffic CSignage and 
ible with neoble with neo--traditionatraditio

ty. y. 

et Sectionset Se . A PD Dev
ssss--sections, paving msections, 

etails.tails

te Parks and Open SpParks and Ope
bit ‘B’ shall be subjeall be subj
iminary plat and/or siteor site

a)) A site/landscape plaA site/landscape pl
systems.  The devesystems.  The
Parks and RecreaParks and R

(b)(b) All city-requiredrequire
City standardsCity standards

(c) Drainage arDrainage ar
asphalt. asphalt. 

(d)(d) The deveThe d
boundarbounda
of the sthe s

(3) HardscapHards
and traid tra

(4)(4) FenceFenc
be abe a
in in

ment ment shall be reviewedshall be reviewed

ible with neoble with -traditionaditiona
nes, and any proposednes, and any prop

nage and traffic contge and traffic cont
complement the surromplement the surro

Plan shall include any ashall include 
of street trees, and otrees, and 

ls for private parks anfor private 
ollowing requirements g requirement

pen space, pocket parken space, pocket par
n and/or preliminary plaand/or preliminary pla

ublic sidewalks shall belks shal

hich shall be maintaine be maintain

install a screening fenstall a scr
ject property.  The exaroperty.  The e

nce shall be reviewed ance shall be reviewed a

ape plansans----depicted in depicted 
viewed and approvedwed and approved ww

All fences shall be reqAll fences shall be
f four (4) fefour et in height;n heig

ss situated in the frons situated in the fro

yard fenceard fe s shall be loshall be lo

aximum heighaximum height for t for a froa f

frront yard fences shalont yard fences s
bular steel, or vinyl. lar steel, or v

hborhood Services (1.8rhood Services (1.8

ermitted Uses.ermitted Uses. Unless Un
11 as depicted in as depicted in ExhibitExh
for the for t Neighborhoodrhoo
contained in Article IVcontained in Article IV

for

 shall be shall be 
ric areas of c are

treet and alley 
ed engineering ed engine

ce as indicated in indicated in 
ved as part of the 

munity center, and traiunity center, and t
be reviewed by the Cityreviewed by the Cit

 with concrete and me with concr

OA, may be construcA, may be construc

t to the railroad along
construction material(serial(
as part of the required as part of the required

ndicating the location ndicating the location
minary plat and/or final nary plat and/or final 

wrought iron or tubular sought iron or tubular 
ay not exceed a maximay not exceed a maxim

ront yard fences shalont yard fences sh

a publiblic rightc r -ofof--way;way;

e is 42-inches (i.e. 3 ½ 3 ½

r picket-style fencing cing 

provided by this Planned by this Plann
f this ordinance shall bethis ordin

NSNS) District) District as stipulaas 
e Usese Us , of the Unified Dthe Unifie

179
179



(2) No. 04-38] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and 
as may be amended in the future.

(3) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Unless specifically provided by this Planned 
Development ordinance, Phase 1 as depicted in Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of this ordinance shall be 
subject to the development standards for the Neighborhood Services (NS) District as 
stipulated in Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 04-38] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning 
change, and as may be amended in the future. All lots shall conform to the standards 
depicted in Table 1, which are as follows:

Table 1: Density and Dimensional Requirements

Minimum Lot Width (1) 60’
Minimum Lot Depth 100’
Minimum Lot Area 6,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2) 15’
Minimum Side Yard Setback 20’
Minimum Distance Between Buildings 15’
Maximum Height 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 20’
Maximum Lot Coverage 60%
Maximum Building Size 5,000 SF

General Notes:
1: The minimum lot width shall be measured at the Front Yard Building Setback.
2: The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line.

(4) Building Standards. All development shall be subject to site plan and Architectural Review 
Board (ARB) review and shall adhere to the following building standards:

(a) Masonry Requirements. The minimum masonry requirement for the exterior façades of all 
buildings shall be 80%.  For the purposes of this ordinance, the masonry requirement 
shall be limited to full width brick, natural stone, and cast stone.  Cementitious fiberboard 
horizontal lap-siding (e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy Plank) and/or similar cementitious
products may be used for up to 100% of the exterior of the building pending conformance 
with the anti-monotony restrictions outlined in this ordinance.  Stucco (i.e. three [3] part 
stucco or similar) shall be prohibited.

(b) Roof Design Requirements.  All structures having a footprint of 6,000 SF or less shall be 
constructed with a pitched roof system. 

(c) Architectural Requirements. All units shall be architecturally finished on all sides of the 
building that are visible from a public right-of-way or open space.  This should include the 
detailing and features.  This will be reviewed by the Architectural Review Board (ARB) for 
conformance.

(5) Landscape Buffer.  A minimum 10-foot landscape buffer shall be required along all street 
frontages.  The buffer shall include a minimum of one (1) tree per 30 linear feet.  

(6) Signage.  Permanent, free-standing signage for Phase 1 shall be limited to one (1) monument 
not exceeding five (5) feet in height or a maximum of 60 SF in area.  

(7) Lighting.  In addition to the outdoor lighting requirements stipulated in Article VII, 
Environmental Performance, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), no light pole, pole 
base, or combination thereof shall exceed 20-feet in height.  All lighting fixtures shall focus 
downward and be contained on the subject property

Maximum Lot Coverage

nsio
ance, Pha

evelopment stand
cle V, cle District Develo
0404--383 ] as heretofore 

as mayas ma be amended 
able ble 11, which are as foll, which 

d Dimensional RequiremDimensional Requirem

Lot W
m Lot Depthm Lot Depth

um Lot Area
mum Front Yard Setback um Front Yard (2

m Side Yard Se
nimum Distance Betweenance Between

Minimum Rear Yard SetbaMinimum Rear Yard Se

Maximum Building SizeMaximum Buildin

General Notes:ral Notes:
1: The minimum lot widthinimum lo
2: The location of the tion of th Fr

Building StandarBuilding Standar
Board (ARB) revoard (ARB) re

(a)(a) Masonry M
building
shall bshall 
horizohorizo
prod
with
stu

(b)(b)

by granting this zoning y granting this zoning

pecifically provided bycifically provided b
ibits ‘C’ & ‘D’‘D’ of this orof this o

eighborhood Services eighborhood Services
dardsdards, of the Unified D, of the Unif

s amended herein by s amended herein b
e. All lots shall confoAll lots shall conf

ured at the Front Yard BuildinFront Yard 
ng Setback as measured frommeasure

elopmentopment shall be subjshall be subj
all adhere to the followinere to the follow

ts. ts. The minimum masoThe minimum maso
800%%.  For the purposes.  For the 
ull width brick, natural swidth brick, na

ing (ing e.g. HardiBoard HardiBoard
used for up to used for u 10000%% oo

onotony restrictions outotony restriction
ar) shall be prohibited.e prohibited.r

n Requirements.  Requirements.  All str
d with a pitched roof sys with a pitched roof 

ural Requirements. ural Requirements. All Al
that are visible from a at are visible from a 

ng and features.  This watures.  This w
rmance.mance.

pe Buffer.  pe Buffer.  A minimumA minimu
es.  The buffer shall inces.  The buffer shall inc

age.  e Permanent, freePermanent, -s
exceeding five (5) feet ig five (5) feet

ghting.  ghting.  In addition In add
Environmental PerformEnvironmental Perfo
base, or combination base, or combination
downward and be codownward and be con

t C
s zoning zoning 
tandards tandards 

100’
6,000 SF

1515’’
0’

15’

20’
6

5,000 S000 

erty line.rty line.

lan and Architectural Ran and Architectural 
andards:ndards

ment for the exterior façarior faç
inance, the masonry rnry r

ast stone.  Cementitiou
Planklank) and) /or similar milar 
of the buildingof the build pendingding

ordinance.ordinance.    Stucco (co (i.e

ng a footprint of 6,000 ootprint of 6,000 

be architecturally finishe architecturally finis
of-way or way open spacepen space.  .  
ed by the Architectural by the Architectural

ndscape buffer shall b
um of one (1) tree per e pe

age for age for PhaseP 1 shall b
maximum of aximum of 60 SF60 in 

door lighting requilighting requiremrem
 Unified Development
exceed 20exceed 20--feet in heife

e subjece subject propertyt property

180
180



Phases 2 & 3: Single-Family 7 (53.6-Acres)

(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development ordinance, Phases
2 & 3 as depicted in Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of this ordinance shall be subject to the land uses 
permitted for the Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District as stipulated by the Permissible Use Charts 
contained in Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance 
No. 04-38] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and as 
may be amended in the future.

(2) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Any development on Phases 2 & 3 as depicted in 
Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of this ordinance shall be subject to the development standards required for 
properties in a Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District as stipulated by Article V, District Development 
Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] as heretofore amended, 
as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and as may be amended in the future.

Table 2: SF-7 Lot Dimensional Requirements

Minimum Lot Width (1) 40’
Minimum Lot Area 4,000 SF
Minimum Average Lot Area 7,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2) & (3) 10’
Minimum Side Yard Setback (4) 5’
Minimum Side Yard Adjacent to a Street 10
Minimum Distance Between Buildings 15’
Maximum Height (3) 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4, 5) 10’
Maximum Lot Coverage 60%

General Notes:
1: The minimum lot width shall be measured at the Front Yard Building Setback.
2: The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line.
3: The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-family home.
4: The minimum side yard setback for an internal lot or a lot abutting open space or HOA common area is five (5) feet.  

For yards abutting a street, the minimum side yard setback shall be 10-feet.
5: Lots with double frontage shall have a minimum rear yard setback of 15 feet.

(3) Building Standards. Housing type and construction shall generally conform to the Architectural 
Styles depicted in Exhibit ‘G’ of this ordinance; however, all development shall adhere to the 
following building standards:

(a) Masonry Requirements. The minimum masonry requirement for all exterior façades 
(excluding walls on a porch, patio, courtyard, or breezeway) greater than 100 SF shall be 
80%.  For the purposes of this ordinance, the masonry requirement shall be limited to full 
width brick, natural stone, and cast stone.  Cementitious fiberboard horizontal lap-siding 
(e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy Plank) and/or similar cementitious products may be used for 
up to 100% of the exterior of the building pending conformance with the anti-monotony 
restrictions outlined in this ordinance.  Stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or similar) shall be 
prohibited.  

(b) Anti-Monotony. An anti-monotony standard shall not allow the same structure—in terms 
of materials and elevation--any closer than five (5) houses apart on either side of the 
street.

(c) Common Areas and Open Space.  All common areas, dedicated landscape easements, 
and open space areas shall be maintained by a Homeowner’s Association, which shall be 
created subject to the requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance and filed prior to
approval of the final plat(s)

in E
Single-Famil
e IV, Permissible 

retofore amended, as aretof
ed in the future.d in t

Dimensional RequiremDimensional R
& ‘D’& ‘D’ of this ordinance of this ordinan

n a  a SingleS -Family 7 (Samily 7 (S
, of the Unified Develo, of the Unified Develo

ded herein by granting tded h

ot Dimensional Requireot Dimensiona

m Lot Width (1)

nimum Lot AreaArea
ot Area

Minimum Front Yard SetbMinimum Front Yard Se
Minimum Side Yard Setb
Minimum Side Yard AdjMinimum Side Ya

nimum Distan
Maximum Height mum Heig (3)

m Rear Y
Maximum Lot CovMaximum Lot Cov

General Notes:General Notes:
1: The minimum lotThe minimum lot
2: The location of The location of
3:: The The Maximum 
44:: The minimumThe

For yards aFor yard
55: Lots with doLots with d

(3)(3) Building Buil
Styles Style d
followinollow

(a)(a)

nned Development ordined Development ord
nce shall be subject toe shall be subject t

ipulated by the ated by the PermisPermis
ed Development Code ed Development Code 

ein by granting this zonein by granting this

evelopment on elopme Phaseasess
ject to the do the developmenevelopmen

as stipulated by Articleas stipulated by Article
e [[Ordinance No. 04Ordinance No. 0 -38
hange, and as maynge, and as ma be 

reetet

measured at the the Front Yard Front Yard B
Building Setback Setback as measureas measure
measured to the eave or topmeasured to the eave or top

ack for an internal lot or a lot ck for an internal l
 the minimum sihe minimum side yard setbde

hall have a minie a minimum rear yamum rea

Housing type and constousing type and const
xhibit ‘‘GG’’ of this ordinaof this ordi

tandards:

equirements. equirements. The minThe 
walls on a porch, patiowalls on a porch, pa

r the purposes of this othe purposes of this 
ck, naturk, natural stonal e, and and 

ardiBoard or Hardy PlaBoard or Hardy Pla
100%0% of the exterior oof the exterior o

ctions outlined in this octions outlined in this o
hibited.  ibited.  

ntinti--iii Monotony. Monotony. An antiAn an -m
of materials and elevatmaterials a
street.et

Common Areas andCommon Areas and
and open space areand open spac
created subject to ubject 
approval of the finthe f

an

epicted in epicted in 
required for equir

Development velopment 
ore amended, mended, 

the future.

0’
4,000 SF
7

10’

1

.
property line.ty lin

er is greater) of the singleingler --famfam
pace or HOA common area area 

feet.
feet.

generally conform to thgenerally co
er, all development shar, all development sh

nry requirement for ay requirement for a
or breezewayor breezew ) greater tater 

e masonry requirement  masonry requireme
CementitiousCementitious fiberboarrboa

imilar cementitioumilar cementitio s pros pro
g pending conformancending conformanc

ucco (i.e. three [3] part [3] part

andard shall not allow tllow 
ser than five (5) houseser than five (5) house

e.  All common areas, common areas,
maintained by a Homeoned by a Home

ments of the City’s Subents of th

181
181



(d) Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit. A guest quarters/secondary living unit shall be 
permitted by-right within Phases 2 & 3 and subject to the following conditions:

(i) Such quarters must be ancillary to the primary use;

(ii) The area of such quarters shall not exceed 30% of the area of the main structure;

(iii) The area of such quarters shall also conform to the maximum lot coverage for the 
overall lot;

(iv) No such use may be sold or conveyed separately without meeting the 
requirements of the zoning district and the Subdivision Ordinance; and

(v) Such quarters shall be designed for temporary occupancy or as a secondary living 
unit.  These structures are not to be used as rental accommodations. 

(4) Access.  Lots with rear yards that abut Renfro Street shall not have access from Renfro 
Street.

Phase 4: Residential-Office (1.3-Acres)

(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development District
Ordinance, Phase 4 as depicted in Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of this ordinance shall be subject to the 
land uses permitted for the Residential-Office (RO) District as stipulated by the Permissible 
Use Charts contained in Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-38] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this 
zoning change, and as may be amended in the future; however, the following conditions 
shall apply: 

The following land uses shall be expressly prohibited on the Phase 4:

Accessory Building
Bed and Breakfast
Convent or Monastery
Daycare (7 or more children)
Residential Care Facility
Assisted Living Facility
Convalescent Care Facility/Nursing Home
Congregate Care Facility
General Retail Store*
Group or Community Home
Halfway House
Library, Art Gallery, or Museum (Public)
Railroad Yard or Shop
Studio-Art, Photography, or Music
Shoe and Boot Repair and Sales
Transit Passenger Facility
Antenna, Accessory
Antenna, Commercial
Antenna, Amateur Radio
Antenna, Dish
Wireless Communication Tower
Utilities (Non-Municipally Owned or Controlled), Including Sanitary Landfill and 
Wastewater Treatment
Municipally Owned or Controlled Facilities, Utilities, and Use

uarte

rea of such quarter

e area of such quarters area
erall lot;erall lo

No such use may bNo such use may
requirements of trequirements of the zohe zo

v)v) Such quarters shall S
unit.  These structuunit.  The

ess.  ess.  Lots with rear yardLots with
eet.t

idential-l Office (1.33-AcreAcre-

Permitted Uses.Permitted Uses. UnU
OOrdinance, rdinance, PhasePh 4
land uses permittednd uses per
Use Charts Charts conta
(UDC) [(UDC) [OrdinancOrdina
zoning change,zoning change
shall apply: shall apply: 

The The followingfollowin

AcceAc
BedBed
CoCo
D
R

arters/secondary livingarters/secondary livin
t to the following conditt to the following condi

ary useuse;;

ed 30% of the area of thd 30% of the area of th

onform to the maximumnform to the maximu

conveyed separatelyveyed separately
and the and Subdivision OrSubdivision Or

for temporary occupantemporary occ
o be used as rental accas rental ac

Renfro Renfro Street shall not Street shall 

ically provided by thically provided by t
in n Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of of

sidentialntial--Office Office (RO) D(R
cle IV, Permissible UsPermissib

] as heretofore amendore ame
yy be amended in the be amended in the 

shall be expressly prohil be expressly proh

ng
ast

nasterynastery
more children)more children

Care Facilityacility
ing Facility

ent Care Facility/Nursinent Care Facility/Nursin
te Care Facilityte Care Facility

Retail StoreRetai *
or Community Homeor Community Home

ay Housey House
ry, Art t Gallery, or MuseGallery, or Muse

road Yard or Shopoad Yard or Shop
diodio--Art, Photography, oArt, Photography, 

hoe and Boot Repair anhoe and Boot Repair a
Transit Passenger Facilransit Passenger Facil
Antenna, AccessoryAntenna, Accessory
Antenna, CommercialAntenna, Co
Antenna, Amateur Rtenna, Amateur
Antenna, DishAntenna, Dish
Wireless CommunWireless Commun
UtilitiesUtilities (Non(No -Mu
Wastewater Treawater T
Municipally Owy Ow

e for the for the 

eeting the eting

econdary living 
s. s. 

from Renfro Renfro 

DevelopmentDevelopment DistricDist
ce shall be subject to thshall be subject to t
ulated by the d by the PermissiPermissi

Unified Development Cnified Development C
ded herein by grantingded herein

ver, the following condver, the following con

Phase 44:

r
wned or Controlled), or Controlled)

olledolled Facilities, UtilitiesFacilities, U

182
182



*General Retail Store less than 2,000 SF shall be allowed by-right.  General Retail Stores larger than 2,000
SF shall require a Specific Use Permit

The following land uses shall be permitted by Specific Use Permit (SUP) on the Phase 4:

General Retail Store*
Hair Salon, Manicurist
Office Building, 5,000 SF or More
Restaurant, Less Than 2,000 SF w/o Drive-Thru
Solar Energy Collector Panels and Systems
*General Retail Store less than 2,000 SF shall be allowed by-right.  General Retail Stores larger than 2,000

SF shall require a Specific Use Permit

(2) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Any development on Phase 4 as depicted in 
Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of this ordinance shall be subject to the development standards required 
for properties in a Residential-Office (RO) District as stipulated by Article V, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] as 
heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and as may be 
amended in the future; however, all development shall adhere to the following building 
standards:

Table 3. Density and Dimensional Requirements

Minimum Lot Width (1) 60’
Minimum Lot Depth 100’
Minimum Lot Area 6,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2) 10’
Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’
Minimum Distance Between Buildings 15’
Maximum Height (3) 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 10’
Maximum Lot Coverage 60%

General Notes:
1: The minimum lot width shall be measured at the Front Yard Building Setback.
2: The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line.
3: The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the residential-office 

structure.

(3) Building Standards. Building Standards. Housing type and construction shall generally 
conform to the Architectural Styles depicted in Exhibit ‘G’ of this ordinance; however, all 
development shall adhere to the following building standards:

(a) Masonry Requirements. The minimum masonry requirement for all exterior façades 
(excluding walls on a porch, patio, courtyard, or breezeway) greater than 100 SF shall 
be 90%.  For the purposes of this ordinance, the masonry requirement shall be limited 
to full width brick, natural stone, and cast stone.  Cementitious fiberboard horizontal 
lap-siding (e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy Plank) and/or similar cementitious products may 
be used for up to 100% of the exterior of the building pending conformance with the 
anti-monotony restrictions outlined in this ordinance.  Stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco 
or similar) shall be prohibited.  

(b) Anti-Monotony. An anti-monotony standard shall not allow the same structure—in 
terms of materials and elevation--any closer than five (5) houses apart on either side 
of the street.

d use

etail Store*
n, Manicuristn, Ma

uilding, 5,000 SF or Mouilding
rant, Less Than 2,000 Sant, Le

Energy Collector PanelsEnergy Collect
ral Retail Store less than ral Retail Store less than 2,02

shall require a Specific Use Phall require a Specific Use P

ty and Dimensional Rty and Dim
bits ‘C’ & ‘D’bits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of this ord
properties in a properties in Resid

evelopment Standardsvelopment S
eretofore aofore amended, asmended,

amended in the futuren the future
standards:

Density and Density and DimensDimen

Minimum 
Minimum Minimum Lot D
Minimum 
Minimum Frmum Fr

m S
Minimum Minimum
Maximum
Minimu

General NGeneral N
1: The mThe m
2: The l
33:: The

strucs

(3)(3) BuBu
cc

ght.  General Retail Stores lght.  General Retail Stores 

c Use Permit (SUP) onse Permit (SUP) on

-ThruThru
ms
 allowed byd by--right.  General Rright.  General R

s. Any development ony developmen
be subject to the deveto the dev
(RO(RO) District as stip) District as stip

fied Development Codfied Developme
erein by granting this zein by grantin

all development shall opment shall

rementsrements

ack ack ((2)

ck
ween Buildings uildings 

Setback Setback 
age

h shall be measured at the h shall be measured at the FrF
ront Yard Building Setback ont Yard Building Setback aa

ht shall be measured to the shall be measured

dards. Building Standaards. Building 
e e Architectural Styles Architectural Sty

t shall adhere to the follshall adhere to the f

onry Requirements. ry Requirements. ThTh
cluding walls on a porchg walls on a porch
90%.  For the purposes0%.  For the purpose
full width brick, naturafull width brick, natur

apap--siding (siding (e.g. HardiBoe.g. HardiB
be used for up to be used for up to 100100
antianti-monotony restrictmonotony r
or similaror similar) shall be p) shrr

(b) AntiAnti-i Monotony. Monotony. AnA
terms of materialterms of materia
of the street.of the street

ger than 2,000r than 2,000

as depicted in as d
ndards required dards requ

Article V, le V, District District 
ce No. 04o. 0 -3838] as ] as 

ge, and as mayd as be 
e following building follow

ng Setbackg Setback.
m the front property line.m the front pro
e (e (whichever is greatewhichever is rr) of t) orr

g type and constructiope and constructi
Exhibit ‘G’ hibi of this ordinis ordi

ng standards:ng standard

masonry requirement fmasonry requirement 
tyard, or breezewayard, or breezeway) gr) g

nance, the masonry e, the masonry reqreq
cast stone.  Cementitementi

y Plank) and/or similar ilar
erior of the buildingng pep

d in this ordinance.  Stu.  Stu

tony standard shall nostandard shall 
on--any closer than fivny closer than fiv

183
183



(c) Common Areas and Open Space.  All common areas, dedicated landscape 
easements, and open space areas shall be maintained by a Homeowner’s 
Association, which shall be created subject to the requirements of the City’s 
Subdivision Ordinance and filed prior to approval of the final plat(s).

(d) Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit. A guest quarters/secondary living unit shall be 
permitted by-right within Phases 2 & 3 and subject to the following conditions:

(i) Such quarters must be ancillary to the primary use;

(ii) The area of such quarters shall not exceed 30% of the area of the main structure;

(iii) The area of such quarters shall also conform to the maximum lot coverage for 
the overall lot; and

(iv) No such use may be sold or conveyed separately without meeting the 
requirements of the zoning district and the Subdivision Ordinance.

(v) Such quarters shall be designed for temporary occupancy or as a secondary 
living unit.  These structures are not to be used as rental accommodations. 

(4) Access.  Lots with rear yards that abut Renfro Street shall not have access from Renfro 
Street.

(5) Parking Requirements.  Parking requirements for Phase 4 shall be all follows:

(a) Two (2) parking spaces per lot for single-family uses.

(b) One (1) additional space per 500 SF for non-residential uses as permitted by this 
ordinance.  Off-site common or shared parking agreements shall be considered for 
Phase 4, subject the review of the proposed parking area(s) with the required 
development plan.

Ordi

arters/Secondary L
d byd by--right within Phases

uch quarters must be auch qu

The area of such quarThe area of such qu

)) The area of such qThe area of such q
the overall lot;t and

(iv)(iv) No such use  su
requirements ofrequire

(v) Such quarterSuch quarte
living unit.  Tunit T

Access.  Access.  Lots with reLots with re
Street.Stree

Parking Requirerking Re

(a)(a Two (2) po (2) p

(b)(b) One (1One (1
ordinaordin
Phas
deve

mon areas, dedicatedmon areas, dedicate
e maintained by a e maintained by a 
to the requirements to the requirements

al of the final plat(s).of the final plat(s).

est quarters/secondary st quarters/secondary 
ubject to ubject to the following cfollow

e primary useprim ;

t exceed 30% of the areeed 30% of the are

 also conform to the malso conform to t

ld or conveyed sepad or conveyed sepa
district and the district and the SubdivisSubd

designed for temporaryd for tempora
ures are not to be used be used 

t abut Renfro Street sht abut Renfro Street sh

king requirements for uirements Ph

es per lot for singles per lot for single--famfam

space per 500 SF forer 500 SF fo
e common or shared pommon or shared 

t the review of the pt the review of the 
n.

n structurestru ;

coverage for rage for

out meeting the meeting the 
ce.

or as a secondary 
commodations. ommodations

access from Renfro ccess from Renfro 

be all follows:e all follows:

ntial uses as permittedl uses as permitted
ements shall be consis shall be cons

rking area(s) with theth th

184
184



185
185



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

186
186



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
MEMORANDUM  

TO: Mayor and City Council

CC: Rick Crowley, City Manager
Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 

DATE: January 22, 2019 

SUBJECT: A2018-005; Harlan Properties Inc. Annexation

On January 22, 2019, the City Council will be holding the first (6:00 PM) and second (6:30 PM)
public hearings to consider the voluntary annexation of 79.564-acres of land located within the 
City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).  Suresh Shridharani, on behalf of Harlan Properties Inc.,
is requesting the annexation for the purpose of incorporating the property into the City of 
Rockwall to develop a residential subdivision. 

Staff has followed the procedures for annexations as set forth in Chapter 43, Municipal 
Annexations, of the Texas Local Government Code relative to notifying affected property 
owners and publishing notices in the newspaper and on the City’s website.  Attached to this 
memorandum is a location map and service plan for the proposed annexation.  In addition, this 
document has been made available to the public at City Hall and on the City’s website.

No action on this matter is required by the City Council on January 22, 2019.  The 1st reading of 
the annexation ordinance is scheduled for February 18, 2019 and the 2nd (and final) reading of 
the ordinance is scheduled for March 4, 2019.

187
187



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!( !(!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!( !( !( !(

TA M

M
IE

LN

RO
DR

IG
UE

Z 
LN

STATE HIGHWAY 276

ST
EP

HA
N

I L
N

BL
A

C
KL

A
N

D 
RD

E FM
 550

MARLIN DR

MARRS, J R
SURVEY

JOHNSON, R E
SURVEY

WILSON, A M
SURVEY

MERRYMAN, J
SURVEY

11778

11826

11
78

8 11789

11
82

4

11
77

9

11
82

5

11
82

9
11

83
1

12
86

9

12
87

2 12
87

4

12
87

6

31
56

8

51
37

9

51
38

0

51381

51
37

8

57
18

7

60
89

4

61
34

9

61350

61351

63
13

4

86924

86771

86919

86920

88210

88538

88
53

9

0

0 100 200 300
Feet¯City of

Rockwall
Date: 11/7/2018

CITY OF ROCKWALL GIS

STATE HWY 276 EAST ANNEXATION
79.564 Acres

S 
FM

 5
48

RO
D

RI
G

UE
Z 

LN

E LINDA LN

TA
M

M
IE

 LN

R U
G

ER
D

R

HODGES
 LN

CRAWFORD CIR
SO

UT
HE

RN
 D

R

M
A

RK
 LN

MCDANIEL
 LN

ST
EP

HA
N

I L
N

WINCHESTER DR BL
A

C
KL

A
N

D 
RD

MARLIN DR

EASTRIDGE DR

STATE HIGHWAY 276

N MUNSON RD

REM
IN

G
TO

N
 DR

E 
FM

 5
50

N
O

RT
H

FO
RK

RD

Subject
Property

")276

HARLAN PROPERTIES INC
3,037,320.56 Sq. Ft.

69.727 Acres

N 7,016,938.629
E 2,626,520.649

POB

N 89°31' 08" E
297.01''

N
 0

0°
58

' 2
2"

 W
   

26
74

.1
5'

S 01°02' 36" E   1681.64'

J Merriman Survey
Abstract 155 - Tract 3

City of
Rockwall

N 89°27' 50" E
491.69''

N 88°50' 01" E
343.67''

S 00°55' 22" E    1001.69'
#

S 00°58' 29" E
107.674'

N 89°17' 09" E    2447.887'

S 89°26' 19" W    1845.456'

#

N 2°55' 30" W
120.102'

S 88°47' 29" W    1133.553'"
S 89° 27' 07" W

518.347'

#

S 89° 26' 19" W
80.031'

OVERALL
ANNEXATION AREA
3,465,804.520 Sq. Ft.

79.564 Acres

")276

")548

")550

")550

The data represented on this map was obtained with the best methods
available. Data is supplied from various sources and accuracy may be out
of the City of Rockwall’s control. The verification of accuracy and / or
content lies entirely with the end user. The City of Rockwall does not
guarantee the accuracy of contained information. All Information is provided
‘As Is’ with no warranty being made, either expressed or implied.

Legend
Subject Property

Parcels

City Limits

188
188



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 

BEING an approximate 79.564 acre tract of land situated in the J. Merriman Survey, Abstract 155, A.M. 
Wilson Survey, Abstract 223, and J.R. Marr’s Survey, Abstract 152 as recorded in the County of Rockwall, 
Texas and being more particularly described as follows: 

 
BEGINNING at a point in the Northwestern corner of Abstract J.R. Marr’s Survey, Tract 10-1 (105.925 
acres) and the South Right of Way line of State Highway 276, (NAD83- State Plane Coordinates, North 
Central Texas Zone 4202, N 7,016,938.629, E 2,626,520.649), said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
  
THENCE N.02°55'30"W., crossing State Highway 276, a distance of 120.102 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE N.89°17'09"E., along the North Right of Way line of State Highway 276, a distance of 2447.887 
feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE N.00°58'22"W., along the West property line of Abstract 155, Tract 3 (a 69.727 acre tract) a 
distance of 2674.15 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE N.89°31'08"E., along the North property line of said tract, a distance of 297.01 feet for a point; 
 
THENCE N.89°27'50"E., along the North property line, a distance of 491.69 feet for a point; 
 
THENCE N.88°50'01"E., along the North property line, a distance of 343.67 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.00°55'22"E., along the East property line, a distance of 1001.69 feet for a point; 
 
THENCE S.01°02'36"E., along the East property line, a distance of 1681.64 feet for a point; 
 
THENCE S.00°58'29"E., crossing State Highway 276, a distance of 107.674 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.88°47'29"W., along the South Right of Way line of State Highway 276, a distance of 1133.553 
feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.89°27'07"W., along said Right of Way line, a distance of 518.347 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.89°26'19"W., crossing Farm to Market 550, a distance of 80.031 feet for a corner; 
 
THENCE S.89°26'19"W., continuing along the South Right of Way line of State Highway 276, a distance of 
1845.456 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Containing 3,465,804.520 square feet or 79.564 acres, more 
or less. 
 
This description is intended to follow any adjacent recorded tract lines and existing City Limits or Road 
Right of Way lines. 
 
END OF DESCRIPTION. 

189
189



SERVICE PLAN FOR ANNEXED AREA
Annexation Case No. A2018-005 
City and County of Rockwall, Texas

Acreage Annexed: 79.564-acres

Survey Abstract and County: Tract 3 of the J. Merriman Survey, Abstract No. 155, Rockwall 
County, Texas

Date of Adoption of Annexation Ordinance: March 4, 2019

Municipal services to the acreage described above shall be furnished by or on behalf of the City 
of Rockwall, Texas, at the following levels and in accordance with the following schedule:

(A) Police Services

(1) Patrolling, responses to calls, and other routine police services, within the limits of 
existing personnel and equipment, will be provided within 60 days of the effective date 
of annexation.

(2) As development and construction commence within this area, sufficient police 
personnel and equipment will be provided to continue to furnish this area the level of 
police services consistent with police services available in other parts of the City with 
land uses and population densities similar to those projected in the annexed area.

(B) Fire Services

(1) Fire protection by the present personnel and the present equipment of the fire 
Department, within the limitations of available water and distances from existing fire 
stations, will be provided to this area within 60 days of the effective date of annexation.

(2) As development and construction commences within this area, sufficient fire personnel 
and equipment will be provided to continue to furnish this area the level of fire services 
consistent with fire service available in other parts of the City with land uses and 
population densities similar to those projected in the annexed area.

(C) Health and Code Compliance Services

(1) Enforcement of the City’s health ordinances and regulations including, but not limited 
to, weed and brush ordinances, junked and abandoned vehicle ordinances, food 
handlers ordinances and animal control ordinances, shall be provided within this area 
on the effective date of the annexation ordinance. These ordinances and regulations 
will be enforced through the use of existing personnel. Complaints of ordinance or 
regulation violations within this area will be responded and investigated by existing 
personnel beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance.

(2) The City’s building, plumbing, electrical, gas heating, air conditioning and all other 
construction codes will be enforced within this area beginning with the effective date of 
the annexation ordinance. Existing personnel will be used to provide these services.

(3) The City’s zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances shall be enforced in this area 
beginning on the effective date of the annexation ordinance.

190
190



(4) All inspection services furnished by the City of Rockwall, but not mentioned above, will 
be provided to this area beginning on the effective date of the annexation ordinance.  
Any property owner or his/her assigns who in good faith has a new building or 
structure, as defined in the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, under construction on 
the effective date of annexation shall be exempted from these inspections for that 
building or structure under construction for a period of one year from the effective date 
of annexation. For the purpose of this ordinance “under construction” shall mean any 
work that requires a building permit from the City of Rockwall. 

(5) As development and construction commence within this area, sufficient personnel will 
be provided to continue to furnish this area the same level of Health and Code 
compliance services as are furnished throughout the City.

(D) Planning and Zoning Services

(1) The planning and zoning jurisdiction of the City will extend to this area on the effective 
date of the annexation ordinance. City planning will thereafter encompass this 
property, and it shall be entitled to consideration for zoning in accordance with the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, Landscape Ordinance and Code of 
Ordinances.

(E) Recreation and Leisure Services

(1) Residents of this property may utilize all existing recreational and leisure services 
facilities and sites throughout the City beginning with the effective date of the 
annexation ordinance.

(2) Existing parks, playgrounds, swimming pools and other recreation and leisure facilities 
within this property shall, upon dedication to and acceptance by the City, be 
maintained and operated by the City of Rockwall.

(F) Solid Waste Collection

(1) Solid waste collection shall be provided to the property owner in accordance with 
existing City policies as to frequency and charges, beginning on the effective date of 
annexation except for properties that are served by a privately owned solid waste 
management service provider. Such properties will be allowed to continue private 
service for a period of two years from the effective date of annexation at which time the 
property will be required to begin service with a franchised solid waste contractor 
within the City of Rockwall. 

(G) Streets

(1) The City of Rockwall’s existing policies with regard to street maintenance, applicable 
throughout the entire City, shall apply to this property beginning immediately as of the 
effective date of the annexation ordinance.

(2) As development, improvements or construction of streets to the City standards 
commence within this property, the policies of the City of Rockwall with regard to 
impact fees and participation in the cost thereof, acceptance upon completion, and 
maintenance after completion, shall apply.

(3) The same level of maintenance shall be provided to streets within this property that 
have been accepted by the City of Rockwall as is provided to like City streets 
throughout the City.

191
191



(H) Water Services

(1) Connection to existing City water mains for water services for domestic, commercial 
and industrial use within this property will be provided in accordance with existing City 
policies. Upon connection to existing mains, water will be provided at rates established 
by City ordinance for such services throughout the City.

(2) Water mains of the City will be extended in accordance with provisions of the Code of 
Ordinances and other applicable ordinances and regulations. City participation in the 
costs of these extensions shall be in accordance with applicable City ordinances and 
regulations and will be provided as otherwise available in other parts of the City with 
topography, land uses, population densities similar to those reasonably contemplated 
or projected in the annexed area.

(3) Water mains which are within the annexed area and are owned and operated by the 
City shall be maintained beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance 
or upon acquisition by the City.

(4) Private water lines within this property shall be maintained by their owners, in 
accordance with existing policies applicable throughout the City.

(I) Sanitary Sewer Services

(1) Connections to existing City sanitary sewer mains for sanitary sewage service in this 
area will be provided in accordance with the existing City policies. Upon connection, 
sanitary sewage service will be provided at rates established by City ordinances for 
such services throughout the City.

(2) Sanitary sewer mains and/or lift stations which are within the annexed area and are 
connected to City mains shall be maintained by the City of Rockwall beginning with the 
effective date of the annexation ordinance or upon acquisition by the City.

(3) Sanitary sewer mains of the City will be extended in accordance with the provisions of 
the Code of Ordinances and engineering standards and other applicable ordinances 
and regulations. City participation in the costs of these extensions shall be in 
accordance with applicable City ordinances and regulations and will be provided as 
otherwise availably in other parts of the City with topography, land uses, and 
population densities similar to those reasonably contemplated or projected in the area.

(4) Previously granted exceptions to the requirements of connections to the city’s sanitary 
sewer treatment system shall be continued until such alternate systems are 
determined to no longer function to meet the sanitary sewer needs of the subdivision 
granted the exception.  

(J) Public Utilities  

(1) Other public utilities will be provided by the City’s franchisee or a provider holding a 
certificate of convenience issued by the state to serve that area.

(K) Miscellaneous

(1) General municipal administration services of the City shall be available to the annexed 
area beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance. 

192
192



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

193
193



Z2018-058; SUP for Craft Winery & Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) 

MEMORANDUM   

City Manager
Assistant City Manager 
Director of Planning and Zoning

Planning and Zoning Manager

SUP for a Craft Winery & Commercial Amusement/Recreation 
(Outdoor)

Craft Winery Commercial Amusement/Recreation
Outdoor

Tuesday, January 22, 2019,

February 4, 2018

Public Hearing Postponements, Recess, and Continuations

194
194



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Letter Requesting Postponement  

Z2018-058; SUP for Craft Winery & Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) 

195
195



SUP for a Craft Winery and Commercial Amusement/ 
             Recreation (Outdoor) 

Craft Winery Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) 

Craft Winery Commercial Amusement/Recreation Outdoor
at 203 County Line Road

i.e. no retail sales
Craft 

Winery
Craft Winery 

i.e. 40% of 
total SF

Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) i.e. outdoor venue

i.e. nights, weekends, and occasionally on Mondays and holidays
e.g. 

acoustic guitar

Land Use Schedule Permissible Uses
Craft Winery Commercial Amusement/Recreation 

(Outdoor)
Permissible Uses Craft

Winery
i.e. area under roof

196
196



Craft Winery

FM-3097

North:

South:

i.e. multi-tenant strip centers and individual standing buildings

East:

West:
FM-3097 i.e. Texas 

Department of Transportation, four [4] lane, roadway

197
197



Craft Winery Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) 

A. Craft Winery: 

Exhibit ‘C’

Exhibit
‘D’

B. Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) 

Commercial Amusement/Recreation utdoor
Concept Plan Exhibit ‘B’ 

Subject Property
outdoor venue
Exhibit ‘B’

utdoor Venue

Subject Property

Subject Property
FM-3097

UDC International Building Code Rockwall 
Municipal Code of Ordinances

Commercial
Amusement/Recreation Outdoor

198
198



HORIZON

COUNTY LINE

C

AG

PD-75

Z2018-058 - SUP FOR CRAFT WINERY AND
COMMERCIAL AMUSEMENT (OUTDOOR)
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I

Subject
Property

199
199



TEXAS

TR
O

U
T

COUNTRY

CLUB

TE
NN

IS
 V

IL
LA

GE

COUNTY LINE

EVA

B
LA

N
C

H
E

ALTHEA

DIANA

WIM
BLE

DON

DONALD

PERCH

CENTE
R

HORIZON

VA
LE

R
IE

LA
K

ES
ID

E

MEDICAL

YV
O

N
N

E

C
H

R
IS

LY
N

N
E

R
A

N
C

H

Rainbow Lakes

0 360 720 1,080 1,440180
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RIDGE

GOLIAD

FM
 549

W
HI

TE

EV
A

OAK

BASS

COUNTRY CLU
B

H W
ALLA

CE
LO

FL
AN

D

CH
RI

S

KIN
GS

CULLINS

RE
N

EE

ROCKW
ALL

EVANS

RISE

TU
BB

S

RA
NC

H

TRAVISFAITH

ST
AB

LE
GL

EN

SEQUOIA

Q
U

IN
CY

SE
RE

N
IT

Y

ALTHEA

Case Number:

Case Address:

Case Type:

Case Name:

Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500'_Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2018-058

203 County Line Road

Zoning

SUP for a Craft Winery and Commercial
Amusement (Outdoor)

Commercial (C) District

12/18/2018

Subject
Property

200
200



5250

5335

5242

5573

505

5573

5627

5653

254/272

5739

295

259

367
289235

5543

5485

196/216

300

354/356

370
401

109

422

285

335

5399

445

162
133

382

124

164

411

137

247

109

126

251

103

420

242

132

254

463

229

212

135

152

148

180

149

159

175

187

199

168

390

190

363

281

376

353

185

195

238

281

317

305

178

226 219

156

209

329

373

202

120

214

229

265

149

132

163

144

389

175

341

219

178

192

147

202

159

173

197

400

378

362

330

316

310

302

288

276

230

212

204

192

178

391

207

400

344

184

162

194
204

176

139

355

444

332 124

214

458

324

165

179

189

245

305

245

375

177

245264

265

294
199

157108

217

239
229

209

154136

149

4065

238

304

146

154

162

172

254

186

274

198

214

280
288

228

141

145

173
304

163

127

118

223

315

109

111

278

265

293
277

127

176

140

151

188

4275
4215

427

123

147

135

163

3985

208

290

4485

3885

133

154
166

130

174

118

384

383

205

256
250

230
218

202
194

182

232

266

252

211

115

242
185

173

193

128

209

132

172 164

154160

144

44254375

323

199
189

4175

194

4125

235

208 331

209

266

238

257

168

199

397152

HORIZON

EV
A

RA
NC

H

COUNTY LINE

DIANA

M
ED

IC
AL

DONALD

0 270 540 810 1,080135
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

HORIZON RD

EV
A 

PL

TU
BB

S 
RD CH

RI
S 

DR

RE
N

EE
 D

R

COUNTY LINE RD

TR
O

U
T 

RD

W
AY

N
E 

DR

W
HI

TE
 R

D

EAGLE PASS

TENNIS VILLAGE DR

WINDSONG LN

SKYLAR DR

TU
BBS R

D

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2018-058

203 County Line Road

Case Type: Zoning

Case Name: SUP for a Craft Winery and Commercial
Amusement (Outdoor)

Zoning: Commercial (C) District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 12/18/2018

Legend
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

Subject
Property

201
201



202
202



203
203



204
204



 
 

205
205



206
206



COUNTY LINE RD

0 40
Feet Z2018-058¯City of

Rockwall
Date: 12/19/2018

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Parking Area
& Overflow

Legend
Seating Area

Music

Food Vendors

Event Area

Overall Site

Music

Seating Food
Vendors

HORIZON RD

COUNTY LINE RD

EV
A

 P
L

VA
LE

RI
E 

PL

M
ED

IC
AL D

R

^èéí

207
207



208
208



20'

Retail and Tasting Area 500sp ft = 40%

209
209



City of Rockwall, Texas

ORDINANCE NO. 04-38

CRAFT WINERY 
COMERCIAL AMUSEMENT/RECREATION (OUTDOOR) 

Craft Winery Commercial
Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) Craft Winery

Exhibit ‘A’ Subject 
Property

Ordinance No. 04-38

Ordinance No. 04-38

Craft Winery Commercial 
Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor)  IV, Permissible Uses, 

Ordinance No. 04-38 Subject Property

Subject Property 

Section 1.1, Land Use Schedule, Article IV, Permissible Uses, Section 4.5, 
Commercial (C) District, Article V, District Development Standards, 

DINANCE NO.DINA

OMERCIAL AMUSEMMERCIAL AMUSE

ement/Recreation (Ouent/Recreation (

Exhibit ‘A’ Exhibit 
Propertyoperty

CRAFT AFT 
REATION (OUTDOOTION (OUTDOO

Ordinancedinanc

ecreation (Outdoor) ation (Outdoor
Ordinance NoOrdinance No

Subject Subj

Section 1.1, Land Uection 1.1, Land U
rcial (C) District, al (C) District, 

nery ery CommerCommer
raft Wineryraft Wineryy

88

Ordinance No

CraCra
 IV, Perm

Subject PropertySubject Proper

le, le, Article IV, PeArticle IV,
V, District DevelopV, District Develo

210
210



City of Rockwall, Texas

Ordinance No. 04-38

Craft Winery Commercial 
Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) Subject Property 

A. Craft Winery: 

Exhibit ‘C’

Exhibit ‘D’

B. Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outdoor) 

commercial amusement/recreation outdoor
Concept Plan Exhibit ‘B’ 

Subject Property
outdoor venue

Exhibit ‘B’

outdoor venue

Subject Property

Subject Property 

Council Approval or Denial
Authority and Administrative Procedures

after proper notice
Permissible Uses

(Outdoor)(Out

y: y: 

Commercial Amuseommercial Am

Subject PSubject P
outdooroutd

Exhibit ‘B’Exh ’

SubSu

Craft Winery Craft Winery 
Property Property

Exhibit ‘C’Exh ’

eation (Outdoor) ion (Outdoor) 

commercial ommer
Concept Plan Concept Plan 

rtyrty

d Administrative ProceAdministrati

after properope

Exhibit ‘D’bit ‘D’’’

t/recreation t/recreatio outdoorr
ibit ‘B’ ibit ‘

or venueor venue

Subjeubje

Council Apcil A

211
211



City of Rockwall, Texas

TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS $2,000.00

 Mayor 

 City Secretary 

 City Attorney 

January 22, 2019

February 4, 2019

TWO THOUTWO

 City  Cit

LLARSARSSS $2,000.00$2,000.00

y Attorney Attorney

nuary 22, 2019nuary 22, 2019

February 4, 2019ruary 4, 2019

ayor 

212
212



Legal Description: Tracts 20-01 & 20-7 of the W.W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80 

City of Rockwall, Texas

Survey, Abstract NoSurvey, Ab

213
213



Concept Plan 

City of Rockwall, Texas

214
214



Floor Plan 

City of Rockwall, Texas

215
215



Retail and Tasting Area Plan 

City of Rockwall, Texas

216
216



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

217
217



CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 01/22/2019

APPLICANT:  Heather Cullins

AGENDA ITEM: Z2018-059; Zoning Change (SFE-2.0 to SFE-1.5) 

SUMMARY:

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Heather Cullins for the approval of a
zoning change from a Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District to Single Family Estate 1.5 
(SFE-1.5) District on a 3.03-acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-01 of the T. Dean Survey, 
Abstract No. 69, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family Estate 2.0 
(SFE-2.0) District, addressed as 1085 Dalton Road, and take any action necessary.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND PURPOSE: 

The applicant is requesting a change in zoning from a Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0)
District to a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District for the purpose of subdividing the 
subject property.  The subject property is situated on a 3.03-acre tract of land, zoned Single-
Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, and is addressed as 1085 Dalton Road.

The subject property was annexed in 1983 [Ordinance No. 83-57] and was part of a larger tract 
of land.  In 2018, the previous property owner requested to rezone the subject property from an 
Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District [Z2017-045] and 
platted [P2017-049] the tract of land. As part of this case, the previous property owner stated
the purpose of platting the property was to create two (2) lots (i.e. Lots 1 & 2, Hodgdon Addition)
to construct a single-family home on Lot 1. The applicant purchased the subject property (i.e. 
Lot 1) in 2017 for the purpose of constructing a single-family home.  According to the applicant, 
after purchasing the subject property, another property was discovered and the plan to construct 
a single-family home on the subject property was abandoned.  The applicant as also stated 
there have been inquiries about purchasing the subject property; however, the size of the lot 
(i.e. 3.05-acres) was too large, and potential buyers only wanted half or a portion of the lot.
Based on this, the applicant is requesting to re-zone the subject property with the intent of 
subdividing the tract of land into two (2) ~1½-acre lots. Currently, floodplain traverses the 
property and should any improvements impact the floodplain, a flood study could be required.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The land uses adjacent to the subject property are all follows:

North: Directly north of the subject property is Dalton Road, which is identified as a M4U 
(Major Collector, four [4] lane, undivided roadway).  Beyond this is a tract of vacant 
land that is zoned Agriculture (AG) District.

    
South: Directly south of the subject property is a single-family residential subdivision [i.e. 

Promenade Harbor] zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District.  Beyond this is 
Asbourne Drive which is identified as a Minor Collector.

East: Directly east of the subject property is a single-family residential subdivision [i.e. The 
Shores] zoned Planned Development District 3 (PD-3).   Beyond this is a large tract 
of land that is zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  

218
218



West: Directly west of the subject property is a single-family residential subdivision [i.e. 
Promenade Harbor] zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District.  Beyond this is a large 
tract of land [i.e. the Takeline] that is outside of the City Limits.  

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:

According to the purpose statements stipulated in Subsection 3.02, Single-Family Estate 1.5
(SFE-1.5) District, of Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC), the Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District is the “…proper zoning 
classification for rural, estate lots that are a minimum of 1½-acres.  Since the subject property is 
3.03-acres, it conforms to the requirements of the Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District 
development standards.  The following is a summary of the minimum development standards 
for a property within a Single-Family 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District: 

Ordinance Provisions Zoning District Standards
Minimum Lot Area 65,340 SF
Minimum Lot Width 150-Feet
Minimum Lot Depth 250-Feet
Minimum Front Yard Setback 50-Feet
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 10-Feet
Minimum Side Yard Setback 25-Feet
Maximum Height 36-Feet
Minimum Masonry Requirement 80%
Minimum Dwelling SF 2,500
Maximum Building Coverage 35%
Minimum Length of Driveway 20-Feet

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The Future Land Use Plan adopted with the OurHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, 
designates the subject property for Low Density Residential land uses, which is defined as 
developments with two (2) units per acre or less. The applicant’s request is in conformance with 
this designation and will not require any changes to the Future Land Use Map.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

When analyzing the applicant’s request (i.e. to rezone the subject property for the purpose of 
subdividing the tract of land) and the size of the subject property (i.e. three [3]-acres), the
Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District appears to be an appropriate zoning district.
Although the subject property could be divided into two (2) smaller estate lots (i.e. two [2] 1½ -
acre lots) if this zoning change is approved, this request would not change the Low Density 
Residential (LDR) land use designation on the property.   With that being said, approval of a 
zoning change is discretionary for the City Council, pending a recommendation by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission.

NOTIFICATION:

On December 28, 2018, staff mailed 68 notices to property owners and residents within 500-feet
of the subject property.  Staff also notified the Promenade Harbor and the Shores/Ray Hubbard 
Homeowner’s Associations (HOA’s) which are the only HOA’s/Neighborhood Associations
within 1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program.  
Staff also advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Harold Banner as required by the 
Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this case memo was drafted staff had received 
one (1) notice in opposition of this case.  Since this represents more than 20% of the properties 
within the 200-foot notification buffer, a 3/4 majority vote of all Council Members present is 
required for this request to be approved.

219
219



RECOMMENDATIONS:

Should the City Council approve the change in zoning, staff would recommend the following 
conditions of approval:

1) Any construction or building necessary to complete this change in zoning request must 
conform to the requirements set forth by the UDC, the International Building Code, the 
Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with 
all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and 
federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

On January 15, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to recommend approval of 
the zoning change from a Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District to a Single-Family 1.5 
(SFE-1.5) District with staff recommendations passed by a vote of 7-0.  

220
220



DALTON

TA
N

GL
EV

IN
E

AG

SFE-2 PD-3

SF
-1

0
Z2018-059 - ZONING CHANGE (SFE-2.0 to SFE-1.5)
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 60 120 180 24030
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I221

221



WINDSOR

CAVENDISH

H
O

LD
EN

W
HITNEY

BAY

BELFRY

SH
O

A
L

C
R

EE
K

HA
RL

AN

BOGGS

ASHBOURNE

DESERT FALLS

SH
O

R
ES

ASHBOURNE

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E TANGLEVINE

BESSIE

GRANDVIEW

MCKINZIE

WHITNEY LAKES

A
R

G
YL

E 
SH

O
R

E

FE
R

N
 V

A
LL

EY

B
EA

C
O

N
 H

IL
L

G
R

EE
N

 G
A

B
LE

S

MIRAGE

O
C

O
N

N
EL

L

EG
A

N
R

ID
G

E

PINEHURST

CLEARMEADOW

HU
NT

ODELL

B
ER

K
D

A
LE

H
EATH

ER
 G

LEN

N
O

VA
 P

A
R

K

DALTON

AVO
N

LEA

Promenade
Harbor The Shores/Ray

Hubbard

0 330 660 990 1,320165
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

G
O

LI
AD

DALTON

JO
HN

 K
IN

G

FM 552

SHORES

HUNT

HA
YS

FEATHERSTONE

YO
RKPO

TT
ER

AVONLEA

HO
LDEN

GREE
NW

AY

BARLASS

PR
O

M
EN

AD
E

BE
RK

DA
LE

SHENANDOAHCase Number:

Case Address:

Case Type:
Case Name:

Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2018-059

1085 Dalton Road

Zoning
Zoning Change (SFE-2.0 to SFE-1.5)

SFE-2 District

12/17/2018
222

222



From: Morales, Laura
To:
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Brooks, Korey
Subject: Neighborhood Noification Program: Notice of zoning request
Date: Friday, December 28, 2018 2:46:40 PM
Attachments: PUBLIC NOTICE.pdf

Z2018-059 HOA Map.pdf

To whom it may concern:
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notification
to inform your organization and residents of a request for a zoning change that lies within 1,500 feet
of the boundaries of your neighborhood or subdivision.  As the primary contact for the organization,
you are encouraged to share this information with the residents of your subdivision.  Please find
attached a map detailing the location of the subject property requesting the zoning change in
relation to your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is a summary of the zoning request that
was published in the Rockwall Herald Banner December 28, 2018.   The Planning and Zoning
Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday 1/15/2019 at 6:00 p.m., and the City Council will
hold a public hearing on Tuesday 1/22/2019 at 6:00 p.m. These hearings will be held in the City
Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. These hearings will be held in the City Council
Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. If you have any questions or comments regarding this
request, the contact information for the Planning Department is listed below.  Additional
information can also be found at
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases
 

Z2018-059- Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Heather Cullins for the
approval of a zoning change from a Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District to Single Family
Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District on a 3.03-acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-01 of the T. Dean
Survey, Abstract No. 69, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family
Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, addressed as 1085 Dalton Road, and take any action necessary.
 

If this email is reaching you in error, please forward it to your HOA or neighborhood group
representative and update the contact information at http://www.rockwall.com/planning/hoa.asp.
 
Sincerely,
 
 
Laura Morales
Planning & Zoning Coordinator
City of Rockwall Planning & Zoning Department
972-771-7745 | 972-772-6438
Lmorales@rockwall.com |http://www.rockwall.com/planning/
 

223
223



1750

1085

408

505

410

406

505

507

503

7109

1440

7107

915

7133

7102

7122
7135

7100

1465

1290

7108

7124

1340

7101

7141

7105

7100

3903

2810

7101

7201

2705

7103

2705

7111

2820

7104

7203

7116

7103

7114

7119

7113

7107

7109

7104

2665

7106

7112

2735

7110

931

7117

7139

7108

7102

7114

921

2800

7137

7205

7112

7120

2760

1625

7105

7126

2765

7140

7118

7134

7138

848

7136

7110

7121

2750

1545

2825

1755

933

2710

844

1270

2715

935

2735

2745

846919

1410

2725

917

2830

1745

2705

1690

27552755

2765

1370

3851

1420

2770

1685

2775

2750
2740

2730

2710

2745

1740

2760

2740

2815

1730

2805

2785

2720
2710

2755

2730

2795

2785

2715

2725

2815

2735

1720

1735

2795

2780

1725

2805

1700

2765

2720

2775

27451705

1715

2720

1710

2660

2800

2730

2820

2740

2750

2760

2790

2810

2770

2780

2710

2700

2690

2720

2680

2670

2730

2770

2740

2750

2760

7111

1805

7106

7113

1395

7132 7130

71527146 71567144 7148
7154

7115

7150

7128

7145

7142

71557147
7143

1715

7149 7151

2685

13051815

7153

1265

1680

7157

2800

1400

1885

1007

1325

1310

1750

2860

18001890

1675

1395

1825

1330

2820

2855

1645

2865

1295

1655

1005 1003
1001

1855

1670

1835
1875

1385

1505

1845

1865

1830

2681

1280

1475

1840

1360

1390

1860

14851525
1495

1870
1880

1660

1375

1850

1515
2691

1340
1350

2825

1365

1365 1335
1355

1705

1325

1380

1345
1275

1315

1370

2701

2830

2711

1335

2720

1345

2840

1355

1285

3855

2731

2710

2730

2711

2700

2845

2823

2835

2721

26902681

2721

2691
2701

2680

2740

2750

7133

2731
2741

2720
2710

2740
2730

7121

7101

7111

1695

7105

7109

10601840 1820 16401720

DALTON

HUNT

AVONLEA

SHO
RES

PR
O

M
EN

A
D

E EGANRIDGE

CLEARMEADOW

0 260 520 780 1,040130
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

DALTON RD

N 
GO

LI
AD

 S
T

SH
O

RE
S 

BL
VD

FM 552

HUNT LN

AVONLEA DR

HO
LDEN

 DR

AMHERST DR
POTTER AVE

GOLD COAST DR

PR
O

M
EN

AD
E 

PL

OAK HOLLOW LN

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2018-059

1085 Dalton Road

Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Zoning Change (SFE-2.0 to SFE-1.5)

Zoning: SFE-2 District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created: 12/17/2018

Legend
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

224
224



CULLINS KENNETH & HEATHER 
1020 TIMBERLINE DR  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
1085  DALTON RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

WALKER LEONARD A JR & TRESSIA Y 
1340 TANGLEVINE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

SWAN OLGA MARIE GARCIA AND 
REGINA K SWAN 

1345 CLEAR MEADOW COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

JESTER IRVING P & ALICE 
1345 TANGLEVINE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
1350  CLEARMEADOW CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
1355  TANGLEVINE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

SANDERS BRIAN PETER AND CASSANDRA ALICE 
1355 CLEAR MEADOW CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SAMPLES CHRISTINA ELISE 
1360 TANGLEVINE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

THOMSON MARTA CAGLE AND WARREN KIT 
1365 CLEARMEADOW CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

HEARN LESLIE 
1365 TANGLEVINE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

VANDERVER WES A & SARA A 
1370 CLEAR MEADOW COURT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

HOLMES WILLIAM JR 
1370 TANGLEVINE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
1375  CLEARMEADOW CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

LANGFORD JAMES GORDON & PEGGY 
1380 TANGLEVINE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
1385  TANGLEVINE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

NEECE DAVID W SR & LYNNE MARIE 
1390 TANGLEVINE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
1395  TANGLEVINE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

HOWARD STEPHANIE RAMAGE AND 
GREGORY MAYO HOWARD 
1395 CLEAR MEADOW CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

ALLEN DARONDA RENEE 
1400 TANGLEVINE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

BRINKLEY JESSE K 
1410 TANGLEVINE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

SHOLTIS EUGENE J JR AND SHANNON L 
1420 TANGLEVINE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

COFFMAN THOMAS E & 
LINDA DARNELL 

1431 COASTAL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
1440  TANGLEVINE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

CLARK CHARLES L & SANDRA J TRUSTEES 
CHARLES L & SANDRA J CLARK FAMILY TRUST 

1739 MORLEY STREET  
SIMI VALLEY, CA 93065 

 

 

WILLIS MICHAEL & LISA 
1750 DALTON RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

ALVES SAMUEL 
2080 BERKDALE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

LANGSTON TIFFINI S 
215 HARRIS COVE  

LONGVIEW, TX 75605 
 

 

PARKS NADINE R 
2701 NOVA PARK CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SMITHERS VICTORIA & DAVID 
2710 NOVA PARK CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

225
225



MICHIE JOHN D & PHYLLIS R 
2711 NOVA PARK CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

IZAK MARY L 
2720 NOVA PARK CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
2721  NOVA PARK CT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

GILMORE PATRICK 
2730 NOVA PARK CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

NIEBUR ALAN R & COURTNEY 
2731 EGANRIDGE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

LOWRANCE ALVA BERNICE LIFE ESTATE AND 
PAMELA KAY GUTHRIE AND ROBERT LYNN 

LOWRANCE 
2731 NOVA PARK CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

KEEL DON E & NANCY A 
2740 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

NABI HOSNI A & LYNN 
2740 NOVA PARK CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

WOODDELL SCOTT W AND DEBBIE L 
2741 NOVA PARK CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

GRASTY RAYMOND B 
2750 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

SIMMONS JANAH 
2760 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

SCHAFFHAUSER SUSAN K 
2765 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
2770  BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

THOMPSON DONALD AND MARY 
2775 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

BRITTAIN WAYNE W & 
BARBARA J 

2780 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

BERGMANN KATHARINA 
2785 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PALMIERI SALVATORE & THERESE A 
2790 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
2795  BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

ONEILL KATHLEEN E 
2800 BEACON HILL DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
2810  BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

MCDANIEL DAVID L & LINDA D 
2810 CAVENDISH CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

WALKER DONALD H 
2815 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

HOLBROOK SANDRA 
2820 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

EDWARDS SUSAN L 
2820 CAVENDISH CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

JOHNSON DAVID J 
2825 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

JACOBSON KYLE AND CHLOE A REED 
2830 BEACON HILL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CHIU THOMAS 
301 CRESTBROOK  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

AMH 2015-2 BORROWER LLC 
30601 AGOURA RD 0 

AGOURA HILLS, CA 91301 
 

 

ALEJOS ERIK J 
6500 CHAMPION GRANDVIEW WAY APT 33201  

AUSTIN, TX 78750 
 

 

NABORS MIKE N ETUX JULIE 
7101 HUNT LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

226
226



DOWNS MICHAEL 
7103 HUNT LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CURRENT RESIDENT 
7105  HUNT LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CSH 2016-2 BORROWER LLC 
8665 EAST HARTFORD DR 0 

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85255 
 

ARP 2014-1 BORROWER LLC 
ATTN: PROPERTY TAX DEPARTMENT  

AGOURA HILLS, CA 91301 
 

 

HODGDON DAVID L & SUE WYCHE 
PO BOX 1106  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

ESB PRIVATE TRUST 
FROST BANK TRUSTEE 

PO BOX 226657  
DALLAS, TX 75222 

 

FLORES JAMES AND 
PATRICIA ORR FLORES 

PO BOX 237  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

FLORES JAMES & PATRICIA 
PO BOX 992  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

  

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

227
227



228
228

✔

This property was rezoned AG to SFE-2.0 in Nov 2017 at the request of Heather Cullins.
50% of the 3.03 Acres is in a FEMA Flood Plane A with a buildable area of 30,315 Sq Ft.
The creation of the proposed SFE-1.5 lots would bring the buildable area down to
 11,940 Sq Ft due to side setbacks. This is not a desirable situation.

David Hodgdon
1085 Dalton Road, Rockwall, TX 75087 214-514-5599



2800

2790

2780

13
55

13
95

2795

2805

7105

71
06

7101

28
20

507
7109

7107

2815

1755

28302825

2820

1705

1685

1675

1655

16
45

27
20

2810

1625
1545

2720

2710

13
80

13
70

14
40

1420

13
60

2755

27651725

1715

2700

26901475 1465

2741

2731

28
10

2711

1400

13
90

2701

2711

13
65

13
55

2721

1525 1515 1505 1495

13
50

13
70

1395

1385

16
60

2710

1485

13
45

2740

2730

2720
13

45

13
35

7103

13
35

2770

2760

2750

1745

1735

71
04

2730

2721

2731

27
35

1410

2701

2691

2740

13
65

2775

2785

71
02

71
00

2691

2745

2730

1340

13
75

13
40

2750

13
30

2740

17
50

10
85

0 100 200 300 400
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

SHORES BLVD

BORDEAUX DR

HA
RL

AN
 D

R

OD
EL

L A
VE

MIRAGE LN

E FM 552HU
NT

 LN

AMHERST DR

TANGLEVINE DR

BE
RK

DA
LE

 LNNO
VA

 PA
RK

 C
T

PR
O

M
EN

AD
E 

PL

ASHBOURNE DR

AVO
N

LEA

DR

EG
AN

RI
DG

E L
N

BE
AC

O
N

 H
IL

L D
R

N 
GO

LI
AD

 S
T

DALTON RD

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

AGAINST 37.13%

FOR 0.00%

NO RESPONSE 52.06%

ROW 10.81%

Legend
200' Buffer

Subject Property

Notification Area

Parcels

Z2018-059 - ZONING CHANGE (SFE 2.0 - SFE 1.5)

1/15/2019
229

229



N
O

TE
S

SU
R

VE
Y 

D
AT

E
SC

AL
E

C
LI

EN
T

FI
LE

 #
H

.D
. F

et
ty

 L
an

d 
Su

rv
ey

or
, L

LC

2)
 B

EA
R

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
E:

 C
IT

Y 
O

F 
R

O
C

KW
AL

L 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
M

O
N

U
M

EN
T 

SY
ST

EM
.

3)
 A

LL
 1

/2
" I

R
S 

AR
E 

C
AP

PE
D

 W
IT

H
  Y

EL
LO

W
 P

LA
ST

IC
 C

AP
S 

"R
PL

S 
50

34
."

4)
 N

O
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, F

IL
L,

 C
U

T,
 O

R
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 T

H
E 

FL
O

O
D

 P
LA

IN
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
AN

 A
PP

R
O

VE
D

 
   

 F
LO

O
D

 S
TU

D
Y 

AN
D

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

ED
 P

LA
N

S.

5)
 O

W
N

ER
S 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 A

LL
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E,
 R

EP
AI

R
 A

N
D

 R
EP

LA
C

IN
G

 O
F 

AL
L 

D
R

AI
N

AG
E

   
SY

ST
EM

S 
O

N
 T

H
E 

LO
TS

.
Fi

rm
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
no

. 1
01

50
9-

00

1)
 A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 F

.E
.M

.A
. F

lo
od

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
R

at
e 

M
ap

. C
om

m
un

ity
 P

an
el

 N
o.

 4
83

97
C

00
30

 L
 d

at
ed

 
   

SE
PT

 2
6,

 2
00

8,
 th

is
 p

ro
pe

rty
 li

es
 in

 Z
on

es
 A

 &
 X

. P
ar

t o
f t

hi
s 

pr
op

er
ty

 d
oe

s 
ap

pe
ar

 to
 li

e 
w

ith
in

 a
 1

00
-y

ea
r 

   
flo

od
 p

la
in

. 

SI
TE

LO
C

AT
IO

N

13
5.

32
'

531.17'367.54'

BASIS OF BEARINGS
PO

IN
T 

O
F

BE
G

IN
N

IN
G

ZO
N

E 
A

ZO
N

E 
X

ZO
N

E 
X

ZO
N

E 
A

ZO
N

E 
A

ZO
N

E 
A

ZO
N

E 
A

ZO
N

E 
X

ZO
N

E 
X

ZO
N

E 
X

N 0°22'39''W  365.08'

10
0 

YR
 F

LO
O

D 
PL

AI
N

PE
R 

CA
RD

IN
AL

 S
TR

AT
EG

IE
S

FL
O

O
D 

ST
UD

Y

18
1.

66
15

.4
5

28
3.

28
'

18
1.

66
'

23
0

23
0



ZO
N

E 
A

ZO
N

E 
X ZO

N
E 

A

46
4'

-1
0"

367.54'

13
5.

32
''

N
66

°4
2'

52
"

W
15

6.
23

'

N
30

°2
1'

19
"

W
94

.2
3'

W
ES

T
19

7
12

'

16
8'

-4
"

29
6'

-6
"

25'-0"

59
'-0

"

82
'-3

"

10
1'

-6
"

11
5'

-1
1"

11
9'

-2
"

12
2'

-5
"

12
8'

-4
"

77
'-3

"

84
'-9

"

92
'-4

"

10
8'

-3
"

15
2'

-2
"

17
0'

-5
"

16
9'

-4
"

121'-6"

159'-4"

180'-6"

195'-5"

196'-1"

185'-10"

175'-7"

108'-8"

90'-7"

76'-7"

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

25
'-0

"

25'-0"

25
'-0

"

10
,0

30
SF

10
,9

77
SF

25
' E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

25
' E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
25

' E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

57
'-6

 1/
2"

280'-10 1/2"

   
O

F 
1

S
H

E
E

T 
N

O
.1085 DALTON RD. • ROCKWALL • TX

09.17.2018

PROJECT/CLIENT:

DATE:

LOCATION:

CULLINS PROPERTY

NORTH

DESIGNS
LATIMER

INC
903.268.1167

CUSTOM HOUSE PLANS
INTERIOR DESIGN
RENOVATIONS

PHONE:

latimerdesigngroup@gmail.com
EMAIL:

LEE ANN LATIMER
DRAWING:

SITE PLAN
SCALE:

1/16"=1'-0"
SHEET SIZE:

24 x 36

REVISIONS:

1ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087

W
E

S
T 

LO
T

TO
TA

L 
A

C
R

E
S

A
TO

TA
L 

B
U

IL
D

 S
IT

E
 A

C
R

E
S

1.
50

  .
23

TH
E

S
E

 P
LA

N
S

 A
R

E
 C

O
P

YR
IG

H
TE

D
 A

N
D

 A
R

E
 S

U
B

JE
C

T 
TO

 T
H

E
 C

O
P

YR
IG

H
T 

P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 A
S

 A
N

 "A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
A

L 
W

O
R

K
" U

N
D

E
R

S
E

C
TI

O
N

 1
02

 O
F 

TH
E

 C
O

P
YR

IG
H

T 
A

C
T,

 1
7 

U
.S

.O
. A

S
 A

M
E

N
D

E
D

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 1
99

0 
A

N
D

 K
N

O
W

N
 A

S
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
A

L 
W

O
R

K
S

C
O

P
YR

IG
H

T 
P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T 

O
F 

19
90

. N
O

 P
A

R
T 

O
F 

TH
IS

 P
LA

N
 M

A
Y 

B
E

 R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 T
R

A
N

S
M

IT
TE

D
 IN

 A
N

Y 
FO

R
M

 O
R

 B
Y 

A
N

Y
M

E
A

N
S

, E
LE

C
TR

O
N

IC
 O

R
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

(I
N

C
LU

D
IN

G
 P

H
O

TO
C

O
P

YI
N

G
, R

E
C

O
R

D
IN

G
, O

R
 A

N
Y 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 R
E

TR
IE

VA
L 

S
YS

TE
M

),
W

IT
H

O
U

T 
TH

E
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 A
P

P
R

O
VA

L 
O

F 
LA

TI
M

E
R

 D
E

S
IG

N
S

, I
N

C
. N

O
 D

E
R

IV
A

TI
VE

 W
O

R
K

S
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 M
A

Y 
B

E
 M

A
D

E
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
P

R
IO

R
W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
E

R
M

IS
S

IO
N

.  
TH

E
 P

U
R

C
H

A
S

E
R

 O
F 

TH
IS

 S
E

T 
O

F 
H

O
M

E
 P

LA
N

S
 E

N
TI

TL
E

S
 T

H
E

 P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

R
 T

O
 U

S
E

 T
H

IS
 S

E
T 

O
F 

P
LA

N
S

 F
O

R
TH

E
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 O

F 
O

N
LY

 O
N

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
.

c

LA
TI

M
E

R
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
, I

N
C

. A
S

S
U

M
E

S
 N

O
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y 
FO

R
 A

N
Y 

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TE
D

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

IS
 S

E
T 

O
F 

P
LA

N
S

. I
T 

IS
 T

H
E

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

IL
IT

Y 
O

F 
TH

E
 P

U
R

C
H

A
S

E
R

 O
F 

TH
E

 P
LA

N
S

 A
N

D
/O

R
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 T

O
 O

B
TA

IN
 T

H
E

 F
O

LL
O

W
IN

G
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
:

1.
C

O
N

S
U

LT
 W

IT
H

 A
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
A

L 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 T
O

 V
E

R
IF

Y:
1.

1.
 D

E
S

IG
N

, S
IZ

E
, A

N
D

 R
E

IN
FO

R
C

E
M

E
N

T 
LO

A
D

S
.

1.
2.

A
LL

 S
IT

E
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
, T

O
 IN

C
LU

D
E

 S
O

IL
 T

E
S

TI
N

G
 F

O
R

 B
E

S
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FO
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

.
1.

3.
FO

U
N

D
A

TI
O

N
 D

E
S

IG
N

2.
C

O
N

S
U

LT
/V

E
R

IF
Y 

A
LL

 A
S

P
E

C
TS

 O
F 

P
LA

N
S

 F
O

R
 L

O
C

A
L 

C
O

D
E

S
 A

N
D

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

S
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

.

LI
M

IT
 O

F 
D

E
S

IG
N

E
R

S
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y 
IS

 N
O

T 
TO

 E
XC

E
E

D
 P

R
IC

E
 P

A
ID

 F
O

R
 S

E
T 

O
F 

P
LA

N
S

. L
A

TI
M

E
R

 D
E

S
IG

N
S

, I
N

C
. I

S
 N

O
T 

LI
A

B
LE

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 M

A
D

E
 T

O
 T

H
IS

 S
E

T 
O

F 
P

LA
N

S
 N

O
R

 A
S

S
U

M
E

S
 A

N
Y 

LI
A

B
IL

IT
Y 

FO
R

 W
O

R
K

/A
D

VI
S

E
M

E
N

T 
P

R
O

VI
D

E
D

 B
Y 

TH
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 O
R

O
TH

E
R

S
 IN

VO
LV

E
D

 IN
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
.

LA
TI

M
E

R
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
, I

N
C

. I
S

 N
O

T 
A

 R
E

G
IS

TE
R

E
D

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T.

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

   
20

18
 b

y 
LA

TI
M

E
R

 D
E

S
IG

N
S

, I
N

C
.

LI
A

B
IL

IT
Y

E
A

S
T 

LO
T

TO
TA

L 
A

C
R

E
S

A
TO

TA
L 

B
U

IL
D

 S
IT

E
 A

C
R

E
S

1.
53

  .
25

D
A

LT
O

N
 R

O
A

D

23
1

23
1



CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 19-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM A SINGLE-FAMILY 
ESTATE 2.0 (SFE-2.0) DISTRICT TO A SINGLE-FAMILY 
ESTATE 1.5 (SFE-1.5) DISTRICT ON A 3.03-ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 1-01 OF THE T. DEAN SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 69, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND FURTHER DESCRIBED IN 
EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Heather Cullins for a change in zoning from a
Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District to a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District on a 
3.03-acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-01 of the T. Dean Survey, Abstract No. 69, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District and more fully 
depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ and described in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be 
referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-38] should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended by amending 
the zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to change the zoning of the Subject Property from a
Single-Family 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District to a Single-Family 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District;

SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for a Single-Family 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District as stipulated in Section 1.1, Use of Land and 
Buildings, of Article IV, Permissible Uses and Section 3.2, Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) 
District, of Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by 
granting of this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future;

D
R

A
FT

  NCE
L, TEXAS

MENT CODE [ME ORD
KWALL, AS HERETKWA

VE A E A CHANGE IN Z
E 2.0 (SFEE 2.0 (SF -2.0) D

TE 1.5 (SFETE 1.5 (SFE--1.5)1.5) DIS
D IDENTIFIED IDENTIFIED AS AS TRTR
TRACT NO. 69TRA , 

UNTY, TEXAS, AUNTY, T
EPICTED IN EPICTED IN EXHIB

EXHIBIT ‘B’XHIBIT ‘B’ OF THISO
CONDITIONS; PROVONDITIONS
EXCEED THE SUMEED THE SU
FOR EACH OFFEH OFF
CLAUSE; PROCLAUSE; PR
PROVIDING FOPROVIDING FO

AS, the he City has receCity has
Family Estate 2.0 (SFstate 2.0
cre tract re tra of land idenand ide

kwall, Rockwall Counwall, Rockwall Coun
ictedcted in Exhibit ‘AExhibit ‘A’ ’ ana

erred to as the erred to as the SubjeSubje

WHEREASHEREAS, the Plann, the P
of the City of Rockwty of Rockw
the City of Rockwalthe City of Rockwal
public hearings anpublic hearing
persons interestepersons intere
governing bodygoverning bod
Development CDevelopment C

W, THERW, THE
L

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

 

L OF THE CITY OFF THE CITY OF
THE UNIFIEDTHE UNIFIE

O. 04. 04--3838] OF THE CIT] OF THE CI
AMENDEDAMEN , SO AS SO A

ROM A SINGLEOM A SINGLE--FAMFA
TO A O A SINGLEE--FAFA
A 33.03.03--ACRE ACR TRACTRAC

OF THE T. DEANOF THE T. DEAN SUS
ROCKWALL, ROCROCKWALL, 

NG MORE SPECMORE SP
D FURTHER DESCER DESC

CE;CE; PROVIDING FOPROVIDING FO
R A PENALTY OF FR A PENAL

THOUSAND DOLLAROUSAND DOL
OVIDING FOR A SFOR A 

FOR A REPEALEAL
ECTIVE DATE.ECTIVE DATE.

uest fromfrom Heather CuHeath
trict to a SingleSingle--Fami

ract 1ac -01 of the T. Dthe T. 
zoned zoned SingleSing -Family amily

d in Exhibit ‘B’Exhibit ‘B’ of thisof 
and incorporated by orporated by

ning Commission of ting Comm
liance with the laws oce with the law

n the requisite noticesn the requisite notice
a full and fair hearina full and fair hearin

situated in the affectd in the affe
ercise of its legislatircise of its legislat

) [[Ordinance No. 04Ordinance No -3

BE IT ORDAINED BE IT ORDAINED

the Unified Developme Unified Developm
s heretofore amendes heretofore amende

the City of Rockwall sthe City of Rockwall
 (SFE(SF -2.0) 0) District to District to 

That thehat the Subject PropSubje
Single-Family 1.5 (SFamily 1.5 (

Article IVArticle IV, Permissib, Permissib
Article VArticle V, District Dev, District

e No. 04 No. -38]8 ofof the Cthe
of this zoning change,f this zoning change

01
.2

2.
20

19L 
TO 
00) 

LITY ITY 
USE; USE; 

change in zoning frome in zoning from
5 (SFE5 (SFE-1.5)1.5) District District o

, , Abstract No. 69Abstract , C
2.0).0) District ict and moreand mo
, which hereinafter swhich hereinafter s

erein; andn; an

ockwall and the goveove
of Texas and the ordhe o

tion and otherwise, anion and otherwise, a
operty owners generaoperty owners gen
nd in the vicinity thnd in the vicinity th

on, has concluded t, has concluded t
e amended as followmended as follow

CITY COUNCIL OCITY COUNCIL O

UDC)C) [ [Ordinance NoOrdinance No
he same are hereby ereby 

ange the zoning of thef the
amily 1.5 (SFE-1.5) .5) D

be used only in the me used 
strict ct as as stipulated instipulate S
d Section 3.2ection 3.2,, SingleSing

Standardsrds, of the UniUni
wall as heretofore amwall as 

ybe amended in the fybe amended 

232
232



SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein;

SECTION 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense;

SECTION 5. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council 
declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without 
the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable;
and

SECTION 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect;

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 4TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019. 

   
Jim Pruitt, Mayor

ATTEST:

   
Kristy Cole, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

   
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1st Reading: January 22, 2019

2nd Reading: February 4, 2019

D
R

A
FT

  misdem
of Two T ThouT

hall continue shall beall 

ction, paragraph, or pction
provision to any perprovision t

judication shall not afudication shall no
lication of any other scation of any other s

tion, nor shall adjudiction, nor shall adjudic
opment Codeopment Co (UDC)

would have adopted thould have a
 and to this end the and to this 

That all ordinancesdinance
e and the same aree and the same ar h

lict with the provisionsict with the provision

N 7. That this ordinThat this o

SED AND APPROVEED AND APPROVE
S THE THE 44THTH DAY OF D FF

ATTEST:EST:

      
Kristy Kr ColeCole,, City SCit

APPROVED AAPPROVED AD
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
 ed to reflect the ced to reflec

of the provisions of tof the provisions of 
on shall be punished hall be punished 

00.00)0.00) for f each offencach offenc
constitute a separateconstitute a separate

this ordinance or thethis ordinance or th
corporation or situatiorporation or situati

her section, paragrapsection, paragrap
agraph or provision to agraph or provision to
any other section, paany other 

ty of Rockwall, Texaf Rockwall, T
tions and applicationapplication

for this ordinance arefor this ordinance are

y of Rockwall in confwall in con
aled, and all other ordord

dinance shall remain iinance shall remain 

ake effect immediateeffect imme

CITY COUNCIL OF CITY COUNCIL OF
, 2012019. 9. 

      
Jim

M:M:

ttorneyorney

ary 22ary 22, 201, 2019

Rbruary 4, 2019bruary 4, 2019R
IN

D
N

01
.2

2.
20

19

n of that n of that 
y reason y reason 

sion of this on o
erson, firm, son, firm, 

r provision of sion of
City Council City

inance without nance with
o be severable;e severable;

e provisions of this e provisions
the City of Rockwall the City of Rock

and effectnd e ;

after its passageits passage..

OF ROCKWALL, TEOF ROCKWALL, T

yor 2

233
233



Legal Description: Tract 1-01 of the T. Dean Survey, Abstract No. 169

D
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
 

01
.2

2.
20

19

234
234



All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in the THOMAS DEAN SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 69, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and being all of Lot 1, Block A, HODGDON 
ADDITION, an Addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas, according to the Plat thereof recorded in 
Cabinet J, Slide 237 of the Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas, and being more particularly 
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap found for corner at the north most Northeast corner 
of Lot 2, and at the northwest corner of Lot 1, Block A of said Hodgdon Addition, and in the South 
right-of-way line of Dalton Road, per Volume 2459, Page 19 of the Real Property Records of 
Rockwall County, Texas;

THENCE N. 89 deg. 14 min. 02 sec. E. along the South right-of-way line of Dalton Road, a 
distance of 464.94 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap found for corner at the northwest corner 
of Lot 1, Block A of SHORES NORTH PHASE 6, an Addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas, 
according to the Plat thereof recorded in Cabinet E, Slide 163 of the Plat Records of Rockwall 
County, Texas;

THENCE S. 00 deg. 22 min. 39 sec. E. along the west of said Addition and the east line of 
Hodgdon tract, a distance of 367.54 feet to a concrete City of Rockwall monument found for corner 
at the southeast corner of said Lot 1, Block A,  Hodgdon Addition;

THENCE WEST along the south boundary line of said Lot 1, a distance of 197.12 feet to a 1/2" 
iron rod found for corner;

THENCE N. 30 deg. 21 min. 19 sec. W. along the west line of Lot 1, a distance of 94.23 feet to a 
1/2" iron rod found for corner;

THENCE N. 66 deg. 42 min. 52 sec. W. a distance of 156.23 feet to a 1/2" iron rod found for 
corner;

THENCE N. 19 deg. 55 min. 06 sec. W. a distance of 232.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING 
and containing 131,886 square feet or 3.03 acres of land.

D
R

A
FT

  Plat Re

n rod with plastic cap n rod
hwest corner of Lot 1,hwes

alton Road, per Volumlton Road, 
xas;xas;

eg. 14 min. 02 sec. Eg. 14 min. 02 sec. 
4 feet to a 1/2" iron rodfeet to a 1

A of SHORES NORTof SHORE
e Plat thereofPlat thereo recorde

00 deg. 22 min. 39 min. 39
act,act, a distance of 367.a distance of 36
heast cornerheast corner of said Lof said 

E WEST along the soST along t
d found for corner;r corner

NCE N. 30 deg. 21 mNCE N. 30 deg. 21 m
iron iron rod found for cod found for co

HENCE N. 66 deg. 4HENCE N. 6
corner;er;

THENCE N. 19 degTHENCE N. 19 deg
andand containing 13containing

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
EAS DEAN SURVEY, AAS DEAN SURVEY,

all of Lot 1, Block A,all of Lot 1, Block A
ding to the Plat thereing to the Plat there

, Texas, and being mxas, and being m

orner at the north mosorner at the north m
said Hodgdon Additiosaid Hodgdon Addit

Page 19 of the Real ge 19 of the Real 

e South right South rig -of-way 
c cap found for cornep found for co

6, an Addition to theddition to the
et E, Slide 163 of theet E, Slide 163 of the

ong the west of saidst of said
concrete City of Rockk

k A,  Hodgdon AdditioA,  Hodgdon Additio

ary line of said Lot 1, ne of said L

W. alW. along the west lineong the west lin

sec. W. a distance osec. W. a distance o

6 sec. W. a distance 6 sec. W. a distance
re feet or 3.03 acres oe feet or 3.03 acres 

01
.2

2.
20

19

corne
he South e South 
ecords of ecords of 

ton Road, a oad a
thwest corner thwe

ockwall, Texas, ckwall, Texa
rds of Rockwall of Rockwall 

nd the east line of nd the east
ment found for corner ment found for co

of 197.12 feet to a 17.12 feet to a 1

a distance of 94.23 feedistance of 94.23 fe

et to a 1/2" iron rod n rod 

eet to the POINT OF eet to the POINT OF 

235
235



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

236
236



PegasusAblon 

Harbor Village 

Case No. SP2018-043
Ordinance No. 13-16

i.e. condominiums
.e. one [1] adjacent to 

Lakefront Trail consisting of 349-units and one [1] adjacent to the Harbor Fountain consisting of 
50-units

Ordinance No. 17-64

i.e. construction schedule
adjacent to Lakefront Trail
Ordinance No. 17-64

not

after proper notice

Harbor Residential 
Subdistrict 

237
237



 
Ordinance No. 17-22 i.e. antique terra-cotta; 
herringbone pattern

Ordinance No. 17-22
Harbor Residential Subdistrict Urban Residential 

(Condominium Units Only) by-right  
site plan, landscape/streetscape plan, treescape plan, photometric plan, and building elevations

Ordinance No. 17-
22 Resolution No. 10-40  
Waiver Request 

Ordinance Provisions Interior Subdistrict 
Standards 

Conformance to the 
Standards 

Setback Distance from ROW (Lakefront Trail) 0-Feet 30-ft; In Conformance 

Building Form 
45% Building Façade 

Fronting Lakefront Trail & 
IH-30 Frontage Road 

x>45%; In Conformance 

Ground Floor Land Uses Retail, Restaurant, 
Residential Residential; In Conformance 

Upper Floor Land Uses Residential & Office Residential; In Conformance 

Maximum Building Height 5-Stories or 75-Feet x=5-Stories/75-ft Height;        
In Conformance 

First Floor Minimum Commercial Height 15-Feet x<15-ft (variable heights);       
Waiver Requested 

Encroachments to Street 5-Feet 0-Feet; In Conformance 
Surface Parking Setbacks from ROW 10-Feet NA; structured parking provided 

Maximum Surface Parking  10% Surface Parking x<10%; Lakefront Trail          
In Conformance 

Minimum Number of Pedestrian Ways  1 Per Block Face 1; In Conformance 
Minimum Masonry Percentage 90% x>90%; In Conformance 
Minimum Stone Requirement 20% Each Façade  x 20%; In Conformance 

Minimum Landscaping Percentage With Streetscape Plan 
Elements 

Streetscape Elements 
Incorporated with Landscape 

Plan; In Conformance 
Maximum Lot Coverage 80% x<80%; In Conformance 

Ordinance No. 17-22
PD-

Ordinance No. 17-22

Building Form and Placement Requirements
 

1st Floor Height.  Harbor Residential Subdistrict 

238
238



Ordinance No. 17-22 

Harbor 
Residential Subdistrict   

Ordinance No. 17-22 

The waiver for this case requires a simple majority vote for approval. 

not 

239
239



PD-32

C

PD-7
A

G

PD-18

City of Rockwall

0 80 160 240 32040
Feet

I240
240



24
1

24
1



24
2

24
2



24
3

24
3



24
4

24
4



24
5

24
5



24
6

24
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

247
247


